
 

 

 
 

BOARD 

OF 

COMMISSIONERS 
 

 

 

March 04, 2019 

7:00 PM 

 

 



Agenda – Camden County Board of Commissioners  March 04, 2019 

  Page 2 of 3 

 

 

This agenda is only a tentative schedule of matters the Commissioners may address at their 

meeting and all items found on it may be deleted, amended or deferred. The Commissioners may 

also, in their absolute discretion, consider matters not shown on this agenda. 
 

Special accommodations for the disabled who attend public meetings can be made by contacting 

the Clerk to the Board 24 hours in advance at 252-338-6363, Ext. 100. 

 

Please turn Cell Phone ringers off during the meeting. 
 

Agenda 
 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

BOC - Regular Meeting 

March 04, 2019 

7:00 PM 

Historic Courtroom, Courthouse Complex 

 

 Welcome & Call to Order 

 Invocation & Pledge of Allegiance 

 Pastor Bill Blake - McBride United Methodist Church 

ITEM 1. Public Comments 

It is requested that comments be limited to (2-3) minutes. The length and number of comments 

may be limited upon the Chairman’s discretion due to scheduling and other issues. 

ITEM 2. Conflict of Interest Disclosure Statement 

ITEM 3. Consideration of Agenda (For discussion and possible action) 

ITEM 4. Presentations (For discussion and possible action) 

1. Albemarle 350th Anniversary Passport Contest - Donna Stewart 

2. Trillium Health Resources Annual Report - Bland Baker 

3. Parks & Recreation Department - Tim White 

4. Sheriff's Office - Austin Browder 

5. Broadband Update 

Recess to South Camden Water & Sewer District Board of Directors Meeting 

Reconvene Board of Commissioners 



Agenda – Camden County Board of Commissioners  March 04, 2019 

  Page 3 of 3 

 

ITEM 5. New Business (For discussion and possible action) 

A. Tax Report 

B. Memorandum of Agreement with Camden County 4-H Foundation 

C. Roadway Extension for Camden Commerce Park - Recommendation of Award 

D. Resolution 2019-03-01 - Albemarle Commission 

E. Resolution 2019-03-02 Adopting UDO Administrative Manual 

ITEM 6. Consent Agenda  

1. BOC Meeting Minutes - December 3, 2018 

2. BOC/BOE Joint Meeting Minutes - January 24, 2019 

3. BOC Meeting Minutes - February 4, 2019 

4. Budget Amendments 

5. Tax Collection Report 

6. DMV Monthly Report 

7. Refunds Over $100.00 

8. Vehicle Refunds Over $100.00 

9. Pickups, Releases & Refunds 

10. Home & Community Care Block Grant 

ITEM 7. County Manager's Report 

ITEM 8. Commissioners' Reports 

ITEM 9. Information, Reports & Minutes From Other Agencies 

A. FY 18-19 YTD Finance Report 

B. Library Report 

C. Register of Deeds 

D. Community Advisory Committee Report 

ITEM 10. Adjourn 



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Presentations 

 

Item Number: 4.1 

Meeting Date:   March 04, 2019 

 

Submitted By: Donna Stewart, Visitor Center Director 

 Dismal Swamp Welcome Center 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   Donna Stewart - Albemarle 350Th Anniversary Passport 

Contest 

 

Attachments:  

 

Summary: 

Donna Stewart will introduce and recognize the winner of the Albemarle 350th Anniversary 

Passport Contest. 

4.1

Packet Pg. 4



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Presentations 

 

Item Number: 4.2 

Meeting Date:   March 04, 2019 

 

Submitted By: Karen Davis, Clerk to the Board 

 Administration 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   Trillium Health Resources Annual Report - Bland Baker 

 

Attachments: Camden County Annual Report 2018 (PPTM) 

 

Summary: 

Mr. Bland Baker will present the Trillium Health Resources Annual Report. 

4.2

Packet Pg. 5



Transforming Lives

TRILLIUM HEALTH RESOURCES 

ANNUAL REPORT CAMDEN COUNTY

BLAND BAKER, BA

REGIONAL DIRECTOR

4.2.a

Packet Pg. 6

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

am
d

en
 C

o
u

n
ty

 A
n

n
u

al
 R

ep
o

rt
 2

01
8 

 (
23

05
 :

 T
ri

lli
u

m
 H

ea
lt

h
 R

es
o

u
rc

es
 A

n
n

u
al

 R
ep

o
rt

 -



TRILLIUM UPDATE

Trillium’s mission:  Transforming lives of people in

need by providing ready access to quality care      

ó Coverage change

ó Legislation changes

ó Funding changes

ó Partnership changes

ó Organizational changes

ó County Data

4.2.a

Packet Pg. 7

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

am
d

en
 C

o
u

n
ty

 A
n

n
u

al
 R

ep
o

rt
 2

01
8 

 (
23

05
 :

 T
ri

lli
u

m
 H

ea
lt

h
 R

es
o

u
rc

es
 A

n
n

u
al

 R
ep

o
rt

 -



Who We Are - Numbers

ó 26 Counties

ó 1,410,000 total population 

ó 205,000 Medicaid Eligible

ó Served almost 54,000

ó 500 Providers

ó $355,201,859.00 spent on services last year

ó Smallest County- Tyrrell 3,800- Largest County -
New Hanover 225,000

ó 12,000 square miles

4.2.a

Packet Pg. 8

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

am
d

en
 C

o
u

n
ty

 A
n

n
u

al
 R

ep
o

rt
 2

01
8 

 (
23

05
 :

 T
ri

lli
u

m
 H

ea
lt

h
 R

es
o

u
rc

es
 A

n
n

u
al

 R
ep

o
rt

 -



REGION POPULATION
SQUARE 

MILES
# OF 

COUNTIES

Northern 203,449 3,511.3 10

Central 494,374 4,717.2 9

Southern 715,460 4,176 7

4.2.a

Packet Pg. 9

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

am
d

en
 C

o
u

n
ty

 A
n

n
u

al
 R

ep
o

rt
 2

01
8 

 (
23

05
 :

 T
ri

lli
u

m
 H

ea
lt

h
 R

es
o

u
rc

es
 A

n
n

u
al

 R
ep

o
rt

 -



Coverage Change

ó July 1st 2018 we added Columbus County

ó Giving them more options of providers

ó We are opening an office in Columbus County

ó Some of our largest providers are opening offices 
there i.e. PORT Health Services and Integrated 
Family Services

ó We’ve done several RFP’s specific to Columbus 
County to build their network

4.2.a

Packet Pg. 10

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

am
d

en
 C

o
u

n
ty

 A
n

n
u

al
 R

ep
o

rt
 2

01
8 

 (
23

05
 :

 T
ri

lli
u

m
 H

ea
lt

h
 R

es
o

u
rc

es
 A

n
n

u
al

 R
ep

o
rt

 -



Legislative Changes

ó Standard Plan

ó Tailored Plan 

ó Must be budget neutral 

ó Puts Behavioral Health services for mild to moderate 

needs into Standard Plans

ó Innovations Waiver and Severe MH and SU will be 

covered by Tailored Plan

4.2.a

Packet Pg. 11

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

am
d

en
 C

o
u

n
ty

 A
n

n
u

al
 R

ep
o

rt
 2

01
8 

 (
23

05
 :

 T
ri

lli
u

m
 H

ea
lt

h
 R

es
o

u
rc

es
 A

n
n

u
al

 R
ep

o
rt

 -



Timeline

ó • February 2019 - NC will award contracts to the 
selected private insurance companies and/or PLE’s.
ó • July 2019 - PHPs must have all call centers 

operational and all relevant staff located in North 
Carolina. 
ó • July-September 2019 - Managed care will start in two 

phases. For regions of the state in Phase 1, this will be 
the window in which beneficiaries select a PHP. 
ó • November 2019 - The Medicaid managed care 

program will launch in regions in Phase 1. 
ó • February 2020 - The Medicaid managed care program 

will launch in regions in Phase 2.

4.2.a

Packet Pg. 12

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

am
d

en
 C

o
u

n
ty

 A
n

n
u

al
 R

ep
o

rt
 2

01
8 

 (
23

05
 :

 T
ri

lli
u

m
 H

ea
lt

h
 R

es
o

u
rc

es
 A

n
n

u
al

 R
ep

o
rt

 -



Time Line Continued

ó May 2020 – State awards Tailored Plan

ó February 2021 – Readiness Review on MCOs for 
Tailored Plan

ó July 2021 – MCOs implement Tailored Plan

4.2.a

Packet Pg. 13

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

am
d

en
 C

o
u

n
ty

 A
n

n
u

al
 R

ep
o

rt
 2

01
8 

 (
23

05
 :

 T
ri

lli
u

m
 H

ea
lt

h
 R

es
o

u
rc

es
 A

n
n

u
al

 R
ep

o
rt

 -



Funding Changes

ó Since Standard Plans will be run by insurance 
companies, they will be managing a part of the 
Medicaid dollars

ó Tailored plans which cover the higher risk 
individuals, our PMPM will be higher, but total 
number served under us will be lower

ó Developing a whole person care model to cover 
costs of the physical issues along with the 
behavioral health issues

ó The 1115 Waiver is required to be cost neutral 

4.2.a

Packet Pg. 14

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

am
d

en
 C

o
u

n
ty

 A
n

n
u

al
 R

ep
o

rt
 2

01
8 

 (
23

05
 :

 T
ri

lli
u

m
 H

ea
lt

h
 R

es
o

u
rc

es
 A

n
n

u
al

 R
ep

o
rt

 -



Partnership Changes

ó Trillium is working with two other MCO’s, Alliance 
Behavioral Health and Vaya Health coalition known 
as Advancing NC Whole Health.

www.advancingncwholehealth.com

ó This is a partnership-not a merger.  Trillium 
believes by aligning our strengths and shared 
experiences, we can maximize our impact as we 
prepare to apply for the Tailored Plan and partner 
with the companies that receive the Standard Plan.

ó Partnering with the selected insurance companies 
for Standard Plan coverage

4.2.a

Packet Pg. 15

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

am
d

en
 C

o
u

n
ty

 A
n

n
u

al
 R

ep
o

rt
 2

01
8 

 (
23

05
 :

 T
ri

lli
u

m
 H

ea
lt

h
 R

es
o

u
rc

es
 A

n
n

u
al

 R
ep

o
rt

 -



Organizational Changes

ó Understanding Social Determinants of Health 
(SDoH)

ó Staff to oversee the individual/community needs 
around the SDoH

ó Working with DSS’s and Health Departments

ó Hiring Psychiatrists to help with Utilization 
Management

4.2.a

Packet Pg. 16

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

am
d

en
 C

o
u

n
ty

 A
n

n
u

al
 R

ep
o

rt
 2

01
8 

 (
23

05
 :

 T
ri

lli
u

m
 H

ea
lt

h
 R

es
o

u
rc

es
 A

n
n

u
al

 R
ep

o
rt

 -



Update on Opioid Funding

ó State Fiscal Year- 2018 July1, 2017- June 30th, 
2018 – CURES Funding, Trillium spent $3,079,682

ó Total people served- 1880

ó Many counties have developed Opioid Coalitions 
and applying for grants

4.2.a

Packet Pg. 17

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

am
d

en
 C

o
u

n
ty

 A
n

n
u

al
 R

ep
o

rt
 2

01
8 

 (
23

05
 :

 T
ri

lli
u

m
 H

ea
lt

h
 R

es
o

u
rc

es
 A

n
n

u
al

 R
ep

o
rt

 -



Consumers served in Camden County

ó Total Consumers served – 247

ó Mental Health – 198

ó Substance Use – 45

ó I/DD – 50

ó Total dollars - $1,974,331.00

Total is unduplicated, since a single individual may receive services in more than one 
category

4.2.a

Packet Pg. 18

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

am
d

en
 C

o
u

n
ty

 A
n

n
u

al
 R

ep
o

rt
 2

01
8 

 (
23

05
 :

 T
ri

lli
u

m
 H

ea
lt

h
 R

es
o

u
rc

es
 A

n
n

u
al

 R
ep

o
rt

 -



Transforming Lives

QUESTIONS?

THE END

4.2.a

Packet Pg. 19

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

am
d

en
 C

o
u

n
ty

 A
n

n
u

al
 R

ep
o

rt
 2

01
8 

 (
23

05
 :

 T
ri

lli
u

m
 H

ea
lt

h
 R

es
o

u
rc

es
 A

n
n

u
al

 R
ep

o
rt

 -



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Presentations 

 

Item Number: 4.3 

Meeting Date:   March 04, 2019 

 

Submitted By: Karen Davis, Clerk to the Board 

 Administration 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   Tim White - Parks & Recreation Department Update 

 

Attachments: 2018 Camden County Parks  Recreation Report

 (PPTX) 

 

Summary: 

Tim White will give a department update from Parks & Recreation. 

4.3

Packet Pg. 20



A C T I V I T I E S  – P R O G R A M S  – P A R K  P R O J E C T S

2018 CAMDEN COUNTY
PARKS & RECREATION

4.3.a

Packet Pg. 21

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

01
8 

C
am

d
en

 C
o

u
n

ty
 P

ar
ks

  R
ec

re
at

io
n

 R
ep

o
rt

  (
23

03
 :

 T
im

 W
h

it
e 

- 
P

ar
ks

 &
 R

ec
re

at
io

n



SPORTS

• CYL Spring Soccer - 350

• CYL Baseball & Softball - 480

• Women’s Slow pitch Softball – 4 Teams

• SPIRIT Cheerleading Camp - 90

• Summer Sunday Volleyball Skill Development

• CYL Fall Soccer - 450

• CYF Football & Cheerleading - 60

• Girls Volleyball - 80

• Youth Basketball - 270

4.3.a

Packet Pg. 22

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

01
8 

C
am

d
en

 C
o

u
n

ty
 P

ar
ks

  R
ec

re
at

io
n

 R
ep

o
rt

  (
23

03
 :

 T
im

 W
h

it
e 

- 
P

ar
ks

 &
 R

ec
re

at
io

n



PROGRAMS/ACTIVITIES

• Martin Luther King Jr. Unity Celebration

• Easter Egg Hunt Extravaganza 

• 9/11 Memorial

• Fall Festival/Pumpkin Contest

• Dismal Day/Fun Run

• Trunk or Treat

• Veterans Day Ceremony

• Holiday Tree Lighting 

4.3.a

Packet Pg. 23

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

01
8 

C
am

d
en

 C
o

u
n

ty
 P

ar
ks

  R
ec

re
at

io
n

 R
ep

o
rt

  (
23

03
 :

 T
im

 W
h

it
e 

- 
P

ar
ks

 &
 R

ec
re

at
io

n



PARKS/PROJECTS

2018 DISMAL SWAMP 
TRAIL REPAIRS

4.3.a

Packet Pg. 24

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

01
8 

C
am

d
en

 C
o

u
n

ty
 P

ar
ks

  R
ec

re
at

io
n

 R
ep

o
rt

  (
23

03
 :

 T
im

 W
h

it
e 

- 
P

ar
ks

 &
 R

ec
re

at
io

n



4.3.a

Packet Pg. 25

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

01
8 

C
am

d
en

 C
o

u
n

ty
 P

ar
ks

  R
ec

re
at

io
n

 R
ep

o
rt

  (
23

03
 :

 T
im

 W
h

it
e 

- 
P

ar
ks

 &
 R

ec
re

at
io

n



PARKS/PROJECTS

2018 ONE MILL PARK 

4.3.a

Packet Pg. 26

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

01
8 

C
am

d
en

 C
o

u
n

ty
 P

ar
ks

  R
ec

re
at

io
n

 R
ep

o
rt

  (
23

03
 :

 T
im

 W
h

it
e 

- 
P

ar
ks

 &
 R

ec
re

at
io

n



4.3.a

Packet Pg. 27

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

01
8 

C
am

d
en

 C
o

u
n

ty
 P

ar
ks

  R
ec

re
at

io
n

 R
ep

o
rt

  (
23

03
 :

 T
im

 W
h

it
e 

- 
P

ar
ks

 &
 R

ec
re

at
io

n



4.3.a

Packet Pg. 28

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

01
8 

C
am

d
en

 C
o

u
n

ty
 P

ar
ks

  R
ec

re
at

io
n

 R
ep

o
rt

  (
23

03
 :

 T
im

 W
h

it
e 

- 
P

ar
ks

 &
 R

ec
re

at
io

n



PARKS/PROJECTS

MILLTOWN LANDING

4.3.a

Packet Pg. 29

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

01
8 

C
am

d
en

 C
o

u
n

ty
 P

ar
ks

  R
ec

re
at

io
n

 R
ep

o
rt

  (
23

03
 :

 T
im

 W
h

it
e 

- 
P

ar
ks

 &
 R

ec
re

at
io

n



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Presentations 

 

Item Number: 4.4 

Meeting Date:   March 04, 2019 

 

Submitted By: Karen Davis, Clerk to the Board 

 Administration 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   Deputy Austin Browder - Sheriff's Office 

 

Attachments:  

 

Summary: 

Deputy Austin Browder will be making a presentation on behalf of the Sheriff's Office. 

4.4

Packet Pg. 30



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Presentations 

 

Item Number: 4.5 

Meeting Date:   March 04, 2019 

 

Submitted By: Karen Davis, Clerk to the Board 

 Administration 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   Broadband Update 

 

Attachments:  

 

Summary: 

An update will be given on progress with Broadband. 

4.5

Packet Pg. 31



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
New Business 

 

Item Number: 5.A 

Meeting Date:   March 04, 2019 

 

Submitted By: Lisa Anderson, Tax Administrator 

 Taxes 

 Prepared by: Lisa Anderson 

 
Item Title   January Monthly Report 

 

Attachments: 20190226100603779.pdf (PDF) 

 

Summary:  January Monthly Report 

Recommendation:  Review and approve 

5.A

Packet Pg. 32



5.A.a

Packet Pg. 33

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

01
90

22
61

00
60

37
79

.p
d

f 
 (

23
20

 :
 T

ax
 R

ep
o

rt
)



5.A.a

Packet Pg. 34

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

01
90

22
61

00
60

37
79

.p
d

f 
 (

23
20

 :
 T

ax
 R

ep
o

rt
)



5.A.a

Packet Pg. 35

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

01
90

22
61

00
60

37
79

.p
d

f 
 (

23
20

 :
 T

ax
 R

ep
o

rt
)



5.A.a

Packet Pg. 36

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

01
90

22
61

00
60

37
79

.p
d

f 
 (

23
20

 :
 T

ax
 R

ep
o

rt
)



5.A.a

Packet Pg. 37

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

01
90

22
61

00
60

37
79

.p
d

f 
 (

23
20

 :
 T

ax
 R

ep
o

rt
)



5.A.a

Packet Pg. 38

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

01
90

22
61

00
60

37
79

.p
d

f 
 (

23
20

 :
 T

ax
 R

ep
o

rt
)



5.A.a

Packet Pg. 39

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

01
90

22
61

00
60

37
79

.p
d

f 
 (

23
20

 :
 T

ax
 R

ep
o

rt
)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
New Business 

 

Item Number: 5.B 

Meeting Date:   March 04, 2019 

 

Submitted By: Ken Bowman, 

 Administration 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   Memorandum of Agreement with Camden County 4-H 

Foundation 

 

Attachments: Memorandum of Agreement_Treasure Point

 (DOCX) 

 

Summary: 

Attached is a Memorandum of Agreement outlining the responsibilities in regard to 

management of the Treasure Point 4-H Camp property. 

Recommendation: 

Approve. 

5.B

Packet Pg. 40



Memorandum of Agreement Between  

Camden County 4-H Foundation and the County of Camden 

 for the Management of Treasure Point 4-H Camp 

 

This Memorandum of Agreement (MOA) is made by and between the Camden County 4-H 

Foundation (Foundation) and Camden County (County) and is entered into as of the date of the last 

signature below. 

  

Whereas, the Foundation owns the 3.8acre parcel known as Treasure Point 4-H Camp (Camp) and, 

 

Whereas, the County uses the property for Extension and other County activities and, 

 

Whereas, the Foundation and the County wish to establish this MOA to outline the responsibilities 

and liabilities of each party in relationship to the Camp. 

 

Now, Therefore, in consideration of the promises and covenants contained herein, the parties agree 

as follows: 

 

1. The Camp will be known as Treasure Point 4-H Camp. 

2. Camden County, through the 4-H Department of NC Cooperative Extension will operate the 

camp. 

3. The County shall repair and maintain the buildings and grounds currently located within the 

Camp property. 

4. The County shall provide adequate insurance coverage for the Camp and activities conducted 

at the Camp consistent with coverage provided for other publicly used county facilities. 

5. The Foundation shall maintain a board of directors to oversee fundraising and development of 

the Camp. 

6. The Foundation shall ensure the property is used in a manner consistent with deed restrictions 

and lease agreements. 

 

Signatures of the persons below authorize execution of this document, commencing on March 4, 

2019, and continuing year-to-year, unless otherwise terminated in writing by either party under 

notification to the other party no less than one-hundred twenty (120) days prior to the desired 

termination date.  

 

__________________________________________________   ________________ 

Signature, Chairperson or Designee of County Commissioners  Date 

 

__________________________________________________  ________________ 

Signature, Chair or Designee of Camden County 4-H Foundation  Date 

5.B.a

Packet Pg. 41

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 M

em
o

ra
n

d
u

m
 o

f 
A

g
re

em
en

t_
T

re
as

u
re

 P
o

in
t 

 (
23

15
 :

 M
em

o
ra

n
d

u
m

 o
f 

A
g

re
em

en
t 

w
it

h
 C

am
d

en
 C

o
u

n
ty

 4
-H

 F
o

u
n

d
at

io
n

)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
New Business 

 

Item Number: 5.C 

Meeting Date:   March 04, 2019 

 

Submitted By: Ken Bowman, 

 Administration 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   Roadway Extension for Camden Commerce Park 

 

Attachments: Roadway Extension Camden Commerce Park - 

Recommendation of 

Award (PDF) 

 

See attached. 

5.C

Packet Pg. 42



5.C.a

Packet Pg. 43

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

o
ad

w
ay

 E
xt

en
si

o
n

 C
am

d
en

 C
o

m
m

er
ce

 P
ar

k 
- 

R
ec

o
m

m
en

d
at

io
n

 o
f 

A
w

ar
d

  (
23

12
 :

 R
o

ad
w

ay
 E

xt
en

si
o

n
 f

o
r 

C
am

d
en

 C
o

m
m

er
ce



5.C.a

Packet Pg. 44

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

o
ad

w
ay

 E
xt

en
si

o
n

 C
am

d
en

 C
o

m
m

er
ce

 P
ar

k 
- 

R
ec

o
m

m
en

d
at

io
n

 o
f 

A
w

ar
d

  (
23

12
 :

 R
o

ad
w

ay



5.C.a

Packet Pg. 45

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

o
ad

w
ay

 E
xt

en
si

o
n

 C
am

d
en

 C
o

m
m

er
ce

 P
ar

k 
- 

R
ec

o
m

m
en

d
at

io
n

 o
f 

A
w

ar
d

  (
23

12
 :

 R
o

ad
w

ay



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
New Business 

 

Item Number: 5.D 

Meeting Date:   March 04, 2019 

 

Submitted By: Karen Davis, Clerk to the Board 

 Administration 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   Resolution 2019-03-01 - Albemarle Commission 

 

Attachments: Resolution Adopted by Board of Delegates Requesting 

First Amendment to 1997 

Charter (DOCX) 

Resolution 2019-03-01 Albemarle Commission

 (DOCX) 

 

Summary: 

The following information was provided from Attorney John Leidy on behalf of Albemarle 

Commission: 

 

 Attached is a copy of  “A Resolution Requesting Amendment of the 1997 Resolution Modifying 

and Amending Resolutions Creating the Regional Planning Commission Known As the 

Albemarle Commission” (the “Resolution”) and a “First Amendment to 1997 Resolution 

Modifying and Amending Resolutions Creating the Regional Planning Commission Known As 

the Albemarle Commission” (the “Amended Charter”).  The Board adopted the resolution at its 

January 17, 2019 meeting.  That Resolution requests that each of the 10 counties comprising the 

Albemarle Commission approve an amendment to the 1997 Charter so that the terms for 

delegates be changed from 1 to 2 year terms.  Additionally, the Resolution requests that the 

Charter be amended to reflect that the immediate past chair will serve as an ex officio, non-

voting member of the Board. These practices have been provided in the bylaws adopted by the 

Board of Delegates and have been followed but they are not prescribed in the Charter.   

  The Amended Charter  is needed in order to  update the 1997 Charter to be consistent with 

bylaws that have been adopted by the Board of Delegates over the last 20 years that have, in 

5.D

Packet Pg. 46



 
these respects,  not been consistent with the 1997 charter.  Some other minor changes were 

made as well.   

    To enable the Board of Delegates to operate with the 2 year terms and ex officio participation 

of the past chair the Board urges each county to adopt this revision as soon as possible.  As 

provided by the current Charter, any proposed amendment must be approved by all 10 counties 

in order to be effective. We hope that all counties will approve this accordingly.   

5.D

Packet Pg. 47



A RESOLUTION REQUESTING AMENDMENT OF  

THE 1997 RESOLUTION MODIFYING AND  

AMENDING RESOLUTIONS CREATING 

THE REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION  

KNOWN AS THE ALBEMARLE COMMISSION 

 
 

WHEREAS, in 1970 the Counties of Camden, Chowan, Currituck, Dare, Gates, Hyde, 

Pasquotank, Perquimans and Tyrrell, (the "Initial Counties"), began a regional cooperative 

effort by creating a regional planning and economic development commission known as the 

Albemarle Commission; and 

WHEREAS, the County of Washington was granted membership in 1971 with 

unanimous consent of the Initial Counties (the Initial Counties and the County of Washington 

may be referred to individually as a “County” and collectively as the “Counties”); and 

WHEREAS, N.C. Gen. Stat. '153A-391 provides that the Counties may, by 

unanimous action, modify and amend the resolution creating the Albemarle Commission; and 

WHEREAS, in 1997, the Counties unanimously modified and amended the resolution 

creating the Albemarle Commission by adopting that certain document entitled “Resolution 

Modifying and Amending Resolutions Creating the Regional Planning Commission known as the 

Albemarle Commission” (the “1997 Resolution”); and 

WHEREAS, the 1997 Resolution provides, in Article II thereof, the method for the 

appointment of delegates by the member Counties, including terms for such appointments, that the 

governing board of the Albemarle Commission has requested be changed as set forth below; and  

WHEREAS, the Board of Delegates for the Albemarle Commission, after due and 

diligent consideration, desire to ob ta in  a  mo d i f i ca t ion  and  am endment  t o  the 1997 

Resolution in order to change the appointment method of delegates and the terms for delegates.  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Delegates hereby requests 

5.D.a

Packet Pg. 48

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 A
d

o
p

te
d

 b
y 

B
o

ar
d

 o
f 

D
el

eg
at

es
 R

eq
u

es
ti

n
g

 F
ir

st
 A

m
en

d
m

en
t 

to
 1

99
7 

C
h

ar
te

r 
 (

23
10

 :
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 2
01

9-
03

-0
1 

- 
A

lb
em

ar
le



that each of the counties comprising the Albemarle Commission adopt and enact a first amendment to 

the 1997 Resolution that reads substantially as follows:  

“Section 1. By replacing Articles I through VIII thereof with the following:  

ARTICLE I 

NAME 

The name of the regional planning commission shall be the ALBEMARLE 

COMMISSION. 

ARTICLE II 

ALBEMARLE COMMISSION MEMBERSHIP AND GOVERNING BOARD 

A. Albemarle Commission Membership – The Counties of Camden, Chowan, 

Currituck, Dare, Gates, Hyde, Pasquotank, Perquimans, Tyrrell and Washington shall be 

member governments of the Albemarle Commission. The Albemarle Commission shall be 

governed by a board of 15 members appointed as follows:  

1) The governing board of each member government shall appoint one 

“Commissioner” delegate who must be a member of the member 

government’s governing board. Commissioner delegates who no longer hold 

office as an elected member of their member government’s governing board 

are unable to continue as a delegate unless they can be and are approved as 

an at large delegate. 

2) Four additional “At Large” delegates who do not hold an elective office 

shall be initially appointed as follows:  

(a) One delegate appointed by Camden County’s governing board;  

(b) One delegate appointed by Chowan County’s governing board;  

5.D.a

Packet Pg. 49

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 A
d

o
p

te
d

 b
y 

B
o

ar
d

 o
f 

D
el

eg
at

es
 R

eq
u

es
ti

n
g

 F
ir

st
 A

m
en

d
m

en
t 

to
 1

99
7 

C
h

ar
te

r 
 (

23
10

 :
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 2
01

9-
03

-0
1 

- 
A

lb
em

ar
le



(c) One delegate appointed by Currituck County’s governing board;  

(d) One delegate appointed by Dare County’s governing board.  

The At Large delegates appointed as of the adoption of this Resolution may 

continue to serve the remainder of their terms as set forth below. 

Successors shall thereafter be appointed by the governing board’s member 

governments in a rotating manner which order shall be determined 

alphabetically until the end of the alphabet is reached and then starting over  

(e.g., two years after the year this Resolution is adopted one delegate would 

be appointed by each of the following counties: Gates, Hyde, Pasquotank, 

and Perquimans; two years thereafter, one delegate would be appointed by 

each of the following counties:   Tyrrell, Washington, Camden, and 

Chowan; and the appointments would continue rotating every two years in 

this alphabetical manner). 

3) The immediate past chair shall serve for one year as an ex-officio, non-

voting member unless they can be and are appointed as a Commissioner 

Delegate or an At Large Delegate. 

The member governments are encouraged to consider making appointments that will result 

in at least four delegates being racial minorities. 

B. Terms; Removal; Vacancies – Delegates of the Albemarle Commission shall 

serve two-year terms. Terms shall be measured by calendar years but shall end on 

December 31, regardless of the date of appointment by the appointing authority. A 

delegate may be removed with or without cause by the appointing member government’s 

governing board. Appointment to fill vacancies shall be made for the remainder of the 

5.D.a

Packet Pg. 50

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 A
d

o
p

te
d

 b
y 

B
o

ar
d

 o
f 

D
el

eg
at

es
 R

eq
u

es
ti

n
g

 F
ir

st
 A

m
en

d
m

en
t 

to
 1

99
7 

C
h

ar
te

r 
 (

23
10

 :
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 2
01

9-
03

-0
1 

- 
A

lb
em

ar
le



unexpired term by the respective appointing member government’s governing board.  

C. Officers; Compensation – Those officers currently serving as of the date of 

adoption of this resolution, shall continue serving until the next organizational meeting of 

the Albemarle Commission governing board. 

Thereafter, the Albemarle Commission governing board shall hold an 

organizational meeting annually in January to elect a chair, vice-chair and secretary by 

simple majority vote of those delegates present and voting at a properly constituted 

meeting. Only Commissioner delegates, i.e., those delegates who are members of a 

member government’s governing board, shall be eligible to hold an office, other than the 

non-voting office of immediate past chair. 

Delegates may be compensated and reimbursed for their expenses at an 

appropriate mileage rate by the Albemarle Commission for attendance at meetings of the 

Albemarle Commission governing board.  

ARTICLE III 

POWERS AND DUTIES 

The Albemarle Commission shall possess the following powers:  

(1) Apply for, accept, receive, and disburse funds, grants, and services made available 

to it by the State of North Carolina or any agency thereof, the federal government 

or any agency thereof, any unit of local government or any agency thereof, or any 

private or civic agency; 

(2)  Employ personnel; 

(3)  Contract with consultants; 
 

(4)  Contract for services with the State of North Carolina, any other state, the United 

States, or any agency of those governments; 

(5) Study and inventory regional goals, resources, and problems; 

5.D.a

Packet Pg. 51

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 A
d

o
p

te
d

 b
y 

B
o

ar
d

 o
f 

D
el

eg
at

es
 R

eq
u

es
ti

n
g

 F
ir

st
 A

m
en

d
m

en
t 

to
 1

99
7 

C
h

ar
te

r 
 (

23
10

 :
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 2
01

9-
03

-0
1 

- 
A

lb
em

ar
le



(6) Prepare and amend regional development plans, which may include 

recommendations for land use within the region, recommendations concerning the 

need for and general location of public works of regional concern, 

recommendations for economic development of the region, and any other relevant 

matters; 

(7) Cooperate with and provide assistance to federal, state, other regional, and local 

planning activities within the region; 

(8) Encourage local efforts toward economic development;  

(9) Make recommendations for review and action to its member governments and 

other public agencies that perform functions within the region; 

(10) Exercise any other power necessary to the discharge of its duties. 
 

ARTICLE IV 

FINANCES 

 Funding for the Albemarle Commission’s administrative and general operational 

requirements shall, in addition to other funds which might become available, be provided 

by member governments. Each member government’s proportionate share shall be 

determined by a per capita assessment based on the most recent United States Census. 

Thereafter, the Albemarle Commission governing board shall develop and adopt, by 

simple majority vote, an annual budget for each up-coming fiscal year which shall be 

submitted to the member governments for review and comment not later than May 1.  

ARTICLE V 

BUDGETARY AND FISCAL CONTROL 

 The Albemarle Commission budget and fiscal affairs shall comply with the 

procedures set forth in the Local Government Budget and Fiscal Control Act, Chapter 159, 

Subchapter III of the North Carolina General Statutes.  

5.D.a

Packet Pg. 52

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 A
d

o
p

te
d

 b
y 

B
o

ar
d

 o
f 

D
el

eg
at

es
 R

eq
u

es
ti

n
g

 F
ir

st
 A

m
en

d
m

en
t 

to
 1

99
7 

C
h

ar
te

r 
 (

23
10

 :
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 2
01

9-
03

-0
1 

- 
A

lb
em

ar
le



 The Albemarle Commission shall cause to be made an annual audit of its books and 

records by an independent certified public accountant at the end of the each fiscal year and 

a certified copy of the audit shall be filed promptly with each member government.  

ARTICLE VI 

WITHDRAWAL 

 A member government may withdraw from the Albemarle Commission by giving 

at least two years’ written notice to the other member governments.  

ARTICLE VII 

AMENDMENTS 

 This resolution may be amended, modified or repealed by the unanimous action of 

the member governments.  

ARTICLE VIII 

DISSOLUTION 

 If the Albemarle Commission is dissolved by the unanimous action of the member 

governments then the proceeds that may be derived from the sale of the Albemarle 

Commission’s assets, less payment of debts and liabilities, shall be distributed among the 

member governments pursuant to the following formula:  

Member Government Population X Total Dollar  =  Member government’s 

Total population of    Value of Albemarle  Share 

Member governments    Commission assets 

 

 Section 2. All provisions of resolutions creating, amending or modifying the 1997 

Resolution which are not re-enacted by this resolution, are hereby repealed.  

 Section 3. This resolution shall take effect immediately upon its unanimous 

adoption by the Counties.” 

5.D.a

Packet Pg. 53

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 A
d

o
p

te
d

 b
y 

B
o

ar
d

 o
f 

D
el

eg
at

es
 R

eq
u

es
ti

n
g

 F
ir

st
 A

m
en

d
m

en
t 

to
 1

99
7 

C
h

ar
te

r 
 (

23
10

 :
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 2
01

9-
03

-0
1 

- 
A

lb
em

ar
le



 ADOPTED the ____ day of ________________, 2019.  

 

       _________________________________ 

       Chairman, Albemarle Commission Board  

       of Delegates 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

_____________________________ 

Executive Director 

 

J:\Clients\29935-0\Resolution Amendent (first amendment).docx 

 

5.D.a

Packet Pg. 54

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 A
d

o
p

te
d

 b
y 

B
o

ar
d

 o
f 

D
el

eg
at

es
 R

eq
u

es
ti

n
g

 F
ir

st
 A

m
en

d
m

en
t 

to
 1

99
7 

C
h

ar
te

r 
 (

23
10

 :
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 2
01

9-
03

-0
1 

- 
A

lb
em

ar
le



 
 

Resolution 2019-03-01 

 

FIRST AMENDMENT TO 1997 

RESOLUTION MODIFYING AND  

AMENDING RESOLUTIONS CREATING 

THE REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION  

KNOWN AS THE ALBEMARLE COMMISSION 
 
 

WHEREAS, in 1970 the Counties of Camden, Chowan, Currituck, Dare, Gates, Hyde, 

Pasquotank, Perquimans and Tyrrell, (the "Initial Counties"), began a regional cooperative 

effort by creating a regional planning and economic development commission known as the 

Albemarle Commission; and 

WHEREAS, the County of Washington was granted membership in 1971 with 

unanimous consent of the Initial Counties (the Initial Counties and the County of Washington 

may be referred to individually as a “County” and collectively as the “Counties”); and 

WHEREAS, N.C. Gen. Stat. '153A-391 provides that the Counties may, by 

unanimous action, modify and amend the resolution creating the Albemarle Commission; and 

WHEREAS, in 1997, the Counties unanimously modified and amended the resolution 

creating the Albemarle Commission by adopting that certain document entitled “Resolution 

Modifying and Amending Resolutions Creating the Regional Planning Commission known as the 

Albemarle Commission” (the “1997 Resolution”); and 

WHEREAS, Article II of the 1997 Resolution provides  the method for the appointment 

of delegates by the member Counties, including terms for such appointments, that the governing 

board of the Albemarle Commission has requested be changed as set forth below; and  

WHEREAS, the Counties, after due and diligent consideration, desire to modify and 

5.D.b

Packet Pg. 55

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 2
01

9-
03

-0
1 

A
lb

em
ar

le
 C

o
m

m
is

si
o

n
  (

23
10

 :
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 2
01

9-
03

-0
1 

- 
A

lb
em

ar
le

 C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

)



amend the 1997 Resolution through this First Amendment to the 1997 Resolution to change the 

method for appointment of delegates and the terns for delegates.  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by each of the Boards of Commissioners 

for the Counties of Camden, Chowan, Currituck, Dare, Gates, Hyde, Pasquotank, Perquimans, 

Tyrrell and Washington, in separate sessions duly convened, by the adoption and enactment 

of this First Amendment to the 1997 Resolution by each of the Boards, do hereby modify 

and amend the 1997 Resolution as follows: 

Section 1. By replacing Articles I through VIII thereof with the following:  

ARTICLE I 

NAME 

The name of the regional planning commission shall be the ALBEMARLE 

COMMISSION. 

ARTICLE II 

ALBEMARLE COMMISSION MEMBERSHIP AND GOVERNING BOARD 

A. Albemarle Commission Membership – The Counties of Camden, Chowan, 

Currituck, Dare, Gates, Hyde, Pasquotank, Perquimans, Tyrrell and Washington shall be 

member governments of the Albemarle Commission. The Albemarle Commission shall be 

governed by a board of 15 members appointed as follows:  

1) The governing board of each member government shall appoint one 

“Commissioner” delegate who must be a member of the member 

government’s governing board. Commissioner delegates who no longer hold 

office as an elected member of their member government’s governing board 

are unable to continue as a delegate unless they can be and are approved as 

an at large delegate. 

5.D.b

Packet Pg. 56

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 2
01

9-
03

-0
1 

A
lb

em
ar

le
 C

o
m

m
is

si
o

n
  (

23
10

 :
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 2
01

9-
03

-0
1 

- 
A

lb
em

ar
le

 C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

)



2) Four additional “At Large” delegates who do not hold an elective office 

shall be initially appointed as follows:  

(a) One delegate appointed by Camden County’s governing board;  

(b) One delegate appointed by Chowan County’s governing board;  

(c) One delegate appointed by Currituck County’s governing board;  

(d) One delegate appointed by Dare County’s governing board.  

The At Large delegates appointed as of the adoption of this Resolution may 

continue to serve the remainder of their terms as set forth below. 

Successors shall thereafter be appointed by the governing board’s member 

governments in a rotating manner which order shall be determined 

alphabetically until the end of the alphabet is reached and then starting over  

(e.g., two years after the year in which this Resolution is adopted one 

delegate would be appointed by each of the following counties: Gates, Hyde, 

Pasquotank, and Perquimans; two years thereafter, one delegate would be 

appointed by each of the following counties:   Tyrrell, Washington, Camden, 

and Chowan; and the appointments would continue rotating every two years 

in this alphabetical manner). 

3) The immediate past chair shall serve for one year as an ex-officio, non-

voting member unless they can be and are appointed as a Commissioner 

Delegate or an At Large Delegate. 

The member governments are encouraged to consider making appointments that will result 

in at least four delegates being racial minorities. 

B. Terms; Removal; Vacancies – Delegates of the Albemarle Commission shall 

serve two-year terms. Terms shall be measured by calendar years but shall end on 

5.D.b

Packet Pg. 57

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 2
01

9-
03

-0
1 

A
lb

em
ar

le
 C

o
m

m
is

si
o

n
  (

23
10

 :
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 2
01

9-
03

-0
1 

- 
A

lb
em

ar
le

 C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

)



December 31, regardless of the date of appointment by the appointing authority. A 

delegate may be removed with or without cause by the appointing member government’s 

governing board. Appointment to fill vacancies shall be made for the remainder of the 

unexpired term by the respective appointing member government’s governing board.  

C. Officers; Compensation – Those officers currently serving as of the date of 

adoption of this resolution, shall continue serving until the next organizational meeting of 

the Albemarle Commission governing board. 

Thereafter, the Albemarle Commission governing board shall hold an 

organizational meeting annually in January to elect a chair, vice-chair and secretary by 

simple majority vote of those delegates present and voting at a properly constituted 

meeting. Only Commissioner delegates, i.e., those delegates who are members of a 

member government’s governing board, shall be eligible to hold an office, other than the 

non-voting office of immediate past chair. 

Delegates may be compensated and reimbursed for their expenses at an 

appropriate mileage rate by the Albemarle Commission for attendance at meetings of the 

Albemarle Commission governing board. 

ARTICLE III 

POWERS AND DUTIES 

The Albemarle Commission shall possess the following powers:  

(1) Apply for, accept, receive, and disburse funds, grants, and services made available 

to it by the State of North Carolina or any agency thereof, the federal government 

or any agency thereof, any unit of local government or any agency thereof, or any 

private or civic agency; 

(2)  Employ personnel; 

(3)  Contract with consultants; 

5.D.b

Packet Pg. 58

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 2
01

9-
03

-0
1 

A
lb

em
ar

le
 C

o
m

m
is

si
o

n
  (

23
10

 :
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 2
01

9-
03

-0
1 

- 
A

lb
em

ar
le

 C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

)



(4)  Contract for services with the State of North Carolina, any other state, the United 

States, or any agency of those governments; 

(5) Study and inventory regional goals, resources, and problems; 

(6) Prepare and amend regional development plans, which may include 

recommendations for land use within the region, recommendations concerning the 

need for and general location of public works of regional concern, 

recommendations for economic development of the region, and any other relevant 

matters; 

(7) Cooperate with and provide assistance to federal, state, other regional, and local 

planning activities within the region; 

(8) Encourage local efforts toward economic development;  

(9) Make recommendations for review and action to its member governments and 

other public agencies that perform functions within the region; 

(10) Exercise any other power necessary to the discharge of its duties. 
 

ARTICLE IV 

FINANCES 

 Funding for the Albemarle Commission’s administrative and general operational 

requirements shall, in addition to other funds which might become available, be provided 

by member governments. Each member government’s proportionate share shall be 

determined by a per capita assessment based on the most recent United States Census. 

Thereafter, the Albemarle Commission governing board shall develop and adopt, by 

simple majority vote, an annual budget for each up-coming fiscal year showing the 

anticipated contribution of each county which budget shall be submitted to the member 

governments for review and comment not later than May 1.  

 

 

5.D.b

Packet Pg. 59

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 2
01

9-
03

-0
1 

A
lb

em
ar

le
 C

o
m

m
is

si
o

n
  (

23
10

 :
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 2
01

9-
03

-0
1 

- 
A

lb
em

ar
le

 C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

)



ARTICLE V 

BUDGETARY AND FISCAL CONTROL 

 The Albemarle Commission budget and fiscal affairs shall comply with the 

procedures set forth in the Local Government Budget and Fiscal Control Act, Chapter 159, 

Subchapter III of the North Carolina General Statutes.  

 The Albemarle Commission shall cause to be made an annual audit of its books and 

records by an independent certified public accountant at the end of the each fiscal year and 

a certified copy of the audit shall be filed promptly with each member government.  

ARTICLE VI 

WITHDRAWAL 

 A member government may withdraw from the Albemarle Commission by giving 

at least two years’ written notice to the other member governments.  

ARTICLE VII 

AMENDMENTS 

 This resolution may be amended, modified or repealed by the unanimous action of 

the member governments.  

ARTICLE VIII 

DISSOLUTION 

 If the Albemarle Commission is dissolved by the unanimous action of the member 

governments then the proceeds that may be derived from the sale of the Albemarle 

Commission’s assets, less payment of debts and liabilities, shall be distributed among the 

member governments pursuant to the following formula:  

Member Government Population X Total Dollar  =  Member government’s 

Total population of    Value of Albemarle  Share 

Member governments    Commission assets 

5.D.b

Packet Pg. 60

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 2
01

9-
03

-0
1 

A
lb

em
ar

le
 C

o
m

m
is

si
o

n
  (

23
10

 :
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 2
01

9-
03

-0
1 

- 
A

lb
em

ar
le

 C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

)



 

 Section 2. All provisions of resolutions creating, amending or modifying the 1997 

Resolution which are not re-enacted by this resolution, are hereby repealed.  

 Section 3. This resolution shall take effect immediately upon its unanimous 

adoption by the Counties.  

 ADOPTED this the 4th day of March, 2019.  

 

       _________________________________ 

       Tom White, Chairman 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

_________________________ 

Karen M. Davis 

Clerk to the Board 

5.D.b

Packet Pg. 61

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 2
01

9-
03

-0
1 

A
lb

em
ar

le
 C

o
m

m
is

si
o

n
  (

23
10

 :
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 2
01

9-
03

-0
1 

- 
A

lb
em

ar
le

 C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
New Business 

 

Item Number: 5.E 

Meeting Date:   March 04, 2019 

 

Submitted By: Dan Porter, Planning Director 

 Planning & Zoning 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   Resolution 2019-03-02 Adopting UDO Administrative 

Manual 

 

Attachments: Resolution 2019-03-02 UDO Admin Manual

 (DOC) 

Camden County UDO Admin Manual (PDF) 

 

Summary: 

The Unified Development Ordinance adopted February 4, 2019 outlines the legal 

procedures and standards for development in the County.  For guidance as to 

forms and other documentation needed for staff review the UDO references an 

Administrative Manual.  

 

The attached Unified Development Administrative Manual has been prepared by 

staff and is presented for adoption by resolution of the Board of Commissioners. 
 

Recommendation: 

Motion to approve Resolution 2019-03-02 adopting the Camden County Unified 

Development Ordinance Administrative Manual dated March 4, 2019. 

5.E

Packet Pg. 62



 

 
 

Resolution 2019-03-02 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CAMDEN COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

REGARDING THE UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT ORDINANCE  

ADMINISTRATIVE MANUAL 

 

 

WHEREAS, the Camden County Board of Commissioners approved a revised 

Unified Development Ordinance (UDO) on February 4, 2019 with the same effective 

date; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Unified Development Ordinance includes the development 

procedures and standards for each type of development permit; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Unified Development Ordinance includes several references to 

an Administrative Manual for guidance on the documents and forms that need to be 

submitted for staff review; and 

 

WHEREAS, by locating this material outside the codified UDO and adopting it 

via Board of Commissioners resolution the contents of the manual may be revised 

without need of a public hearing as would be  required if application-related provisions 

are maintained as appendices in the UDO. 

 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, the Camden County Board of 

Commissioners hereby approves and adopts the Camden County Unified Development 

Ordinance Administrative Manual Dated March 4, 2019. 

 

Adopted this, the 4th day of March, 2019. 

 

 

__________________________________ 

Tom White, Chairman 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

_________________________________ 

Karen M. Davis 

Clerk to the Board          

5.E.a

Packet Pg. 63

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 2
01

9-
03

-0
2 

U
D

O
 A

d
m

in
 M

an
u

al
  (

23
11

 :
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 2
01

9-
03

-0
2 

A
d

o
p

ti
n

g
 U

D
O

 A
d

m
in

is
tr

at
iv

e 
M

an
u

al
)



  

 
  

Camden County 
Unified Development Ordinance 
Administrative Manual 

5.E.b

Packet Pg. 64

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

am
d

en
 C

o
u

n
ty

 U
D

O
 A

d
m

in
 M

an
u

al
  (

23
11

 :
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 2
01

9-
03

-0
2 

A
d

o
p

ti
n

g
 U

D
O

 A
d

m
in

is
tr

at
iv

e 
M

an
u

al
)



  

 

5.E.b

Packet Pg. 65

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

am
d

en
 C

o
u

n
ty

 U
D

O
 A

d
m

in
 M

an
u

al
  (

23
11

 :
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 2
01

9-
03

-0
2 

A
d

o
p

ti
n

g
 U

D
O

 A
d

m
in

is
tr

at
iv

e 
M

an
u

al
)



 

 i 

PURPOSE AND INTENT 
 
The purpose of this manual is to assist in the administration of the Unified 
Development Ordinance (UDO).  The manual's primary goal is to explain the 
documentation needed for development applications established in the UDO.  The 
UDO contains the various Procedures and standards for development.  In an 
effort to ease the review process, this manual also contains application forms, 
staff review checklists, and submittal and fee schedules.  The administrative 
manual consolidates information in the development review process, and helps 
applicants understand the procedures and requirements.  The intent of this 
administrative manual is more specifically to: 
 

 Establish a process that is clear and understandable to all interested 
parties, applicants and staff; 

 Clarify documentation needed for submitting complete and relevant 
information for development applications; and 

 Provide information and tools to assist applicants during the review 
process. 

 
Should you have any questions or comments about this manual please contact 
the Planning and Community Development Department at (252) 338-1919 ext. 235, 
or by email to abarnett@camdencountync.gov. 
 
 
 

 
 
 

First Edition - March 2019 
 

Administrative Manual Effective March 4, 2019

5.E.b

Packet Pg. 66

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

am
d

en
 C

o
u

n
ty

 U
D

O
 A

d
m

in
 M

an
u

al
  (

23
11

 :
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 2
01

9-
03

-0
2 

A
d

o
p

ti
n

g
 U

D
O

 A
d

m
in

is
tr

at
iv

e 
M

an
u

al
)

mailto:abarnett@camdencountync.gov?subject=Camden%20County%20Planning%20Dept%20Admin%20Manual


County of Camden, North Carolina  Administrative Manual 

 ii 

 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 

  Page# 
PURPOSE AND INTENT ......................................................................................................................................... i 
 

1. INTRODUCTION ....................................................................................................................................... 1 
 

1.1 Manual Overview ....................................................................................................................... 1 
1.2 Links to Adopted Plans, Ordinances, and Other Useful Tools .................................. 2 

1.2.1 Unified Development Ordinance ........................................................................... 2 
1.2.2 2035 Comprehensive Plan ....................................................................................... 2 
1.2.3 2005 Advance Core CAMA Land Use Plan ......................................................... 2 
1.2.4 2014 Transportation Plan ........................................................................................ 3 
1.2.5 GIS online Maps ............................................................................................................ 3 
1.2.6 Official County Zoning/Floodplain Maps ........................................................... 4 

 

2. APPLICATIONS ………. ............................................................................................................................. 6 
 

2.1 Development Review Summary Table .............................................................................. 6 
2.2 Building Permit Applications ................................................................................................ 7 

2.2.1 Residential - Stick Built House ............................................................................ 7-18 
2.2.2 Residential - Modular/Manufactured Dwellings ........................................ 19-22 
2.2.3 Other Permit Types (Non-Commercial) ......................................................... 23-26 
2.2.4 Commercial Building Permits ................................................................................ 27 
2.2.5 Additional Documents May Be Required .......................................................... 28 

2.3 Sign Permit Application ...................................................................................................... 29-30 
2.4 Land Use / Development Application ............................................................................ 31-32 
2.5 Commercial Site Plan Review Application ...................................................................... 33 

2.5.1 Major Commercial Site Plan Review ................................................................... 33 
2.5.2 Minor Commercial Site Plan Review ................................................................... 33 

2.6 Subdivisions ............................................................................................................................. 33-36 
2.6.1 Major Subdivision ................................................................................................... 33-34 

2.6.1.1 Preliminary Plat Application ................................................................... 33 
2.6.1.2 Construction Permit Application ........................................................... 34 
2.6.1.3 Final Plat Application ................................................................................. 34 

2.6.2 Minor/Expedited Subdivision Application ....................................................... 34 
2.6.3 Transfer Plat Application ........................................................................................ 35 
2.6.4 Exempt Subdivision Application ....................................................................... 35-36 

2.7 Temporary Use Permit Application ................................................................................ 37-38 
2.8 Zoning Map Amendment Application ............................................................................ 39-42 
2.9 Text Amendment Application ........................................................................................... 43-44 
2.10 Variance Application ............................................................................................................ 45-46 
2.11 Administrative Adjustment Application ....................................................................... 47-48 
2.12 Appeal Application ................................................................................................................ 49-50 

 
 
 

Hyperlink Enabled:  Control + Click on Section Number to go to section. 

 

5.E.b

Packet Pg. 67

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

am
d

en
 C

o
u

n
ty

 U
D

O
 A

d
m

in
 M

an
u

al
  (

23
11

 :
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 2
01

9-
03

-0
2 

A
d

o
p

ti
n

g
 U

D
O

 A
d

m
in

is
tr

at
iv

e 
M

an
u

al
)



County of Camden, North Carolina  Administrative Manual 

 iii 

 

TABLE OF CONTENTS (Continued) 
 

  Page# 
 

3. CERTIFICATIONS, CHECKLISTS, AND STATEMENTS ............................................................ 51-70 
 

3.1 Major Subdivision – Final Plat .......................................................................................... 51-59 
 3.1.1 Checklist - Preliminary / Final Plat .................................................................. 51-54 
 3.1.2 Additional Documents .............................................................................................. 54 
 3.1.3 Certification Blocks for Major Subdivisions .................................................. 55-59 
 3.1.4 Construction Plans ..................................................................................................... 59 
3.2 Minor/ Expedited Subdivision – Final Plat ..................................................................... 60 
 3.2.1 Certification Blocks / Statements Required.................................................. 61-64 
3.3 Transfer Subdivisions Expedited Subdivisions ......................................................... 65-66 
3.4 Site Plan ..................................................................................................................................... 66-67 

3.4.1 Residential .................................................................................................................... 66 
3.4.2 Commercial ................................................................................................................... 67 

3.5 Planned Development .......................................................................................................... 68-70 
 
APPENDIX A: CAMDEN COUNTY PLANNING DEPT FEE SCHEDULE .............................. 71-76 
 
APPENDIX B: TABLE OF INTERPRETATIONS ............................................................................. 77 

 
 

 

5.E.b

Packet Pg. 68

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

am
d

en
 C

o
u

n
ty

 U
D

O
 A

d
m

in
 M

an
u

al
  (

23
11

 :
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 2
01

9-
03

-0
2 

A
d

o
p

ti
n

g
 U

D
O

 A
d

m
in

is
tr

at
iv

e 
M

an
u

al
)



County of Camden, North Carolina  Administrative Manual 

 iv 

 
  

5.E.b

Packet Pg. 69

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

am
d

en
 C

o
u

n
ty

 U
D

O
 A

d
m

in
 M

an
u

al
  (

23
11

 :
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 2
01

9-
03

-0
2 

A
d

o
p

ti
n

g
 U

D
O

 A
d

m
in

is
tr

at
iv

e 
M

an
u

al
)



County of Camden, North Carolina  Administrative Manual 

1 

 

1.  Introduction 
 

 

Section 1.1:  Manual Overview 
 

The Camden County development review process is established by the Board of Commissioners to 
provide a framework that allows reasonable oversight by county staff and officials while ensuring 
development projects are consistent with the Unified Development Ordinance and adopted plans. 
This process provides an opportunity to not only protect the public health, safety, and welfare; but 
also allows the county to coordinate development impacts with the provision of services. 
 
To help consolidate the development process and promote efficiency, the Board of 
Commissioners has established this Administrative Manual as an aid for citizens, public 
officials, engineers, and developers. The manual includes information on requirements for 
submitting permit applications and design/review requirements. The basic intent of this 
manual is to consolidate the zoning, subdivision, and site plan review and decision making 
processes outlined in the Unified Development Ordinance in an easy to use and understandable 
document. 
 
While the Administrative Manual is not an ordinance, it is adopted by resolution of the Board of 
Commissioners and incorporated by reference within the Unified Development Ordinance. This 
allows the requirements outlined in the manual to be applied flexibly and remain reflective of 
changing economic and environmental conditions.  If the Administrator determines the manual 
needs to be amended, notice of any such change will be provided via the county website and 
maintained by the Planning and Community Development Department. 
 
Applicants are reminded this manual does not serve as a substitute for any of Camden County's 
adopted ordinances or plans and is intended only as a guide to the users of the Camden County 
Unified Development Ordinance. In case of conflict between this document and other county 
ordinances, the adopted county ordinances shall control. 
 
The specific permit procedures, zoning, design, environmental and subdivision standards are 
provided in the actual Unified Development Ordinance. 
 
A digital version of this manual is available online at the Planning and Community Development 
Department's webpage at: 
 

https://www.camdencountync.gov/departments/planning-zoning/official-plans-
documents 

  

5.E.b

Packet Pg. 70

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

am
d

en
 C

o
u

n
ty

 U
D

O
 A

d
m

in
 M

an
u

al
  (

23
11

 :
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 2
01

9-
03

-0
2 

A
d

o
p

ti
n

g
 U

D
O

 A
d

m
in

is
tr

at
iv

e 
M

an
u

al
)

https://www.camdencountync.gov/departments/planning-zoning/official-plans-documents
https://www.camdencountync.gov/departments/planning-zoning/official-plans-documents


County of Camden, North Carolina  Administrative Manual 

2 

 
Section 1.2:  Links to Adopted Plans, Ordinances, and Other Useful Tools 
 

The following is a list of adopted plans and ordinances, and tools used to help implement them. 
The plans, ordinances, and tools may be referenced within this manual. 
 

1.2.1 Unified Development Ordinance 
 

The purpose of the Unified Development Ordinance (UDO) is to protect the public 
health, safety and general welfare of the citizens and landowners of Camden County, 
and to implement the policies and objectives of county-adopted plans addressing 
the county's growth and development. The items in this manual are to assist in the 
administration of the rules, regulations, and review procedures of the UDO. 
 

The UDO can be found online at: 
 

http://www.camdencountync.gov/phocadownload/departments/planning/
udo-rewrite/Camden-County-UDO-Final_01152019.pdf 

 

1.2.2 Camden County 2035 Comprehensive Plan 
 

The Land Use Plan is intended to provide a framework that will guide local 
government officials and private citizens as they make day-to-day and long-term 
decisions affecting development. Serving as the overall "blueprint" for development 
of Camden County, the Land Use Plan aims to have the most suitable and 
appropriate use of land and provision of public services. The goals and policies of 
the Land Use Plan are implemented through the Unified Development Ordinance. 
 

Actions taken by the Board of Commissioners related to zoning map or text 
amendments must include a statement indicating the consistency or inconsistence 
of the action as it relates to the Comprehensive Plan. 
 

The Camden County 2035 Comprehensive Plan can be found online at: 
 

http://www.camdencountync.gov/government/comprehensive-plan/2035-
comprehensive-plan 

 

1.2.3 2005 Advance Core CAMA Land Use Plan 
 

The 2005 Advance Core CAMA Land Use Plan is intended to provide a framework 
that will guide local government officials and private citizens as they make day-to-
day and long-term decisions affecting development. Serving as a “blueprint” for 
development of Camden County, the Land Use Plan aims to have the most suitable 
and appropriate use of land and provision of public services. The goals and policies 
of the Land Use Plan are implemented through Camden County’s Unified 
Development Ordinance.   
 

Actions taken by the Board of Commissioners related to zoning map or text 
amendments must include a statement indicating the consistency or inconsistence 
of the action as it relates to the CAMA Land Use Plan. 
 

The CAMA Land Use Plan can be viewed at the Camden County Planning Department 
office.  

5.E.b

Packet Pg. 71

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

am
d

en
 C

o
u

n
ty

 U
D

O
 A

d
m

in
 M

an
u

al
  (

23
11

 :
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 2
01

9-
03

-0
2 

A
d

o
p

ti
n

g
 U

D
O

 A
d

m
in

is
tr

at
iv

e 
M

an
u

al
)

http://www.camdencountync.gov/phocadownload/departments/planning/udo-rewrite/Camden-County-UDO-Final_01152019.pdf
http://www.camdencountync.gov/phocadownload/departments/planning/udo-rewrite/Camden-County-UDO-Final_01152019.pdf
http://www.camdencountync.gov/government/comprehensive-plan/2035-comprehensive-plan
http://www.camdencountync.gov/government/comprehensive-plan/2035-comprehensive-plan


County of Camden, North Carolina  Administrative Manual 

3 

 
1.2.4 2014 Comprehensive Transportation Plan 

 
Camden’s 2014 Comprehensive Transportation Plan (CTP) is a long range plan that 
identifies major transportation improvement needs in the study area. These needs 
are determined with the best information available including, but not limited to, 
population, economic conditions, traffic trends, and patterns of land development. 
The CTP is a multi-modal plan, which in addition to highway users addresses the 
concerns of transit users, bicyclists, and pedestrians. The plan develops long term 
solutions and recommendations for the next 25 to 30 years by promoting and 
providing safe, efficient, cost-effective and environmentally sensitive use of the 
transportation system, while addressing current and future travel needs. 
 
Actions taken by the Board of Commissioners related to zoning map or text 
amendments must include a statement indicating the consistency or inconsistence 
of the action as it relates to the Comprehensive Transportation Plan. 
 
Camden’s 2014 Comprehensive Transportation Plan (CTP) can be viewed online at: 
 

http://www.camdencountync.gov/phocadownload/departments/planning/
CamdenCountyCTPReport.pdf 

 
1.2.5 GIS online Maps 

 
The Camden County Geographic Information Services (GIS) Online Mapping 
Application gives users information on property in the county.  Users can locate a 
specific property and access data on it such as its zoning, flood zone, and ownership, 
and look at aerial photography.  
 
GIS Maps are not intended to be surveys and should not be used as such.  Please 
note that the data reflected on the GIS maps is the most current spatial data 
available.  Every effort has been made to insure that the information offered is 
correct and up-to-date, however, complete accuracy cannot be guaranteed.  If you 
need an official record of your property boundaries, it is suggested that you have 
your property surveyed. 
 
The Interactive Online Mapping can be found at 
 

https://maps2.roktech.net/ROKMAPS_Camden/ 
 

  

5.E.b

Packet Pg. 72

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

am
d

en
 C

o
u

n
ty

 U
D

O
 A

d
m

in
 M

an
u

al
  (

23
11

 :
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 2
01

9-
03

-0
2 

A
d

o
p

ti
n

g
 U

D
O

 A
d

m
in

is
tr

at
iv

e 
M

an
u

al
)

http://www.camdencountync.gov/phocadownload/departments/planning/CamdenCountyCTPReport.pdf
http://www.camdencountync.gov/phocadownload/departments/planning/CamdenCountyCTPReport.pdf
https://maps2.roktech.net/ROKMAPS_Camden/


County of Camden, North Carolina  Administrative Manual 

4 

 
1.2.6 Camden County’s Official Zoning/Floodplain Map 

 
Camden's Official Zoning and Floodplain Map may be viewed by using the Camden 
County Online GIS System or by visiting the Camden County Planning Department. 
 
Zoning is the way the governments control the physical development of land and the 
kinds of uses to which each individual property may be put. Zoning laws typically 
specify the areas in which residential, industrial, recreational or commercial 
activities may take place. 
 
To view the Zoning Map on the online GIS, click "Map Layers" on the left hand side of 
the screen.  Make sure the Layer List is showing, if it is not, click "Layer List" at the 
top of the sub-menu.  Click on the word "Boundaries", then place a check in the box 
next to "Zoning".  The zoning designations are color coded, to see the legend, click 
"Legend" at the top of the sub-menu. 
 
Floodplain maps identify areas that experience periodic flooding from nearby rivers, 
lakes, and streams, and provide information on the spatial distribution of flood 
construction levels.  These areas are designated as floodplains.  Camden County 
utilizes the Official FEMA Floodplain Map. 
 
To view the Floodplain Map on the online GIS, click "Map Layers" on the left hand 
side of the screen.  Make sure the Layer List is showing, if it is not, click "Layer List" 
at the top of the sub-menu.  Click on the words "Flood Data", then place a check in 
the box next to "Flood Zones".  The Flood Zone designations are color coded, to see 
the legend, click "Legend" at the top of the sub-menu. 
 
  

5.E.b

Packet Pg. 73

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

am
d

en
 C

o
u

n
ty

 U
D

O
 A

d
m

in
 M

an
u

al
  (

23
11

 :
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 2
01

9-
03

-0
2 

A
d

o
p

ti
n

g
 U

D
O

 A
d

m
in

is
tr

at
iv

e 
M

an
u

al
)



County of Camden, North Carolina  Administrative Manual 

5 

 
This page left intentionally blank.  

5.E.b

Packet Pg. 74

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

am
d

en
 C

o
u

n
ty

 U
D

O
 A

d
m

in
 M

an
u

al
  (

23
11

 :
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 2
01

9-
03

-0
2 

A
d

o
p

ti
n

g
 U

D
O

 A
d

m
in

is
tr

at
iv

e 
M

an
u

al
)



County of Camden, North Carolina  Administrative Manual 

6 

 

2.  PROCEDURES & APPLICATIONS 
 

 
Section 2.1:  Development Review Summary Table 
 

Table 2.1, Development Review Procedures, identifies the advisory and decision-making bodies 
responsible for making recommendations or decisions on development applications reviewed 
under the Unified Development Ordinance. The table also identifies the development applications 
requiring a public hearing. 
 

TABLE 2.3.3: SPECIFIC REVIEW PROCEDURES SUMMARY TABLE 

Pre-application Conference: “M” = Mandatory     “O” = Optional     “·” = not applicable 
Type of Action: “R”=Recommendation     “D”=Decision     “A”=Appeal 

Table symbols: < >=Legislative Public Hearing     / \ =Quasi-Judicial Hearing      “·” = not applicable     [ ] = see Notes 

REVIEW PROCEDURE 

S
E

C
T

IO
N

 

R
E

F
E

R
E

N
C

E
 

P
R

E
- 

A
P

P
L

IC
A

T
IO

N
 

REVIEW AUTHORITIES 

UDO 

ADMINISTRATOR 
BUILDING 

INSPECTOR 

PLANNING 

BOARD 

[1] 

BOARD OF 

COMMISSIONERS 
BOARD OF 

ADJUSTMENT 

Administrative Adjustment  2.3.4 M D · · · /A\ 

Appeal 2.3.5 O · · · · /D\ 

Building Permit 2.3.6 · · D · · /A\ 

Certificate of Occupancy  2.3.7 · · D · · /A\ 

Development Agreement  2.3.8 M · · R <D> · 

Exempt Subdivision 2.3.9 · D · · · /A\ 

Expedited Subdivision  2.3.10 · D · · · /A\ 

Fill Permit 2.3.11 O D · · · /A\ 

Final Plat 2.3.12 O D · · · /A\ 

Floodplain Development Permit 2.3.14 · D · · · /A\ 

Interpretation 2.3.15 O D · · · /A\ 

Major Site Plan 2.3.16 M · · <D> · /A\ 

Minor Site Plan 2.3.17 O D · · · /A\ 

Minor Subdivision 2.3.18 O D · · · /A\ 

Planned Development 2.3.19 M · · R <D> · 

Preliminary Plat 2.3.20 M [2] · R <D> · 

Sign Permit 2.3.21 O D · · · /A\ 

Special Use Permit 2.3.22 M · · · /D\ · 

Temporary Use Permit  2.3.23 O D · · · /A\ 

Transfer Plat 2.3.24 O D · · · /A\ 

UDO Text Amendment 2.3.25 M · · R <D> · 

Variance 2.3.26 M · · · · /D\ [3] 

Vested Rights Determination  2.3.27 M · · · <D> · 

Watershed Protection Permit 2.3.28 O · D · · /A\ 

Zoning Compliance Permit 2.3.29 O D · · · /A\ 

Zoning Map Amendment 2.3.30 M · · R <D> · 

NOTES: 

[1] Applications subject to a recommendation by the Planning Board shall be heard by the Planning Board during a public 
meeting, but public meetings are not subject to public notification requirements in Section 2.2.6, Public Notice, of the UDO. 
[2] The TRC shall review applications for preliminary plats prior to consideration by the Planning Board. 
[3] Applications for a major variance to the watershed protection provisions are decided by the NC Environmental 
Management Commission following a recommendation by the Board of Adjustment. 

  

5.E.b

Packet Pg. 75

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

am
d

en
 C

o
u

n
ty

 U
D

O
 A

d
m

in
 M

an
u

al
  (

23
11

 :
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 2
01

9-
03

-0
2 

A
d

o
p

ti
n

g
 U

D
O

 A
d

m
in

is
tr

at
iv

e 
M

an
u

al
)



County of Camden, North Carolina  Administrative Manual 

7 

 
Section 2.2:  Building Permits 
 

2.2.1  Residential Permits - Stick Built Houses 
 

Requirements (Please Note - Newly purchased land - deed must be recorded prior to 
application): 
 

 Site Plan Drawing - show where dwelling is to placed on property, include septic system location 

 Building Plans 

 Elevation Certificate (if in a flood zone) 

 CAMA Permit (Waterfront property only) 
o Contact info for Coastal Area Management Agency: 

 Field Representative: Lynn Mathis 

 401 S. Griffin Street, Elizabeth City, NC, 27909 

 Phone: (252) 264-3901, Fax: (252) 331-2951 

 Septic Permit (obtain from Camden County Health Department) 
o Contact info for Camden County Health Dept.: 

 Contact Person: Kevin Carver or David Sweeny 

 P. O. Box 72, 160 US Hwy 158 East #B, Camden, NC, 27921 

 Phone: (252) 338-4460, Fax: (252) 338-4475 

 All Taxes on Property Must Be Paid PRIOR to Application 

 Water Tap Fee Must Be Paid (or proof of existing water tap provided) PRIOR to Application 
o For Addresses in Camden and Shiloh:  Camden County Water Department 

 Contact Person: Dawn Lowry 

 117 NC 343 North, Camden, NC, 27921 

 Phone: (252) 338-1919 x 236 
o For addresses in South Mills:  South Mills Water Association 

 Contact Person: Regina Russell 

 103 Halstead Street, South Mills, NC, 27976 

 Phone: (252) 771-5620 

 Liens NC - Contractors of all new residential construction (dwellings) must apply for and obtain a lien 
agent (title insurance) for each individual single family dwelling project undertaken. 

o Instructions for obtaining your lien agent may be found on the Planning Department landing 
page located at http://www.camdencountync.gov/departments/planning-zoning/building-
permits . 

o Links to PDF documents for the Instructions, pre-application worksheet, list of agents, and 
designation form as well as the link to LiensNC.com are located on the webpage mentioned 
above. 

o Once you have completed this process, Liens NC will present you with a page which has a square 

QR Code ( ).  This is the page you will print out and include a copy of with your building permit 

application. 

 Fill Permit - Required for all permits regardless of whether fill is to be placed on the subject property for 
the purpose of raising the property's base elevation.  Does not include fill placed for the septic system or 
the house pad.  If not placing fill (other than for septic or house pad), check the "No" box at top of form 
and fill in applicable fields. 

o Fill Permit Application may be found at 
http://www.camdencountync.gov/forms/planning/fillpermit.pdf.  And a copy of application is 
included after permit application for your convenience. 

 

Full application package is available at: 
http://www.camdencountync.gov/phocadownload/departments/planning/permits/house_stick_built/ 
SFDAppPack.pdf  

5.E.b

Packet Pg. 76

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

am
d

en
 C

o
u

n
ty

 U
D

O
 A

d
m

in
 M

an
u

al
  (

23
11

 :
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 2
01

9-
03

-0
2 

A
d

o
p

ti
n

g
 U

D
O

 A
d

m
in

is
tr

at
iv

e 
M

an
u

al
)

http://www.camdencountync.gov/departments/planning-zoning/building-permits
http://www.camdencountync.gov/departments/planning-zoning/building-permits
http://www.camdencountync.gov/forms/planning/fillpermit.pdf
http://www.camdencountync.gov/phocadownload/departments/planning/permits/house_stick_built/SFDAppPack.pdf
http://www.camdencountync.gov/phocadownload/departments/planning/permits/house_stick_built/SFDAppPack.pdf


County of Camden, North Carolina  Administrative Manual 

8 

 
This page left intentionally blank.  

5.E.b

Packet Pg. 77

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

am
d

en
 C

o
u

n
ty

 U
D

O
 A

d
m

in
 M

an
u

al
  (

23
11

 :
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 2
01

9-
03

-0
2 

A
d

o
p

ti
n

g
 U

D
O

 A
d

m
in

is
tr

at
iv

e 
M

an
u

al
)



County of Camden, North Carolina  Administrative Manual 

9 

 

 
 

  

5.E.b

Packet Pg. 78

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

am
d

en
 C

o
u

n
ty

 U
D

O
 A

d
m

in
 M

an
u

al
  (

23
11

 :
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 2
01

9-
03

-0
2 

A
d

o
p

ti
n

g
 U

D
O

 A
d

m
in

is
tr

at
iv

e 
M

an
u

al
)



County of Camden, North Carolina  Administrative Manual 

10 

 

 

 
  

5.E.b

Packet Pg. 79

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

am
d

en
 C

o
u

n
ty

 U
D

O
 A

d
m

in
 M

an
u

al
  (

23
11

 :
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 2
01

9-
03

-0
2 

A
d

o
p

ti
n

g
 U

D
O

 A
d

m
in

is
tr

at
iv

e 
M

an
u

al
)



County of Camden, North Carolina  Administrative Manual 

11 

 

 

 
 

NOTE:  If all framing members (floor, ceiling joist and rafters) are not of the same size, then all rooms shall be 
listed on a separate page specifying the above framing members sizes and clear spans for each room. 

  

5.E.b

Packet Pg. 80

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

am
d

en
 C

o
u

n
ty

 U
D

O
 A

d
m

in
 M

an
u

al
  (

23
11

 :
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 2
01

9-
03

-0
2 

A
d

o
p

ti
n

g
 U

D
O

 A
d

m
in

is
tr

at
iv

e 
M

an
u

al
)



County of Camden, North Carolina  Administrative Manual 

12 

 

 
 
The applicant listed below, certifies that all information in this application is correct and hereby agrees to 
have the subject building(s) erected or altered in accordance with the N.C. State Building Code(s) and any 
other applicable local code. 
 
 
Signature:     Date:    
 (Owner / Applicant) 
 
Reviewed By:     Date:    
 (Inspector) 
 

A floor plan, with all rooms and buildings indicated shall be drawn on a site plan and submitted with this 
application.  The site plan shall show the dimensions of the property, buildings, rooms, existing, and 
proposed buildings with existing or proposed set backs from the property lines, off-street parking spaces 
and any required landscaping buffer strips when applicable.  Said plan shall be neat and show accurate 
dimensions. 

 
  

5.E.b

Packet Pg. 81

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

am
d

en
 C

o
u

n
ty

 U
D

O
 A

d
m

in
 M

an
u

al
  (

23
11

 :
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 2
01

9-
03

-0
2 

A
d

o
p

ti
n

g
 U

D
O

 A
d

m
in

is
tr

at
iv

e 
M

an
u

al
)



County of Camden, North Carolina  Administrative Manual 

13 

 

 

Fill 
Permit 

Application 

 OFFICIAL USE ONLY: 
 

UDO Number:  
 

Date Filed:  
 

Amount Paid:  
 

Received By:  

 

 

 
  

5.E.b

Packet Pg. 82

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

am
d

en
 C

o
u

n
ty

 U
D

O
 A

d
m

in
 M

an
u

al
  (

23
11

 :
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 2
01

9-
03

-0
2 

A
d

o
p

ti
n

g
 U

D
O

 A
d

m
in

is
tr

at
iv

e 
M

an
u

al
)



County of Camden, North Carolina  Administrative Manual 

14 

 
   Submittal Checklist & Requirements (If placing fill to raise elevation of lot): 

 

 
  

5.E.b

Packet Pg. 83

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

am
d

en
 C

o
u

n
ty

 U
D

O
 A

d
m

in
 M

an
u

al
  (

23
11

 :
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 2
01

9-
03

-0
2 

A
d

o
p

ti
n

g
 U

D
O

 A
d

m
in

is
tr

at
iv

e 
M

an
u

al
)



County of Camden, North Carolina  Administrative Manual 

15 

 

 

Culvert & Ditch 
Certification 

 OFFICIAL USE ONLY: 
 

UDO Number:  
 

Date Filed:  
 

Received By:  

 

 

 
  

5.E.b

Packet Pg. 84

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

am
d

en
 C

o
u

n
ty

 U
D

O
 A

d
m

in
 M

an
u

al
  (

23
11

 :
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 2
01

9-
03

-0
2 

A
d

o
p

ti
n

g
 U

D
O

 A
d

m
in

is
tr

at
iv

e 
M

an
u

al
)



County of Camden, North Carolina  Administrative Manual 

16 

 
This page left intentionally blank. 
  

5.E.b

Packet Pg. 85

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

am
d

en
 C

o
u

n
ty

 U
D

O
 A

d
m

in
 M

an
u

al
  (

23
11

 :
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 2
01

9-
03

-0
2 

A
d

o
p

ti
n

g
 U

D
O

 A
d

m
in

is
tr

at
iv

e 
M

an
u

al
)



County of Camden, North Carolina  Administrative Manual 

17 

 

 

Trade 
Affidavit 

 OFFICIAL USE ONLY: 
 

UDO Number:  
 

Date Filed:  
 

Received By:  

 

Per Camden County Chief Building Inspector,  
NO Rough-In Inspection will be performed UNLESS ALL TRADE  

CONTRACTORS FOR CONSTRUCTION PROJECT HAVE SUBMITTED FORMS: 
 

CAMDEN COUNTY 
BUILDING INSPECTIONS DEPARTMENT 

P. O. BOX 74, CAMDEN, NC  27921 
PH:  252-338-1919 EXT 227 

FAX:  252-333-1603 

  

  

5.E.b

Packet Pg. 86

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

am
d

en
 C

o
u

n
ty

 U
D

O
 A

d
m

in
 M

an
u

al
  (

23
11

 :
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 2
01

9-
03

-0
2 

A
d

o
p

ti
n

g
 U

D
O

 A
d

m
in

is
tr

at
iv

e 
M

an
u

al
)



County of Camden, North Carolina  Administrative Manual 

18 

 
This page left intentionally blank.  

5.E.b

Packet Pg. 87

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

am
d

en
 C

o
u

n
ty

 U
D

O
 A

d
m

in
 M

an
u

al
  (

23
11

 :
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 2
01

9-
03

-0
2 

A
d

o
p

ti
n

g
 U

D
O

 A
d

m
in

is
tr

at
iv

e 
M

an
u

al
)



County of Camden, North Carolina  Administrative Manual 

19 

 
Section 2.2:  Building Permits (Continued) 
 

2.2.2  Residential Permits - Modular / Manufactured Dwelling Applications 
 

Requirements (Please Note - Newly purchased land - deed must be recorded prior to 
application): 
 

 Site Plan Drawing - show where dwelling is to placed on property, include septic system location 
 Building Plans / Setup Manual as applicable 
 Elevation Certificate (if in a flood zone) 
 CAMA Permit (Waterfront property only) 

o Contact info for Coastal Area Management Agency: 
 Field Representative: Lynn Mathis 
 401 S. Griffin Street, Elizabeth City, NC, 27909 
 Phone: (252) 264-3901, Fax: (252) 331-2951 

 Septic Permit (obtain from Camden County Health Department) 
o Contact info for Camden County Health Dept.: 

 Contact Person: Kevin Carver or David Sweeny 
 P. O. Box 72, 160 US Hwy 158 East #B, Camden, NC, 27921 
 Phone: (252) 338-4460, Fax: (252) 338-4475 

 All Taxes on Property Must Be Paid PRIOR to Application 
 Water Tap Fee Must Be Paid (or proof of existing water tap provided) PRIOR to Application 

o For Addresses in Camden and Shiloh:  Camden County Water Department 
 Contact Person: Dawn Lowry 
 117 NC 343 North, Camden, NC, 27921 
 Phone: (252) 338-1919 x 236 

o For addresses in South Mills:  South Mills Water Association 
 Contact Person: Regina Russell 
 103 Halstead Street, South Mills, NC, 27976 
 Phone: (252) 771-5620 

 Liens NC - Contractors of all new residential construction (dwellings) must apply for and obtain a lien 
agent (title insurance) for each individual single family dwelling project undertaken. 

o Instructions for obtaining your lien agent may be found on the Planning Department landing 
page located at http://www.camdencountync.gov/departments/planning-zoning/building-
permits . 

o PDF documents for the Instructions, pre-application worksheet, list of agents, and designation 
form are located just under the NC GS code  as is the link to the LiensNC.com website where you 
will apply for your lien agent. 

o Once you have completed this process, Liens NC will present you with a page which has a square 

QR Code ( ).  This is the page you will print out and include a copy of with your building permit 

application. 
 Fill Permit - Required for all permits regardless of whether fill is to be placed on the subject property for 

the purpose of raising the property's base elevation out of the flood zone.  Does not include fill placed for 
the septic system or the house pad.  If not placing fill (other than for septic or house pad), check the "No" 
box at top of form and fill in applicable fields. 

o Fill Permit Application may be found at: 
http://www.camdencountync.gov/forms/planning/fillpermit.pdf .  Also, a printed copy is 
available in this manual, see section 2.2.1. 

 Trade Affidavits for Trade / Setup Contractors.  See Section 2.2.1. 
 Full modular dwelling application package is available at: 

http://www.camdencountync.gov/phocadownload/departments/planning/permits/ 
Modular_Dwelling/modular_app_pack.pdf 

 Full HUD dwelling (1,2,3 wide) application package is available at: 
http://www.camdencountync.gov/phocadownload/departments/planning/permits/ 
HUD_Dwelling/hud_app_pack.pdf   

5.E.b

Packet Pg. 88

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

am
d

en
 C

o
u

n
ty

 U
D

O
 A

d
m

in
 M

an
u

al
  (

23
11

 :
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 2
01

9-
03

-0
2 

A
d

o
p

ti
n

g
 U

D
O

 A
d

m
in

is
tr

at
iv

e 
M

an
u

al
)

http://www.camdencountync.gov/departments/planning-zoning/building-permits
http://www.camdencountync.gov/departments/planning-zoning/building-permits
http://www.camdencountync.gov/forms/planning/fillpermit.pdf
http://www.camdencountync.gov/phocadownload/departments/planning/permits/Modular_Dwelling/modular_app_pack.pdf
http://www.camdencountync.gov/phocadownload/departments/planning/permits/Modular_Dwelling/modular_app_pack.pdf
http://www.camdencountync.gov/phocadownload/departments/planning/permits/HUD_Dwelling/hud_app_pack.pdf
http://www.camdencountync.gov/phocadownload/departments/planning/permits/HUD_Dwelling/hud_app_pack.pdf


County of Camden, North Carolina  Administrative Manual 

20 

 
This page left intentionally blank. 
  

5.E.b

Packet Pg. 89

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

am
d

en
 C

o
u

n
ty

 U
D

O
 A

d
m

in
 M

an
u

al
  (

23
11

 :
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 2
01

9-
03

-0
2 

A
d

o
p

ti
n

g
 U

D
O

 A
d

m
in

is
tr

at
iv

e 
M

an
u

al
)



County of Camden, North Carolina  Administrative Manual 

21 

 

 
  

5.E.b

Packet Pg. 90

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

am
d

en
 C

o
u

n
ty

 U
D

O
 A

d
m

in
 M

an
u

al
  (

23
11

 :
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 2
01

9-
03

-0
2 

A
d

o
p

ti
n

g
 U

D
O

 A
d

m
in

is
tr

at
iv

e 
M

an
u

al
)



County of Camden, North Carolina  Administrative Manual 

22 

 

 

 
 

Affidavit of Application 
 
I hereby certify that I have the authority to make the necessary applications, that the applications are correct, and that the construction will conform to the regulations in the 
Building, Plumbing, Insulation, and Mechanical Codes, as well as all other Local and State laws and/or ordinances.  I hereby certify and guarantee that prior to the 
commencement of any work performed, I / we shall have obtained the necessary permits authorizing said work and also do acknowledge that unless I fully comply with all 
State and Local regulations governing those permits heretofore issued, they shall be void and of no further force of effect.  This shall result in the automatic revocation of all 
permits of authorization issued.  If I / we have not obtained the necessary permits required prior to commencement of any work performed, this too shall result in automatic 
revocation of any permits and all authorization to proceed with work. 

 
 
      
Issuing Officer, Permit Clerk  Signature of Applicant Date 
 
**The following items shall be required before final inspection and certification of occupancy is released:  (1) Certificate of Elevation (if required); (2) Certificate of authorized contractors (Electrical, 
Mechanical, Plumbing) attached as "Exhibit A", and by references, incorporated herein as if set forth verbatim.  Please Note:  If you choose to use a sub-contractor and have not listed them on your 
application, you will need to provide this information to the Planning Department clerk before scheduling your inspections.  Failure to do so may result in reinspection fees.  You may contact the 
Planning Department Clerk at (252) 338-1919 ext 235.  

5.E.b

Packet Pg. 91

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

am
d

en
 C

o
u

n
ty

 U
D

O
 A

d
m

in
 M

an
u

al
  (

23
11

 :
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 2
01

9-
03

-0
2 

A
d

o
p

ti
n

g
 U

D
O

 A
d

m
in

is
tr

at
iv

e 
M

an
u

al
)



County of Camden, North Carolina  Administrative Manual 

23 

 
Section 2.2:  Building Permits (Continued) 
 

2.2.3  Other Permit Types (Non-Commercial) 

 
Other types of non-dwelling residential permits include but are not limited to such permit 
types as: 
 

 Additions* 
 Renovations* 
 Garages (attached and detached)* 
 Storage sheds* 
 Storage buildings* 
 Signs (see requirements section 2.3) 

 Decks 
 Pole barns and car ports 
 Lean to 
 Covered porches 
 Swimming pools and spas (above and in-ground)* 
 Bulkheads, boat lifts, piers, and any other marine structures 
 Trade related permits (electrical, mechanical [hvac], plumbing, gas), etc. 
 Demolitions (please include a signed & notarized statement from owner authorizing 

demolition of an existing structure). 
 
These types of permits all generally require a site plan to show where the accessory 
structure will be placed on the property (with the exception of trade permits which are 
generally just an application).  Building plans are also generally required to show how the 
construction of such accessory structure is to be undertaken. 
 
Health Department release in the form of an "Existing Systems Check" is also generally 
required so that we know that you know where your septic drain lines are located so you 
do not build on top of them or any part of your septic system. 
 
Site plans and building plans for these types of permits need not be computer generated, 
they can be hand drawn and do not have to be perfect.  Certain types of these permits may 
require additional detail in the plan drawings, so check with the Camden County Building 
Inspector for requirements with regard to marine structures and larger accessory 
structures. 
 
*Some of these types of permits are or may be made into master permits which include all 
trades (electrical, mechanical/hvac, plumbing, etc) if the applicant pays the fees necessary 
to cover the trade contractors.  In such events, trade contractors on such projects would 
need to submit a trade affidavit.  See section 2.2.1 for the Trade Affidavit form. 
 
The application form for these types of permits is our general permit application, images of 
which are located on the next 2 pages: 

  

5.E.b

Packet Pg. 92

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

am
d

en
 C

o
u

n
ty

 U
D

O
 A

d
m

in
 M

an
u

al
  (

23
11

 :
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 2
01

9-
03

-0
2 

A
d

o
p

ti
n

g
 U

D
O

 A
d

m
in

is
tr

at
iv

e 
M

an
u

al
)



County of Camden, North Carolina  Administrative Manual 

24 

 
This page left intentionally blank. 
  

5.E.b

Packet Pg. 93

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

am
d

en
 C

o
u

n
ty

 U
D

O
 A

d
m

in
 M

an
u

al
  (

23
11

 :
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 2
01

9-
03

-0
2 

A
d

o
p

ti
n

g
 U

D
O

 A
d

m
in

is
tr

at
iv

e 
M

an
u

al
)



County of Camden, North Carolina  Administrative Manual 

25 

 

 
  

5.E.b

Packet Pg. 94

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

am
d

en
 C

o
u

n
ty

 U
D

O
 A

d
m

in
 M

an
u

al
  (

23
11

 :
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 2
01

9-
03

-0
2 

A
d

o
p

ti
n

g
 U

D
O

 A
d

m
in

is
tr

at
iv

e 
M

an
u

al
)



County of Camden, North Carolina  Administrative Manual 

26 

 

 

  
 

  

5.E.b

Packet Pg. 95

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

am
d

en
 C

o
u

n
ty

 U
D

O
 A

d
m

in
 M

an
u

al
  (

23
11

 :
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 2
01

9-
03

-0
2 

A
d

o
p

ti
n

g
 U

D
O

 A
d

m
in

is
tr

at
iv

e 
M

an
u

al
)



County of Camden, North Carolina  Administrative Manual 

27 

 
Section 2.2:  Building Permits (Continued) 
 

2.2.4  Commercial Building Permits 

 
Commercial building permits may require many different types of documents / plans prior 
to application for the actual building permit.  These may include but are not limited to: 
 

 Copy of approved Site Plan Drawings 
 Building Plans to include front, side and rear elevations with design details in 

accordance with Article 151.5 of the Unified Development Ordinance. 
 Appendix B 
 Elevation Certificate (if in a flood zone) 
 CAMA Permit (Waterfront property only) 

o Contact info for Coastal Area Management Agency: 
 Field Representative: Lynn Mathis 
 401 S. Griffin Street, Elizabeth City, NC, 27909 
 Phone: (252) 264-3901, Fax: (252) 331-2951 

 Septic Permit (obtain from Camden County Health Department) if applicable.   
o Contact info for Camden County Health Dept.: 

 Contact Person: Kevin Carver or David Sweeny 
 P. O. Box 72, 160 US Hwy 158 East #B, Camden, NC, 27921 
 Phone: (252) 338-4460, Fax: (252) 338-4475 

 If Sewer is available to location of building,  mandatory hook-up required. 
 All Taxes on Property Must Be Paid PRIOR to Application 
 Water Tap Fee Must Be Paid (or proof of existing water tap provided) PRIOR to 

Application 
o For Addresses in Camden and Shiloh:  Camden County Water Department 

 Contact Person: Dawn Lowry 
 117 NC 343 North, Camden, NC, 27921 
 Phone: (252) 338-1919 x 236 

o For addresses in South Mills:  South Mills Water Association 
 Contact Person: Regina Russell 
 103 Halstead Street, South Mills, NC, 27976 
 Phone: (252) 771-5620 

Full application package for commercial buildings is the same as that for the Stick Built 
Single Family Dwelling and is available at: 
http://www.camdencountync.gov/phocadownload/departments/planning/ 
permits/house_stick_built/SFDAppPack.pdf 
 
Additional forms may be required for commercial buildings that are not required for 
residential structures.  Check with the Camden County Building Inspector or Zoning Officer 
for more details. 
 
Depending on the type of commercial permit, either the stick built house permit application 
or the general application may be used (included herein on previous pages in their 
respective sections).  

5.E.b

Packet Pg. 96

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

am
d

en
 C

o
u

n
ty

 U
D

O
 A

d
m

in
 M

an
u

al
  (

23
11

 :
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 2
01

9-
03

-0
2 

A
d

o
p

ti
n

g
 U

D
O

 A
d

m
in

is
tr

at
iv

e 
M

an
u

al
)

http://www.camdencountync.gov/phocadownload/departments/planning/permits/house_stick_built/SFDAppPack.pdf
http://www.camdencountync.gov/phocadownload/departments/planning/permits/house_stick_built/SFDAppPack.pdf


County of Camden, North Carolina  Administrative Manual 

28 

 
2.2.5  Additional Documents May Be Required 
 

After issuance of a permit, but before certain inspections can be performed by the building 
inspector or a certificate of occupancy issued, certain types of documentation must be 
submitted.  These include but are not limited to: 

 Trade Affidavits 
o Each contractor who does work on a job that is collectively considered a 

master permit (such as a dwelling, commercial building, or other such permit 
wherein such contractor did not initiate the permit process) must fill out and 
submit a Trade Affidavit form which verifies by signature of contractor that 
such contractor is in fact the one who did the indicated work.  If at any point 
after a trade affidavit is submitted, there is a change in contractor for the 
same trade, a new Trade Affidavit must be submitted with the new 
contractor indicated, and the date that such contractor assumed the work. 

 Culvert & Ditch Certification 
 Elevation Certificates - Building under construction, and Final 
 Energy Forms - Energy Efficiency, Air Sealing, and Duct Leakage Test 
 Termite Treatment Affidavit (from pest control company) 
 Final Septic Permit / Health Department Release 
 

All forms listed above may be downloaded from our website and are included in the 
SFD Application Package (pdf). 

  

5.E.b

Packet Pg. 97

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

am
d

en
 C

o
u

n
ty

 U
D

O
 A

d
m

in
 M

an
u

al
  (

23
11

 :
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 2
01

9-
03

-0
2 

A
d

o
p

ti
n

g
 U

D
O

 A
d

m
in

is
tr

at
iv

e 
M

an
u

al
)



County of Camden, North Carolina  Administrative Manual 

29 

 
Section 2.3:  Sign Permit 

 
Signs are an accessory use that is generally used by commercial businesses.  Permits are 
required for the placement of signs, be they small, medium, or large in size, whether 
they are for temporary or permanent use, with or without electrical components, etc. 
 
Documentation required for a sign permit is as follows: 
 

 2 Page General Building Permit Application (see section 2.2.3) 
o Indicate type of sign (e.g. On-Premise Wall Sign, Monument Sign, 

Freestanding Sign, etc.) in project description.  Include Location, Sign 
Dimensions (LxWxH), and Square Footage.  For more information regarding 
sign dimensions and square footage, refer to UDO Section 10.2.14. 

 Site Plan showing where sign is to be located 
 Drawing / Building Plans for Sign 
 If sign is electrical, indicate who electrician is and provide electrical plan 

 
For more information regarding signage, please refer to the Unified Development 
Ordinance (UDO) Article151 Chapter 5 Section 14 (5.14), which may be accessed by 
clicking this link: 
http://www.camdencountync.gov/phocadownload/departments/planning/udo-
rewrite/Camden-County-UDO-Final_01152019.pdf#page=291. 
(File is large, will take a minute to load, then will advance to page number 291). 
 
Fees for signs are included in the fee schedule at the end of this manual. 

  

5.E.b

Packet Pg. 98

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

am
d

en
 C

o
u

n
ty

 U
D

O
 A

d
m

in
 M

an
u

al
  (

23
11

 :
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 2
01

9-
03

-0
2 

A
d

o
p

ti
n

g
 U

D
O

 A
d

m
in

is
tr

at
iv

e 
M

an
u

al
)

http://www.camdencountync.gov/phocadownload/departments/planning/udo-rewrite/Camden-County-UDO-Final_01152019.pdf#page=389
http://www.camdencountync.gov/phocadownload/departments/planning/udo-rewrite/Camden-County-UDO-Final_01152019.pdf#page=291
http://www.camdencountync.gov/phocadownload/departments/planning/udo-rewrite/Camden-County-UDO-Final_01152019.pdf#page=291


County of Camden, North Carolina  Administrative Manual 

30 

 
This page left intentionally blank.  

5.E.b

Packet Pg. 99

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

am
d

en
 C

o
u

n
ty

 U
D

O
 A

d
m

in
 M

an
u

al
  (

23
11

 :
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 2
01

9-
03

-0
2 

A
d

o
p

ti
n

g
 U

D
O

 A
d

m
in

is
tr

at
iv

e 
M

an
u

al
)



County of Camden, North Carolina  Administrative Manual 

31 

 
Section 2.4:  Land Use / Development Application 
 
Depending upon the type of proposal, a Zoning Permit or a Special Use Permit may be required.  
This form is the start of the application process. 
 

 

Land Use / 
Development 
Application 

(Zoning / Special Use) 

OFFICIAL USE ONLY: 
 

UDO Number:  
 

Date Filed:  
 

Amount Paid:  
 

Received By:  

 
 

Zoning Dist.:  
 

Flood Zone:  
 

Watershed (Y/N):  
 

Taxes Pd(Y/N):  
    

Contact Information 
    

APPLICANT PROPERTY OWNER 

Name:   Name:  

Address:   Address:  

     

Telephone:   Telephone:  

Email:   Email:  
    

LEGAL RELATIONSHIP OF APPLICANT TO PROPERTY OWNER:  
    

Property Information 

Physical Street Address 
 

Location: 
 

Parcel ID Number(s): 
 

Total Parcel(s) Acreage 
 

Existing Land Use of Property 
 

    

Request 
    

Project Name:    
 

Proposed Use of Property:    
 

Deed Book / Page Number and/or Plat Cabinet / Slide Number:    
 

Total square footage of land disturbance activity:    
 

Total lot coverage:    Total vehicular use area:    
 

Existing gross floor area:    Proposed gross floor area:    
Community Meeting 
    

Date Meeting Held:    Meeting Location:    
 

  

5.E.b

Packet Pg. 100

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

am
d

en
 C

o
u

n
ty

 U
D

O
 A

d
m

in
 M

an
u

al
  (

23
11

 :
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 2
01

9-
03

-0
2 

A
d

o
p

ti
n

g
 U

D
O

 A
d

m
in

is
tr

at
iv

e 
M

an
u

al
)



County of Camden, North Carolina  Administrative Manual 

32 

 
Purpose of the Special Use Permit and Project Narrative (attach separate sheet if  needed): 
 

_______________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

_______________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

_______________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

The applicant shall provide a response to each of the following (attach separate sheet if 
needed).  Staff shall prepare specific findings of fact based on the evidence submitted.  Said 
findings shall be submitted to Board of Commissioners for their consideration. 
 

A. The use will not endanger the public health or safety. 
 

_______________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

_______________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

B. The use will not injure the value of adjoining or abutting lands and will be in harmony 
with the area in which it is located. 

 

_______________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

_______________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

C. The use will be in conformity with the Land Use Plan or other officially adopted plan(s). 
 

_______________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

_______________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

D. The use will not exceed the county's ability to provide adequate public facilities, 
including, but not limited to:  schools, fire and rescue, law enforcement, and other 
county facilities.  Applicable state standards and guidelines shall be followed for 
determining when public facilities are adequate. 

 

_______________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

_______________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

I, the undersigned, do certify that all of the information presented in this application is accurate to the 
best of my knowledge, information, and belief.  Further, I hereby authorize county officials to enter my 
property for purposes of determining zoning compliance.  All information submitted and required as 
part of this application process shall become public record. 
 
 
_____________________________________                                                    ____________________ 
Property Owner(s)/Applicant*                                                                                                                   Date 
 

*Note:  Forms must be signed by the owner(s) of record, contract purchaser(s), or other person(s) 
having a recognized property interest.  If there are multiple property owners/applicants, a signature 
is required for each. 
 
  

5.E.b

Packet Pg. 101

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

am
d

en
 C

o
u

n
ty

 U
D

O
 A

d
m

in
 M

an
u

al
  (

23
11

 :
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 2
01

9-
03

-0
2 

A
d

o
p

ti
n

g
 U

D
O

 A
d

m
in

is
tr

at
iv

e 
M

an
u

al
)



County of Camden, North Carolina  Administrative Manual 

33 

 
Section 2.5:  Commercial Site Plan Review 

 
A proposed site plan for all non-residential development shall be submitted to the county 
for review/approval prior to issuance of required permits.   
 
Documentation required is as follows: 
 
2.5.1  Major Commercial Site Plan Review 

 
 Land Use Application 
 10 copies (to include a pdf) of proposed Commercial Site Plan depicting 

requirements listed in section 3.4.2 of this manual. 
 Proposed Drainage Plan 
 Landscaping Plan 

 
2.5.2  Minor Commercial Site Plan Review 

 
 Land Use Application 
 4 copies (to include a pdf) of proposed Commercial Site Plan depicting  

requirements listed in section 3.4.2 of this manual. 
 Proposed Drainage Plan 
 Landscaping Plan 

 
Section 2.6:  Residential / Commercial Subdivision: 

 
Documentation required for Major Subdivision’s is as follows: 
 
2.6.1  Major Residential/Commercial Subdivision 

 
2.6.1.1 – Preliminary Plat  
 
 Land Use Application 
 10 copies (18 X 24) and a pdf copy of Preliminary Plat depicting requirements 

listed in section 3.1. of this manual. 
 Conceptual layout of Drainage Plan indicating how the development will handle 

stormwater runoff, nearest outfall(s) and elevation of tailwater, upstream offsite 
watershed area of any lead ditch running through the development. 

 Perc test on all lots to be developed  
 Development Impact Analysis in accordance with section 3.1.2 of this manual. 
 Plan for completion of public and private improvements. 
 Phasing Plan if applicable. 

  

5.E.b

Packet Pg. 102

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

am
d

en
 C

o
u

n
ty

 U
D

O
 A

d
m

in
 M

an
u

al
  (

23
11

 :
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 2
01

9-
03

-0
2 

A
d

o
p

ti
n

g
 U

D
O

 A
d

m
in

is
tr

at
iv

e 
M

an
u

al
)



County of Camden, North Carolina  Administrative Manual 

34 

 
2.6.1.2 – Construction Permit 
 
 Land Use Application 
 2 Copies and a pdf copy of approved Construction Plans depicting requirements 

listed in section 3.1.4 of this manual. 
 Technical Review Committee member’s approval letter(s) on Construction Plans. 
 Approved State Permits (E&S, Control Plan and Stormwater Permit) 
 CAMA & Army Corps of Engineers permits/approvals if required 
 Approved Drainage Plan  
 Remaining perc tests from Albemarle Regional Heath Services (ARHS) 
 
2.6.1.3 – Final Plat 
 
 Land Use Application 
 Mylar, 4 paper copies (18 X 24) and a pdf copy of the Final Plat depicting 

requirements listed in section 3.1. of this manual. 
 As Built Drawings if there are any changes to approved Construction Plans or a 

letter signed and sealed by NC Engineer/Surveyor stating all improvements 
were constructed in accordance with approved plans. 

 Restrictive Covenants approved by the County  
 
2.6.2  Minor/Expedited Residential/Commercial Subdivision 

 
Minor subdivisions are the creation of up to four (4) lots plus the residual.  Documents 
required for minor subdivisions are as follows: 

 
 Land Use Application  
 Mylar plus 4 copies of plat depicting requirements listed in section 3.2 of this 

manual. 
 Perc Test on each newly created lot from Albemarle Regional Health Services 

(ARHS) or approval by County for connection to County Sewer. 
 Drainage Plan for creation of 2 lots or more.  The creation of 3 and 4 lots shall be 

reviewed/approved by the County’s Engineer.  Cost of the review is listed in 
attached fee schedule.  

 Written confirmation that a copy of the plat has been received by the postmaster for 
the area encompassing the subdivision. 

  

5.E.b

Packet Pg. 103

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

am
d

en
 C

o
u

n
ty

 U
D

O
 A

d
m

in
 M

an
u

al
  (

23
11

 :
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 2
01

9-
03

-0
2 

A
d

o
p

ti
n

g
 U

D
O

 A
d

m
in

is
tr

at
iv

e 
M

an
u

al
)



County of Camden, North Carolina  Administrative Manual 

35 

 
Section 2.6.3:  Transfer Plat 

 

 Parent to Child 
 Child to Parent 
 Grandparent to Grandchild 
 Grandchild to Grandparent 
 

Documents required for processing: 
 

 Land Use Development Application (See Section 2.4 for form) 
 Survey depicting requirements in accordance with Section 3.3 of this manual. 
 Perc Test from ARHS 
 Proof of relationship (Birth Certificate(s)) 
 Deed with restriction in accordance with Section 151.2.3.23 of the Unified 

Development Ordinance. 
 

See Section 3.3 for Certification Block language. 
 

Section 2.6.4:  Exempt Subdivision 
 

The following forms of land division are exempt subdivisions exempted from the 
subdivision requirements of the Unified Development Ordinance (but not from the 
provisions of Article 151.2, Section 2.3.9): 
 

a. A combination or recombination of portions of previously subdivided and recorded 
lots that does not increase the total number of lots, and the resultant lots are equal 
to or exceed the standards of this Ordinance; 

b. The division of land into parcels greater than ten acres where no street right-of-way 
dedication is involved; 

c. Public acquisition involving the purchase of strips of land for the widening or 
opening of streets; 

d. Division of a tract of land in single ownership, where the total area of all land in the 
land division is no greater than two acres, the division creates no more than three 
lots, where no street right-of-way dedication is involved, and the resultant lots are 
equal to or exceed the standards of this Ordinance; or 

e. The division of a tract into parcels in accordance with the terms of a probated will or 
in accordance with Chapter 29 of the North Carolina General Statutes. 

 

Please refer to Article 151.2, Section 2.3.9, Exempt Subdivision, for a description of the 
Purpose and Intent, and the Applicability of the Exempt Subdivision process. 
 

http://www.camdencountync.gov/phocadownload/departments/planning/udo-
rewrite/Camden-County-UDO-Final_01152019.pdf#page=48 
 

For more information regarding exempt subdivisions, contact the Camden County 
Zoning Officer. 
 

Documents required for processing: 
 

 Land Use Development Application (See Section 2.4 for form) 
 Survey  

5.E.b

Packet Pg. 104

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

am
d

en
 C

o
u

n
ty

 U
D

O
 A

d
m

in
 M

an
u

al
  (

23
11

 :
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 2
01

9-
03

-0
2 

A
d

o
p

ti
n

g
 U

D
O

 A
d

m
in

is
tr

at
iv

e 
M

an
u

al
)

http://www.camdencountync.gov/phocadownload/departments/planning/udo-rewrite/Camden-County-UDO-Final_01152019.pdf#page=48
http://www.camdencountync.gov/phocadownload/departments/planning/udo-rewrite/Camden-County-UDO-Final_01152019.pdf#page=48


County of Camden, North Carolina  Administrative Manual 

36 

 
This page left intentionally blank.  

5.E.b

Packet Pg. 105

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

am
d

en
 C

o
u

n
ty

 U
D

O
 A

d
m

in
 M

an
u

al
  (

23
11

 :
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 2
01

9-
03

-0
2 

A
d

o
p

ti
n

g
 U

D
O

 A
d

m
in

is
tr

at
iv

e 
M

an
u

al
)



County of Camden, North Carolina  Administrative Manual 

37 

 
Section 2.7:  Temporary Use Permit: 
 
Based on the type of temporary use / event, additional approvals as deemed necessary by the 
Administrator (i.e. Health Department, Sheriff, Fire Marshall, etc.) may be required.  Below is the 
application for Temporary Use Permit: 

 

Temporary Use 
Permit 

Application 

 OFFICIAL USE ONLY: 
 

UDO Number:  
 

Date Filed:  
 

Amount Paid:  
 

Received By:  
    

Contact Information 
    

APPLICANT PROPERTY OWNER 

Name:   Name:  

Address:   Address:  

     

Telephone:   Telephone:  

Fax:   Fax:  

Email:   Email:  
    

LEGAL RELATIONSHIP OF APPLICANT TO PROPERTY OWNER:  
    

Property Information 

Physical Street Address  

Parcel ID Number(s):  

Existing Land Use of Property  

(Temporary uses or structures in a special flood hazard area shall not remain on site for more than three months) 

Please check the applicable use below: 
 

 Construction Related Activities for New 
 Construction (offices, storage, parking, etc) 
 Expansion or Replacement of Existing Facilities 
 (offices, residences, etc.) 
 Garage or Yard Sales 
 Outdoor Seasonal Sales 

 

 Real Estate Sales Office / Model Sales Home 
 Temporary Campground 
 Temporary Keeping of Livestock 
 Portable Shipping & Storage Containers 
 Temporary Tent 
 Special Event 

Temporary Use Information: 
On reverse, provide detailed description of proposed temporary use or special event, and provide 
timeframe of Temporary Use (if special event provide dates & hours). 
 
    
Property Owner(s) / Applicant Date 
 

*Note: Form must be signed by the owner(s) of record, contract purchaser(s), or other person(s) having a 
recognized property interest.  If there are multiple property owners/applicants, all must sign. 

  

5.E.b

Packet Pg. 106

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

am
d

en
 C

o
u

n
ty

 U
D

O
 A

d
m

in
 M

an
u

al
  (

23
11

 :
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 2
01

9-
03

-0
2 

A
d

o
p

ti
n

g
 U

D
O

 A
d

m
in

is
tr

at
iv

e 
M

an
u

al
)



County of Camden, North Carolina  Administrative Manual 

38 

 
Provide detailed description of proposed temporary use or special event: 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 
Provide timeframe of Temporary Use (if special event provide dates & hours) 
 
 

 
 

 
 

  

5.E.b

Packet Pg. 107

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

am
d

en
 C

o
u

n
ty

 U
D

O
 A

d
m

in
 M

an
u

al
  (

23
11

 :
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 2
01

9-
03

-0
2 

A
d

o
p

ti
n

g
 U

D
O

 A
d

m
in

is
tr

at
iv

e 
M

an
u

al
)



County of Camden, North Carolina  Administrative Manual 

39 

 
Section 2.8:  Zoning Map Amendment 
 
Requests for Zoning Map Amendments (excluding Planned Developments) shall be submitted 
utilizing the Zoning Map Amendment application.  Documents required: 
 

 Zoning Map Amendment Application 
 Soils Analysis stating soils are suitable for Septic 
 Letter authorizing connection to County Sewer 

 
2.8.1:  Planned Development 

 
 Zoning Map Amendment Application 
 Master Plan submittal depicting standards listed in section 3.5 of this manual and 

Article 151.3.7 of the Unified Development Ordinance 
 Preliminary Plat depicting requirements listed in section 3.1. of this manual. 
 Conceptual layout of Drainage Plan indicating how the development will handle 

stormwater runoff, nearest outfall(s) and elevation of tailwater, upstream offsite 
watershed area of any lead ditch running through the development 

 Perc test on 25% of lots to be developed unless connecting to Sewer. 
 
 
See Next Page for Zoning Map Amendment Application 
  

5.E.b

Packet Pg. 108

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

am
d

en
 C

o
u

n
ty

 U
D

O
 A

d
m

in
 M

an
u

al
  (

23
11

 :
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 2
01

9-
03

-0
2 

A
d

o
p

ti
n

g
 U

D
O

 A
d

m
in

is
tr

at
iv

e 
M

an
u

al
)



County of Camden, North Carolina  Administrative Manual 

40 

 
This page left intentionally blank.  

5.E.b

Packet Pg. 109

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

am
d

en
 C

o
u

n
ty

 U
D

O
 A

d
m

in
 M

an
u

al
  (

23
11

 :
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 2
01

9-
03

-0
2 

A
d

o
p

ti
n

g
 U

D
O

 A
d

m
in

is
tr

at
iv

e 
M

an
u

al
)



County of Camden, North Carolina  Administrative Manual 

41 

 

 

Zoning Map 
Amendment 
Application 

 OFFICIAL USE ONLY: 
 

UDO Number:  
 

Date Filed:  
 

Amount Paid:  
 

Received By:  
    

Contact Information 
    

APPLICANT PROPERTY OWNER 

Name:   Name:  

Address:   Address:  

     

Telephone:   Telephone:  

Fax:   Fax:  

Email:   Email:  
    

LEGAL RELATIONSHIP OF APPLICANT TO PROPERTY OWNER:  
    

Property Information 

Physical Street Address 
 

Location: 
 

Parcel ID Number(s): 
 

Total Parcel(s) Acreage: 
 

Existing Land Use of Property: 
 

  

Request 

Current Zoning of Property: __________________  Proposed Zoning District: ________________ 

Total Acreage for Rezoning: __________  Are you rezoning the entire parcel(s):   Yes   No 

Metes and Bounds Description Provided:   Yes   No 

Community Meeting, if applicable:  Date Held:__________; Location:_______________________ 
 

I, the undersigned, do certify that all of the information presented in this application is accurate to the 
best of my knowledge, information, and belief.  Further, I hereby authorize county officials to enter 
my property for purposes of determining zoning compliance.  All information submitted and required 
as part of this application process shall become public record. 

     
Property Owner(s)/Applicant Date        
  

Note:  Form must be signed by the owner(s) of record, contract purchaser(s), or other person(s) having a recognized 
property interest.  If there are multiple property owners/applicants, a signature is required for each. 
  

5.E.b

Packet Pg. 110

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

am
d

en
 C

o
u

n
ty

 U
D

O
 A

d
m

in
 M

an
u

al
  (

23
11

 :
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 2
01

9-
03

-0
2 

A
d

o
p

ti
n

g
 U

D
O

 A
d

m
in

is
tr

at
iv

e 
M

an
u

al
)



County of Camden, North Carolina  Administrative Manual 

42 

 
Zoning Map Amendment Design Standards and Submittal Checklist 
 

This table depicts the design standards of the site plan or map for a zoning map amendment 
application.  Please make sure to include all applicable listed items to ensure all appropriate 
standards are reviewed. 

Zoning Map Amendment - Site Plan Design Standards and Submittal Checklist 
 

Date Received:_______________________________________ 
 

Project Name:_________________________________________ 
 

Applicant/Property Owner:__________________________________________________ 
 

Site Plan or Map Design Standards Checklist Checkoff 
 
1 

 
Lot / Parcel Dimensions 

 
 

2 Zoning Designation  
3 All Existing Physical Features (structures, buildings, streets, roads, etc.)  
4 Location and Dimensions of Any Proposed Construction may be submitted.  

Zoning Map Amendment Submittal Checklist 
 

Staff will use the following checklist to determine the completeness of your application within 
ten business days of submittal.  Please make sure all of the listed items are included.  Staff shall 
not process an application for further review until it is determined to be complete. 
 

Zoning Map Amendment: Staff Checklist Checkoff 
 

1 
 

Complete Zoning Map Amendment Application  

2 Application Fee ($650 plus $10 Per Acre Over 10 Acres)  
3 Community Meeting Written Summary, If Applicable  
4 Site Plan or Map  
5 Metes and Bounds Survey, If Applicable  
6 5 Copies of Plans or Maps  
7 5 Hard Copies of ALL Documents  
8 1 PDF Digital Copy of All Plans AND Documents (on CD, not email)  

Staff Use Only 
 

Pre-Application Conference: 
 
Held On:_________________________________ Location:_______________________________________________________ 
 
Person(s) Present:_________________________________________________________________________________________ 
_______________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Comments:__________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
_______________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
_______________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
_______________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

  

5.E.b

Packet Pg. 111

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

am
d

en
 C

o
u

n
ty

 U
D

O
 A

d
m

in
 M

an
u

al
  (

23
11

 :
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 2
01

9-
03

-0
2 

A
d

o
p

ti
n

g
 U

D
O

 A
d

m
in

is
tr

at
iv

e 
M

an
u

al
)



County of Camden, North Carolina  Administrative Manual 

43 

 
Section 2.9:  Text Amendment 
 
Documentation required is as follow:  Text Amendment Application (below). 
 

 

Text 
Amendment 
Application 

 OFFICIAL USE ONLY: 
 

UDO Number:  
 

Date Filed:  
 

Amount Paid:  
 

Received By:  
    

Contact Information 
    

APPLICANT 

Name:  

Address:  

  

Telephone:  

Fax:  

Email:  
 

REQUEST 
 

I, the undersigned, do hereby make application to change the Camden County UDO as herein 
requested. 
 

Amend Chapter(s) _________________________ Section(s) ___________________________ as 
follows: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

*Continue Request on Reverse if needed.  Additional sheets may be attached. 
 

    
Petitioner / Applicant Date 

  

5.E.b

Packet Pg. 112

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

am
d

en
 C

o
u

n
ty

 U
D

O
 A

d
m

in
 M

an
u

al
  (

23
11

 :
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 2
01

9-
03

-0
2 

A
d

o
p

ti
n

g
 U

D
O

 A
d

m
in

is
tr

at
iv

e 
M

an
u

al
)



County of Camden, North Carolina  Administrative Manual 

44 

 
Text Amendment Request (continued): 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

  

5.E.b

Packet Pg. 113

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

am
d

en
 C

o
u

n
ty

 U
D

O
 A

d
m

in
 M

an
u

al
  (

23
11

 :
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 2
01

9-
03

-0
2 

A
d

o
p

ti
n

g
 U

D
O

 A
d

m
in

is
tr

at
iv

e 
M

an
u

al
)



County of Camden, North Carolina  Administrative Manual 

45 

 
Section 2.10:  Variance 
 
Request for Variance shall be submitted utilizing the following application and include applicable 
fee per the current fee schedule: 
 

 

Variance 
Application 

 OFFICIAL USE ONLY: 
 

UDO Number:  
 

Date Filed:  
 

Amount Paid:  
 

Received By:  
    

Contact Information 
    

APPLICANT PROPERTY OWNER 

Name:   Name:  

Address:   Address:  

     

Telephone:   Telephone:  

Fax:   Fax:  

Email:   Email:  
    

LEGAL RELATIONSHIP OF APPLICANT TO PROPERTY OWNER:  
    

Property Information 

Physical Street Address 
 

Location: 
 

Parcel ID Number(s): 
 

    

Request 
    

I,  , hereby request a variance from Section(s)  

of the Unified Development Ordinance. 

Provide a narrative of why the variance is needed and what circumstances have lead to the need for a 
variance: 
 

 

 

 

 
 

  

5.E.b

Packet Pg. 114

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

am
d

en
 C

o
u

n
ty

 U
D

O
 A

d
m

in
 M

an
u

al
  (

23
11

 :
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 2
01

9-
03

-0
2 

A
d

o
p

ti
n

g
 U

D
O

 A
d

m
in

is
tr

at
iv

e 
M

an
u

al
)



County of Camden, North Carolina  Administrative Manual 

46 

 
Relevant Factors for Issuance of a Variance 
    

A variance may be granted by the Board of Adjustment if it concludes that strict enforcement of the ordinance 
would result in practical difficulties or unnecessary hardships for the applicant and that, by granting the variance, 
the spirit of the ordinance will be observed, public safety and welfare secured, and substantial justice done.  It may 
reach these conclusions if it makes detailed findings that: 
 

A. The alleged hardship is suffered by the applicant as a result of the application of the Ordinance.  (Variances 

cannot be granted if the hardship is the result of restrictions other than those of the ordinance, restrictive covenants are an 
example).  

  

  

  
  

B. The hardship relates to the applicant's land, such as location, size, or topography, rather than personal 
circumstances.  (Hardships suffered by the applicant should be the result of factors directly related to the applicant's land and not 

ordinance requirements).  
  

  

  
  

C. The hardship is unique, or nearly so, rather than one shared by many surrounding properties.  (A hardship 

suffered by the applicant in common with surrounding neighbors does not justify a variance.  The proper remedy is an amendment to 
the ordinance in such cases.  Courts have held that boards granting variances based on such factors amounts to attempted usurpation 
of legislative power).  

  

  

  
  

D. The hardship is not the result of the applicant's own actions.  (Where a property owner has either knowingly or 

unknowingly violated the ordinance by erecting a forbidden structure, he/she cannot claim expenses as a hardship, otherwise no one 
would ever comply with the ordinance.  Similarly, when a person buys property and certain restrictions exist, he/she cannot be said 
to suffer hardship if those restrictions are enforced; such hardship would be self imposed).  

  

  

  
  

E. The variance will not authorize the initiation of a nonconforming use of land.  Must show that the 
variance requested represents the least possible deviation from the letter of the ordinance, and that it will 
allow reasonable use of the property without creating a nonconforming use of same property.  

  

  

  
  

I, the undersigned, do certify that all of the information presented in this application is accurate to the best of my 
knowledge, information, and belief.  Further, I hereby authorize county officials to enter my property for purposes 
of determining zoning compliance.  All information submitted and required as part of this application process shall 
become public record. 

     
Property Owner(s)/Applicant Date        

  
Note:  Form must be signed by the owner(s) of record, contract purchaser(s), or other person(s) having a 
recognized property interest.  If there are multiple property owners/applicants, a signature is required for each. 

  

5.E.b

Packet Pg. 115

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

am
d

en
 C

o
u

n
ty

 U
D

O
 A

d
m

in
 M

an
u

al
  (

23
11

 :
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 2
01

9-
03

-0
2 

A
d

o
p

ti
n

g
 U

D
O

 A
d

m
in

is
tr

at
iv

e 
M

an
u

al
)



County of Camden, North Carolina  Administrative Manual 

47 

 
Section 2.11:  Administrative Adjustment Application 
 

 

Administrative 
Adjustment 
Application 

 OFFICIAL USE ONLY: 
 

UDO Number:  
 

Date Filed:  
 

Amount Paid:  
 

Received By:  
    

Contact Information 
    

APPLICANT PROPERTY OWNER 

Name:   Name:  

Address:   Address:  

     

Telephone:   Telephone:  

Email:   Email:  
    

LEGAL RELATIONSHIP OF APPLICANT TO PROPERTY OWNER:  
    

Property Information 

Physical Street Address 
 

Location: 
 

Parcel ID Number(s): 
 

Total Parcel(s) Acreage 
 

Existing Land Use of Property 
 

Proposed Land Use of Property 
 

    

Request 
    

Building Height Modification 
 
       Required Maximum Height: ________     Proposed Height: _______     Percent Change: _______ 
 
Setback Modification 
 
       Required Setback: _______     Proposed Setback: _______     Percent Change: _______ 
 
       Full Service:    Yes      No       Major Arterial Street Setback:    Yes      No 

  

5.E.b

Packet Pg. 116

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

am
d

en
 C

o
u

n
ty

 U
D

O
 A

d
m

in
 M

an
u

al
  (

23
11

 :
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 2
01

9-
03

-0
2 

A
d

o
p

ti
n

g
 U

D
O

 A
d

m
in

is
tr

at
iv

e 
M

an
u

al
)



County of Camden, North Carolina  Administrative Manual 

48 

 
 
 
Narrative 
    

Please write a short narrative of the request including your reason for seeking an administrative 
adjustment. 
 
__________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
__________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
__________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
__________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
__________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
__________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
__________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
__________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
__________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
__________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
I, the undersigned, do hereby certify that all of the information presented in this application is 
accurate to the best of my knowledge, information, and belief. 
 
Further, I hereby authorize county officials to enter my property for purposes of determining zoning 
compliance.  All information submitted and required as part of this application process shall become 
public record. 
 
 
 
_____________________________________                                                    ____________________ 
Property Owner(s)/Applicant*                                                                                                                   Date 
 
*Note:  Forms must be signed by the owner(s) of record, contract purchaser(s), or other person(s) 
having a recognized property interest.  If there are multiple property owners/applicants, a 
signature is required for each. 
 
  

5.E.b

Packet Pg. 117

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

am
d

en
 C

o
u

n
ty

 U
D

O
 A

d
m

in
 M

an
u

al
  (

23
11

 :
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 2
01

9-
03

-0
2 

A
d

o
p

ti
n

g
 U

D
O

 A
d

m
in

is
tr

at
iv

e 
M

an
u

al
)



County of Camden, North Carolina  Administrative Manual 

49 

 
Section 2.12:  Appeal Application 
 

An appeal from any final order or decision of the Administrator may be taken to the Board of 
Adjustment by any person with standing.  An appeal is taken by filing the below application with 
the Administrator and the Board of Adjustment, a written notice of appeal specifying the grounds 
for the appeal.  A notice of appeal shall be taken within 10 days after the date of the decision or 
order appealed from. 

 

Appeal 
Application 

 OFFICIAL USE ONLY: 
 

UDO Number:  
 

Date Filed:  
 

Amount Paid:  
 

Received By:  
    

Contact Information 
    

APPLICANT PROPERTY OWNER 
    

Name:   Name:  

Address:   Address:  

     

Telephone:   Telephone:  

Fax:   Fax:  

Email:   Email:  
    

LEGAL RELATIONSHIP OF APPLICANT TO PROPERTY OWNER:  
    

Property Information 
    

Physical Street Address  

Location:  

Parcel ID Number(s):  
    

Statement of Error, or Improper Decision or Interpretation 
    

I wish to appeal a:       Decision or Interpretation      Notice of Violation 
 

Date of Decision, Interpretation, or Notice of Violation:____________________ 
 

Grounds for appeal 
On the reverse side of this form, provide written notice of the grounds for your appeal.  Please 
include all related support materials with the application. 
 

I, the undersigned, do certify that all of the information presented in this application is accurate to the 
best of my knowledge, information, and belief.  All information submitted and required as part of this 
application process shall become public record. 
 
_______________________________                                            ______________________ 
Appellant / Applicant                                                                           Date 
 

  

5.E.b

Packet Pg. 118

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

am
d

en
 C

o
u

n
ty

 U
D

O
 A

d
m

in
 M

an
u

al
  (

23
11

 :
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 2
01

9-
03

-0
2 

A
d

o
p

ti
n

g
 U

D
O

 A
d

m
in

is
tr

at
iv

e 
M

an
u

al
)



County of Camden, North Carolina  Administrative Manual 

50 

 
The Board of Adjustment is limited to the following determinations in considering the appeal, which 
shall be based on:  (a) Whether the decision maker erred in the interpretation of the Ordinance; and 
(b) Whether the decision maker erred in determining whether a standard of the Ordinance was met.  
The Board of Adjustment shall not hear any evidence or make any decision based on hardships or 
special conditions except as part of an application for a variance. (UDO Section 2.3.5.E) 
 
Appeal of a decision by the Board of Adjustment shall be to District 1 Superior Court by proceedings 
in the nature of certiorari and in accordance with Section 160A-393 of the North Carolina General 
Statutes.  Petitions for review must be filed with the Clerk of Court within 30 days of the date the 
decision is filed in the office of appropriate review authority and delivered by personal delivery, 
electronic mail, or first-class mail to the applicant, landowner, and to any person who has submitted 
a written request for a copy, prior to the date the decision becomes effective.  (UDO Section 2.5.3.G). 
 
Below, provide written notice of the grounds for your appeal. 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

  

5.E.b

Packet Pg. 119

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

am
d

en
 C

o
u

n
ty

 U
D

O
 A

d
m

in
 M

an
u

al
  (

23
11

 :
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 2
01

9-
03

-0
2 

A
d

o
p

ti
n

g
 U

D
O

 A
d

m
in

is
tr

at
iv

e 
M

an
u

al
)



County of Camden, North Carolina  Administrative Manual 

51 

 

3.  CHECKLISTS, CERTIFICATES, CERTIFICATIONS & STATEMENTS 
 

 
3.1 Major Subdivisions 

 
3.1.1  Checklist - Preliminary / Final Plat 

 
Requirements for Project; Plat Information Preliminary 

Plat 
Final Plat 

Name of subdivision, township, county, state X X 
Name, signature, license number, seal and 
address of engineer, land surveyor, architect, 
planner and/or landscape architect involved in 
preparation of plat 

X X 

Vicinity map:  one inch equals 2,000 feet or 
larger 

X X 

North arrow and scale 
Scale to be one inch equals 200 feet or larger X  
Scale to be one inch equals 100 feet   X 
Property information:  Location and general description of existing 
structures, property lines, paths, streets, roads, railroads, ditches, canals, 
streams, water courses, bridges, culverts, storm drainage pipes, utility lines and 
structures, water lines, septic systems, wells, easements, rights-of-way within 
the property to be subdivided and within 50 feet of the exterior property lines 
Approximate location X  
Actual location   X 
Ownership of adjoining property X X 
The boundaries of the property and the portion 
of the property to be subdivided, together with 
metes and bounds description showing 
dimensions, bearings and distances 

X X 

Monumentation set and control corner 
established 

 X 

Development notes to include total acreage, 
proposed # of lots, size of lots, open space, 
setbacks, drainage/utility easements.  The 
zoning classification of the property and of 
adjacent properties. 

X X 

Surface and subsurface drainage area   
Proposed location X  
Actual location  X 

 
 
  

5.E.b

Packet Pg. 120

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

am
d

en
 C

o
u

n
ty

 U
D

O
 A

d
m

in
 M

an
u

al
  (

23
11

 :
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 2
01

9-
03

-0
2 

A
d

o
p

ti
n

g
 U

D
O

 A
d

m
in

is
tr

at
iv

e 
M

an
u

al
)



County of Camden, North Carolina  Administrative Manual 

52 

 
Requirements for Project; Plat Information Preliminary 

Plat 
Final Plat 

Location of land to be dedicated or reserved for public or private use 
(parks, recreational sites, open space requirements, reserved utility space and 
the like) and their area, accompanied by provisions concerning their future 
ownership and maintenance 
  Approximate location and size X  
  Actual location and size  X 
Lot lines to be shown for the entire tract, no future development area left 
undefined 
  Approximate location X  
  Actual location with dimensions  X 
Location or areas and size, if any, to be used for non-residential purposes 
  Approximate location X  
  Actual location  X 
Development information:  location, widths and purpose of any proposed 
natural buffers, pedestrian/ bicycle/jogging trails or courses, right-of-way or 
other easements, location(s) of existing cemeteries; location of any proposed 
ponds or other storm drainage features 
  Proposed X  
  Actual     X 
Minimum building setback lines shall be shown 
on each individual lot 

X X 

Layout of lot arrangement, including lot lines, 
dimensions and lot and block numbers 

    

  Approximate  X   
  Actual   X 
Street addresses must be shown on each lot   X 
Community mailboxes   
  Proposed location X   
  Actual location  X 
Bus stops   
  Proposed location X  
  Actual location  X 
Determination by the Local Coastal Area 
Management Act (CAMA) Permit Officer as to 
whether the proposal is or is not located within 
any area of environmental concern 

X  

 
  

5.E.b

Packet Pg. 121

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

am
d

en
 C

o
u

n
ty

 U
D

O
 A

d
m

in
 M

an
u

al
  (

23
11

 :
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 2
01

9-
03

-0
2 

A
d

o
p

ti
n

g
 U

D
O

 A
d

m
in

is
tr

at
iv

e 
M

an
u

al
)



County of Camden, North Carolina  Administrative Manual 

53 

 
Requirements for Project; Plat Information Preliminary 

Plat 
Final Plat 

Location and area of all designated areas of 
environmental concern within the subdivision 
or other such areas which are environmentally 
sensitive, such as CAMA wetlands or 404 
wetlands, as defined by the U.S. Army Corps of 
Engineers 

  

  Actual location and area X X 
Location of natural features such as wooded 
areas, swamps, water courses, floodplains, soil 
types and the like on site and within 100 feet of 
exterior property line 

X X 

NCDOT Site Triangle  X 
Contour intervals of two feet flood elevation 
data shall be required; grading plan may be 
required 

X  

Street names 
  Proposed X  
  Actual  X 
General Notes to include project name, 
owner/applicant, property data (PIN, Zoning, 
FIRM Data). 

X X 

Appropriate certification blocks  X 
Copy of homeowner's association documents 
and any restrictive covenants applicable to 
development which are to be recorded 

 X 

Site evaluations reviewed and approved on each 
individual lot by the county's Health 
Department.  If centralized or community 
systems are being proposed, then reviews and 
approvals are required by the appropriate state 
reviewing agency 

X  

Soil erosion and sedimentation control plan, as 
reviewed and approved by DEHNR-Land Quality 
Section 

 X 

DENR Stormwater Permit  X 
County Engineer approval letter on Drainage 
Plan 

 X 

NC Water Resources approval on water main 
ext. 

 X 

NC Wastewater Approval Sewer (if applicable)  X 
  

5.E.b

Packet Pg. 122

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

am
d

en
 C

o
u

n
ty

 U
D

O
 A

d
m

in
 M

an
u

al
  (

23
11

 :
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 2
01

9-
03

-0
2 

A
d

o
p

ti
n

g
 U

D
O

 A
d

m
in

is
tr

at
iv

e 
M

an
u

al
)



County of Camden, North Carolina  Administrative Manual 

54 

 
Requirements for Project; Plat Information Preliminary 

Plat 
Final Plat 

Army Corps of Engineers approval (if 
applicable) 

 X 

CAMA approval (if applicable)  X 
Payment per lot application fee X X 
Payment per lot connection fees for county 
water 

 X 

 
 

3.1.2 Additional Documents 

 
Requirements for Project; Plat Information Preliminary 

Plat 
Final Plat 

For subdivisions containing 20 or more lots, the information listed below shall 
be provided; the number of lots shall be determined by counting the cumulative 
number of lots created on a tract as such boundaries that existed as of the 
effective date of Ch. 151 of the code of ordinances by anyone who owned, had 
an option on or any legal interest in the original subdivision 
Development Impact Statement: X  
Physical analysis (type of units expected, 
including number of bedrooms, projected value, 
size and timing of phases and the like 

X  

Housing market analysis (delineate market area, 
project demand, supply and unmet demand, 
determine net capture, identify development 
profile) 

X  

Water & sewer impact (water consumption 
estimated per unit type, available water 
resources, report outlining sewer generation 
and means of disposal) 

X  

Fiscal analysis (estimated real property 
valuation, estimated personal property 
valuation, estimated annual land transfer tax 
value) 

X  

Traffic analysis (estimated number of trips 
generated, volume of existing traffic on roads 
adjacent to and within one-half mile of tract, 
directional distribution of traffic, capacity 
analysis) 

X  

 
  

5.E.b

Packet Pg. 123

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

am
d

en
 C

o
u

n
ty

 U
D

O
 A

d
m

in
 M

an
u

al
  (

23
11

 :
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 2
01

9-
03

-0
2 

A
d

o
p

ti
n

g
 U

D
O

 A
d

m
in

is
tr

at
iv

e 
M

an
u

al
)



County of Camden, North Carolina  Administrative Manual 

55 

 
3.1.3 Certification Blocks Required For Major Subdivisions 

 

(A) The appropriate certificate blocks as set forth below shall appear on all copies of 

the final plat. 
 

(B) It is suggested in order to eliminate confusion that all certification blocks and 

other detail or design information be grouped on a separate single sheet of the plat 

plans. 
 

(1) Certificate of Approval. 
 

 
I hereby certify that all streets shown on this plat are within Camden County, all streets and other 
improvements shown on this plat have been installed or completed or guaranteed to according to UDO 
151.6.3.5 and that the subdivision shown on this plat is in all respects in compliance with the Camden 
County Unified Development Ordinance, and, therefore, this plat has been approved by the Camden 
County Planning Board and signed by the Chairperson, Board of Commissioners, subject to its being 
recorded in the Camden County Registry within ninety (90) days of the date below. 
 
Date:  Chairperson, Board of Commissioners:  

    

 

(2) Certificate of Ownership and Dedication. 

 

 
I hereby certify that I am the owner of the property described hereon, which property is located within 
the subdivision regulation jurisdiction of Camden County, that I hereby freely adopt this plat of 
subdivision and dedicate to public use all area shown on this plat as streets, alleys, walks, parks, open 
space and easements, except those specifically indicated as private and that I will maintain all such areas 
until the offer of dedication is accepted by the appropriate public authority. All property shown on this 
plat as dedicated for a public use shall be deemed to be dedicated for any other public use authorized by 
law when such use is approved by the appropriate public authority in the public interest. 
 
Date:   Owner:  

     
 
______________  County, North Carolina 
 
I, ________________, a notary public for the above named County & State, do hereby certify that 
___________________________ personally appeared before me this date and acknowledged the due execution of 
the foregoing certificate. 
 
Witness my hand and official seal this ______ day of ________________, 20_____. 
 
________________________________ 
Notary Public Signature (SEAL) 
 
My commission expires __________________ 
     

  

5.E.b

Packet Pg. 124

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

am
d

en
 C

o
u

n
ty

 U
D

O
 A

d
m

in
 M

an
u

al
  (

23
11

 :
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 2
01

9-
03

-0
2 

A
d

o
p

ti
n

g
 U

D
O

 A
d

m
in

is
tr

at
iv

e 
M

an
u

al
)



County of Camden, North Carolina  Administrative Manual 

56 

 

(3) Approval notation.  The developer shall place in a conspicuous manner 

upon the final plat of the subdivision prior to final plat approval a notation 

containing the following words: 
 

Open space, drainage facilities, reserved utility open space, and ponds required to be provided by the 
developer in accordance with UDO 151.7.5 shall not be dedicated to the public, except upon written 
acceptance by the County, but shall remain under the ownership and control of the developer (or his or her 
successor) or a homeowner's association or similar organization that satisfies the criteria established in 
UDO 151.6.4. 
 

(4) Certificate of Survey and Accuracy. 
 

(a) Certificate. 
 

 
I, ____________________________ , certify that this plat was drawn under my supervision from an actual survey 
made under my supervision (deed description recorded in Book _____, Page _____, of the Camden County 
registry (other); that the boundaries not surveyed are clearly indicated as drawn from information found in 
Book _____, Page _____,  that the ratio of precision as calculated is ___________; that this plat was prepared in 
accordance with G.S. § 47-30, as amended.  Witness my original signature, registration number, and seal 
this _____ day of ________________, 20_____. 
 
 (Seal or Stamp) 
 
    
Surveyor's Signature  Registration Number 
 

 

(b) Other contents.  The plat must contain a certificate prepared by the 

surveyor and shown on the plat attesting to one of the following 

statements: 
 

1. The survey creates a subdivision of land within the area of a 

county that has an ordinance that regulates parcels of land; 

2. The survey is located in a portion of the county that is 

unregulated as to an ordinance that regulates parcels of land; 

3. Any one of the following: 

a. The survey is of an existing parcel or parcels of land and 

does not create a new street or change an existing street; 

b. The survey is of an existing building, other structure or 

natural feature, such as a watercourse; or 

c. The survey is a control survey. 

4. The survey is of another category, such as the recombination of 

existing parcels, a court-ordered survey or other exception to a 

definition of subdivision; and 

5. The information available to the surveyor is such that the 

surveyor is unable to make a determination to the best of the 

surveyor's professional ability as to provisions contained in 

divisions (B)(4)(b)1. through 4. above. 

  

5.E.b

Packet Pg. 125

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

am
d

en
 C

o
u

n
ty

 U
D

O
 A

d
m

in
 M

an
u

al
  (

23
11

 :
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 2
01

9-
03

-0
2 

A
d

o
p

ti
n

g
 U

D
O

 A
d

m
in

is
tr

at
iv

e 
M

an
u

al
)



County of Camden, North Carolina  Administrative Manual 

57 

 

(c) Additional contents.  However, if the plat contains the certificate of 

a surveyor as stated in divisions (B)(4)(b)1., 4. and 5. above, then 

the plat shall have, in addition to the surveyor's certificate, a 

certificate of approval from the review officer before the plat may 

be presented to the Register of Deeds for recordation. 

 

(d) Recordation.  If the plat contains the certificate of the surveyor as 

stated in divisions (B)(4)(b)2. and 3. above, nothing shall prevent 

the recordation of the plat if all other provisions have been met. 

 

(5) Division of Highway District Engineer Certificate for Public Streets, if 

applicable. 
 

 
I hereby certify that the public streets shown on this plat are intended for dedication and have 
been completed or as designed and guaranteed by the applicant in accordance with at least the 
minimum specifications and standards of the NC Department of Transportation for acceptance of 
subdivision streets on the NC highway system for maintenance. 
 
 
 

    
Date District Engineer 
 

 

(6) Engineer Certificate for Private Streets, if applicable. 
 

 
I hereby certify that the private streets shown on this plat are intended for private use and will 
remain under the control, maintenance and responsibility of the developer and/or a homeowner's 
association and that they have been completed in accordance with at least the minimum 
specifications and standards of the State Department of Transportation. 
 
 

    
Date Licensed Engineer 
 

 

(7) Additional statement regarding Area of Environmental Concern.  If 

the subdivision is located within a State Coastal Area Management Act 

area of environmental concern, the preliminary plat shall contain a 

statement as follows, signed by the coastal area management permit 

officer: 
 

 
This subdivision (or portions thereof) is located within an Area of Environmental Concern. 
 
 

    
Date Coastal Area Management Permit Officer 
 
  

5.E.b

Packet Pg. 126

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

am
d

en
 C

o
u

n
ty

 U
D

O
 A

d
m

in
 M

an
u

al
  (

23
11

 :
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 2
01

9-
03

-0
2 

A
d

o
p

ti
n

g
 U

D
O

 A
d

m
in

is
tr

at
iv

e 
M

an
u

al
)



County of Camden, North Carolina  Administrative Manual 

58 

 

(8) Engineer Certification of Stormwater Improvements. 

 

 
In the subdivision entitled ______________________________________, stormwater drainage improvements 
have been installed: 

(1) According to plans and specifications prepared by ____________________________, or 
(2) According to As-Built plans submitted by____________________________________________ 

and approved by the County.  Camden County assumes no responsibility for the design, 
maintenance or the guaranteed performance of the stormwater drainage improvements 
and their effects. 

 

    
Registered Land Surveyor/Civil Engineer Signature  Registration Number 
 
 

(9) Certificate of Review Officer. 

 

 
State of North Carolina 
County of Camden 
 
I, ____________________________________________________________________, Review Officer of Camden County, 
certify that the map or plat to which this certification is affixed meets all statutory requirements 
for recording. 
 
 

    
Review Officer's Signature  Date 
 
 

(10) Health Department certificate. 

 

 
This subdivision, entitled ____________, has been designed for the construction of individual sewage 
systems and meets the criteria and requirements of the District Health Department based on 
existing conditions and regulations.  The District Health Department reserves the right to require 
additional improvements to these properties and to limit the number of bedrooms and size of 
structure based on site conditions upon issuance of the final site improvements permits.  This 
certification does not constitute a warranty and is issued based on this subdivision being serviced. 
 
 

    
District Health Department (Signature)  Date 
 
 

  

5.E.b

Packet Pg. 127

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

am
d

en
 C

o
u

n
ty

 U
D

O
 A

d
m

in
 M

an
u

al
  (

23
11

 :
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 2
01

9-
03

-0
2 

A
d

o
p

ti
n

g
 U

D
O

 A
d

m
in

is
tr

at
iv

e 
M

an
u

al
)



County of Camden, North Carolina  Administrative Manual 

59 

 

(11) Subdivided property within floodplain.  If any portion of the property to 

be subdivided lies within a floodplain, the plat must show specific criteria 

in accordance with UDO 151.3.8.3 and contain in clearly discernable print 

the statement “Use of land within a floodplain is substantially restricted by 

the Unified Development Ordinance.” 

 
3.1.4  - Construction Plans shall depict the following: 

 
Requirement: Checkoff: 
Name of subdivision, township, county, state  
Name, signature, license number, seal and address of engineer, 
land surveyor, architect, planner and/or landscape architect 
involved in preparation of plat 

 

Vicinity Map / Compass Rose (north arrow):  one inch equals 
2,000 feet or larger 

 

Location of boundaries, lot lines, street rights-of-way, cul-de-
sacs, turnarounds with design widths and distances in linear 
feet; must show all paved areas and areas to be graveled. 

 

Site identification signs, traffic-control signs, street name signs 
and directional signs 

 

Engineering data:  approximate street grade, design data for 
street corners and curves, plan view for streets and 
water/sewer lines.  Any additional data which may be required 
by the State Department of Transportation, County Public Works 
Department or any of the other official reviewing agencies 

 

Legend (Curve Table, Culvert / Invert, etc.)  
Grading and drainage plans, details, and calculations in order to 
comply with state and county stormwater/drainage regulations 

 

Proposed utility infrastructure plans, including sanitary sewer, 
water, stormwater management, telephone, electric and cable 
television 

 

Location and construction details of either wet or dry fire and / 
or flushing hydrants 

 

Lighting plan and details, if proposed  
Landscape and tree-planting plan with details, if required  
Solid waste management-dumpster plan, if required  
Sight triangles  
Monumentation set and control corner established  
Setting Environmental Information; Floodplain criteria per UDO 
151.3.8.3. 

 

 
  

5.E.b

Packet Pg. 128

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

am
d

en
 C

o
u

n
ty

 U
D

O
 A

d
m

in
 M

an
u

al
  (

23
11

 :
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 2
01

9-
03

-0
2 

A
d

o
p

ti
n

g
 U

D
O

 A
d

m
in

is
tr

at
iv

e 
M

an
u

al
)



County of Camden, North Carolina  Administrative Manual 

60 

 
3.2 Minor /Expedited Subdivisions shall depict the following: 

 
Requirement: Checkoff: 
Title information, including the name of the subdivision, the 
owner of the property, the township where the property is 
located, name and address of the preparer and vicinity map 
showing location to principal roads 

 

 Existing information, including boundaries of the tract to be 
subdivided, together with bearings and distances; location of 
property lines, streets, structures, water courses, railroads, 
utility transmission lines and structures, water lines, bridges, 
culverts, storm drainage pipes, easements within the tract to be 
subdivided and within 50 feet of the property line and 
ownership of adjoining land 

 

 Natural features, including the location of wooded areas, 
swamps, wetlands and water bodies, including streams, sounds 
and the like;  (Soil types and contour intervals of two feet may 
be required at the discretion of the Administrator.  Floodplain 
information, as depicted on the flood insurance rate maps and 
other specific criteria in accordance with UDO 151.3.8.3. 

 

Development information, including proposed natural buffers, 
location(s) of existing cemeteries, pedestrian, bicycle and other 
rights-of-way and other easements, their location, width and 
purpose; layout of lot arrangements, including lot lines, lot 
dimensions; square footage; and lot and block numbers; 
setbacks, layout of proposed utilities (sewer, water, drainage, 
gas, electricity, telephone) showing connection to existing 
systems or easements reserved for proposed or potential 
systems;  (Where a development concept is approved which 
requires zero lot line development, alternative easements may 
be considered.) 

 

Site data, including acreage in total number of lots and average 
lots sizes and any proposed modifications to topography. 

 

Drainage Plan & Calculations (If applicable)    
 

  

5.E.b

Packet Pg. 129

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

am
d

en
 C

o
u

n
ty

 U
D

O
 A

d
m

in
 M

an
u

al
  (

23
11

 :
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 2
01

9-
03

-0
2 

A
d

o
p

ti
n

g
 U

D
O

 A
d

m
in

is
tr

at
iv

e 
M

an
u

al
)



County of Camden, North Carolina  Administrative Manual 

61 

 
3.2.1 Certification Blocks/Statements Required 

 
The following certifications/statements are required on each plat: 

 
(1) Minimum Lot Size Statement 

 
 
The residual parcel(s), if any, meet or exceed the minimum lot size as specified within the Camden 
County Unified Development Ordinance. 
 

    
Surveyor's Signature Date 
 
 

(2) Certification regarding Public Streets, and UDO Compliance 
 
 
I hereby certify that the Minor Subdivision shown on this plat does not involve the creation of new 
public streets or any change in existing public streets, that the subdivision shown is in all respects 
in compliance with the Camden County Unified Development Ordinance and that therefore this 
plat has been approved by the Camden County Administrator subject to its being recorded in the 
Office of the Camden County Register of Deeds within thirty (30) days of the date below. 
 

    

Administrator's Signature Date 

 
 

(3) Division of Highway District Engineer Certificate for Public Streets, if 

applicable. 
 

 
I hereby certify that the public streets shown on this plat are intended for dedication and have 
been completed or as designed and guaranteed by the applicant in accordance with at least the 
minimum specifications and standards of the NC Department of Transportation for acceptance of 
subdivision streets on the NC highway system for maintenance. 
 
 
 

    
Date District Engineer 
 

 

  

5.E.b

Packet Pg. 130

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

am
d

en
 C

o
u

n
ty

 U
D

O
 A

d
m

in
 M

an
u

al
  (

23
11

 :
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 2
01

9-
03

-0
2 

A
d

o
p

ti
n

g
 U

D
O

 A
d

m
in

is
tr

at
iv

e 
M

an
u

al
)



County of Camden, North Carolina  Administrative Manual 

62 

 

(4) Certificate of Ownership and Rededication. 
 
 
I hereby certify that I am the owner of the property described hereon, which property is located 
within the subdivision regulation jurisdiction of Camden County, that I hereby freely adopt this 
plat of subdivision and dedicate to public use all areas shown on this plat as streets, alleys, walks, 
parks, open space and easements, except those specifically indicated as private and that I will 
maintain all such areas until the offer of dedication is accepted by the appropriate public 
authority. All property shown on this plat as dedicated for a public use shall be deemed to be 
dedicated for any other public use authorized by law when such use is approved by the 
appropriate public authority in the public interest. 
 

    

Owner's Signature Date 

 
 

(5) Engineer Certification of Stormwater Improvements. 

 

 
In the subdivision entitled ______________________________________, stormwater drainage improvements 
have been installed: 

(3) According to plans and specifications prepared by ____________________________, or 
(4) According to As-Built plans submitted by____________________________________________ 

and approved by the County.  Camden County assumes no responsibility for the design, 
maintenance or the guaranteed performance of the stormwater drainage improvements 
and their effects. 

 

    
Registered Land Surveyor/Civil Engineer Signature  Registration Number 
 
 

(6) Certificate of Survey and Accuracy. 
 
 

I, ____________________________ , certify that this plat was drawn under my supervision from an 

actual survey made under my supervision (deed description recorded in Book _____, Page _____, of the 

Camden County registry (other);  

that the boundaries not surveyed are clearly indicated as drawn from information found in Book _____, 

Page _____,  that the ratio of precision as calculated is ___________; that this plat was prepared in 

accordance with G.S. § 47-30, as amended.  Witness my original signature, registration number, and seal 

this _____ day of ________________, 20_____. 
 

 (Seal or Stamp) 
 

    

Surveyor's Signature  Registration Number 

 

 
  

5.E.b

Packet Pg. 131

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

am
d

en
 C

o
u

n
ty

 U
D

O
 A

d
m

in
 M

an
u

al
  (

23
11

 :
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 2
01

9-
03

-0
2 

A
d

o
p

ti
n

g
 U

D
O

 A
d

m
in

is
tr

at
iv

e 
M

an
u

al
)



County of Camden, North Carolina  Administrative Manual 

63 

 
(a) The plat must contain a certificate prepared by the surveyor 

and shown on the plat attesting to one of the following 
statements: 

 
1. The survey creates a subdivision of land within the area of 

a county that has an ordinance that regulates parcels of 
land; 

2. The survey is located in a portion of the county that is 
unregulated as to an ordinance that regulates parcels of 
land; 

3. Any one of the following: 
a. The survey is of an existing parcel or parcels of land and 

does not create a new street or change an existing 
street; 

b. The survey is of an existing building, other structure or 
natural feature, such as a watercourse; or 

c. The survey is a control survey. 
4. The survey is of another category, such as the 

recombination of existing parcels, a court-ordered survey 
or other exception to a definition of subdivision; and 

5. The information available to the surveyor is such that the 
surveyor is unable to make a determination to the best of 
the surveyor's professional ability as to provisions 
contained in divisions (B)(3)(a)1. through 4. above. 

 
(b) However, if the plat contains the certificate of a surveyor as 

stated in divisions (B)(3)(a)1., 4. and 5. above, then the plat 
shall have, in addition to the surveyor's certificate, a certificate 
of approval from the review officer before the plat may be 
presented to the Register of Deeds for recordation. 

 
(c) If the plat contains the certificate of the surveyor as stated 

herein above, nothing shall prevent the recordation of the plat 
if all other provisions have been met. 

 
(7) Certificate of Review Officer. 

 
State of North Carolina 
County of Camden 
 
I, ________________________________________________, Review Officer of Camden County, certify that the 
map or plat to which this certification is affixed meets all statutory requirements for recording. 
 
 

    
Review Officer's Signature  Date 
 
  

5.E.b

Packet Pg. 132

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

am
d

en
 C

o
u

n
ty

 U
D

O
 A

d
m

in
 M

an
u

al
  (

23
11

 :
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 2
01

9-
03

-0
2 

A
d

o
p

ti
n

g
 U

D
O

 A
d

m
in

is
tr

at
iv

e 
M

an
u

al
)



County of Camden, North Carolina  Administrative Manual 

64 

 
(8) If any portion of the property to be subdivided lies within a 

floodplain, the plat must show specific criteria in accordance with 
UDO 151.3.8.3 and contain in clearly discernable print the statement, 
“Use of land within a floodway or floodplain is substantially restricted 
by the Unified Development Ordinance.” 

 
(9) If the minor subdivision is required to provide a connection to a 

public water supply system, then the plat shall contain the following 
statement:  “The developer is required to install all water lines and 
related improvements.”  

5.E.b

Packet Pg. 133

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

am
d

en
 C

o
u

n
ty

 U
D

O
 A

d
m

in
 M

an
u

al
  (

23
11

 :
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 2
01

9-
03

-0
2 

A
d

o
p

ti
n

g
 U

D
O

 A
d

m
in

is
tr

at
iv

e 
M

an
u

al
)



County of Camden, North Carolina  Administrative Manual 

65 

 
3.3 Transfer Plat 
 
Certification Blocks for Transfer Plat.  Plat shall depict the following: 
 

 Minimum Lot Size Statement 
 
 
The residual parcel(s), if any, meet or exceed the minimum lot size as specified within the Camden 
County Unified Development Ordinance. 
 

    
Surveyor's Signature Date 
 
 

 Certificate of Survey and Accuracy. 
 
 

I, ____________________________ , certify that this plat was drawn under my supervision from an 

actual survey made under my supervision (deed description recorded in Book _____, Page _____, of the 

Camden County registry (other);  

that the boundaries not surveyed are clearly indicated as drawn from information found in Book _____, 

Page _____,  that the ratio of precision as calculated is ___________; that this plat was prepared in 

accordance with G.S. § 47-30, as amended.  Witness my original signature, registration number, and seal 

this _____ day of ________________, 20_____. 
 

 (Seal or Stamp) 
 

    

Surveyor's Signature  Registration Number 

 

 

 Certificate of Review Officer. 

 
 

State of North Carolina 
County of Camden 
 

I, ____________________________________________________________________, Review Officer of Camden County, 
certify that the map or plat to which this certification is affixed meets all statutory requirements 
for recording. 
 
 

    
Review Officer's Signature  Date 
 
 
  

5.E.b

Packet Pg. 134

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

am
d

en
 C

o
u

n
ty

 U
D

O
 A

d
m

in
 M

an
u

al
  (

23
11

 :
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 2
01

9-
03

-0
2 

A
d

o
p

ti
n

g
 U

D
O

 A
d

m
in

is
tr

at
iv

e 
M

an
u

al
)



County of Camden, North Carolina  Administrative Manual 

66 

 
3.3 Transfer Plat (Continued) 
 

 Title block should read:  
 

Transfer Plat            (Parent to Child or Grand Parent to Grand Child) 

 
Example: 

 

Transfer Plat            (John Smith Sr. (Parent) to John Smith Jr. (Child) 

 
 Add the following note: 

 

Transfer Plat in accordance with Article 151.3.23 of the Camden 
County Unified Development Ordinance. 

 
 
3.4 Site Plan 

 
3.4.1 Residential Site Plans 

 
Residential Site Plans should be generally drawn to scale.  They do not need to be 
drawn by a surveyor or engineer.  They should include the following items: 

 
Requirement: Checkoff: 
Lot/parcel dimensions – total square footage  
Property line setbacks  
Existing physical features (structures, buildings, streets roads, 
etc.),  

 

 Location and dimensions of proposed construction  
 
Septic Permits cannot be utilized as site plans. 

  

5.E.b

Packet Pg. 135

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

am
d

en
 C

o
u

n
ty

 U
D

O
 A

d
m

in
 M

an
u

al
  (

23
11

 :
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 2
01

9-
03

-0
2 

A
d

o
p

ti
n

g
 U

D
O

 A
d

m
in

is
tr

at
iv

e 
M

an
u

al
)



County of Camden, North Carolina  Administrative Manual 

67 

 
3.4.2 Commercial Site plans shall depict the following: 

 
Requirement: Checkoff: 
 Site data, including vicinity sketch, north arrow, engineering 
scale ratio, acreage, title of development, date of plan, gross floor 
area of all buildings, name and address of owner/developer and 
person or firm preparing the plan 

 

 Zoning setback lines  
 Location(s) and dimension(s) of all vehicular entrances, exits, 
drives and fire lanes 

 

Location, arrangement and dimension of all automobile parking 
spaces, width of aisles, width of bays, angle of parking and 
number of spaces 

 

 Location, arrangement and dimension of all truck unloading 
docks, ramps and spaces 

 

Refuse collection (dumpster) container space(s) location  
Location(s) of all building(s) with exterior dimensions  
Location and dimensions of all fences, walls, docks, ramps, pools, 
patios and surfaces areas 

 

Location of water tap(s) denoting size(s) of line(s) or well area  
Location of sewer tap(s) denoting size(s) of line(s) and pole(s)  
Location of electrical service connection(s), meter(s) and pole(s)  
Existing and proposed fire hydrant location(s)  
Location and dimension of all easements and rights-of-way as 
determined by the State Department of Transportation; 

 

Location(s) and size(s) of all public utility lines (water, sewer 
and storm sewer) within all adjacent public rights-of-way and 
easements 

 

Drainage plan shall be designated and certified in accordance 
with the requirements of UDO 151.7.1.4 

 

Curb and gutter alignment, including street widening and storm 
drainage, if necessary shall be required 

 

Screening/landscaping plan with a species directory shall be 
required showing plants with common names, sizes and 
numbers of plants and trees 

 

Sight distance triangle, 10 feet by 70 feet, shall be indicated at 
the intersection of all public right-of-way lines and 10 feet by 35 
feet at the intersection of a right-of-way and driveway 

 

Flood zone, as determined by FIRM maps; and  
Any additional information as may be required by the reviewing 
agents 

 

 
  

5.E.b

Packet Pg. 136

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

am
d

en
 C

o
u

n
ty

 U
D

O
 A

d
m

in
 M

an
u

al
  (

23
11

 :
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 2
01

9-
03

-0
2 

A
d

o
p

ti
n

g
 U

D
O

 A
d

m
in

is
tr

at
iv

e 
M

an
u

al
)



County of Camden, North Carolina  Administrative Manual 

68 

 
3.5  Planned Development  
 

Review procedures are outlined in Article 151.2.3.19 of the Unified Development 
Ordinance. 

 
Requirement: Checkoff: 
Pre-application Conference  
Rezoning  
Master Plan shall include:   (Refer to Article 151.3.7.2 of the 
UDO) 

 

1. Include a statement of planning objectives for the district;  
2. Identify the general location of individual development 

areas, identified by land use(s) and/or development density 
or intensity; 

 

3. Depict the general configuration and relationship of the 
principal elements of the proposed development, including 
general building types; 

 

4. Identify for the entire PD district and each development 
area the acreage, types and mix of land uses, number of 
residential units (by use type), nonresidential floor area (by 
use type), residential density, and nonresidential intensity; 

 

5. Identify the general location, amount, and type (whether 
designated for active, passive, or urban recreation) of open 
space;  

 

6. Identify the location of environmentally sensitive lands, 
wildlife habitat, and resource protection lands; 

 

7. Identify the on-site transportation circulation system, 
including the general location of all streets, existing or 
projected transit corridors, pedestrian and vehicular 
circulation features, and how they will connect with existing 
and planned County systems; 

 

  

5.E.b

Packet Pg. 137

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

am
d

en
 C

o
u

n
ty

 U
D

O
 A

d
m

in
 M

an
u

al
  (

23
11

 :
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 2
01

9-
03

-0
2 

A
d

o
p

ti
n

g
 U

D
O

 A
d

m
in

is
tr

at
iv

e 
M

an
u

al
)



County of Camden, North Carolina  Administrative Manual 

69 

 
8. Identify the general location of on-site potable water and 

wastewater facilities, and how they will connect to County 
or other public systems; 

 

9. Identify the general location of on-site stormwater 
management facilities, and how they will interface with and 
impact incoming stormwater flows and natural or 
constructed outfalls; and 

 

10. Identify the general location of all other on-site public 
facilities serving the development, including but not limited 
to parks, schools, and facilities for fire protection, police 
protection, EMS, and solid waste management 

 

Densities/Intensities  
1. The densities for residential development and the intensities 

for nonresidential development applicable in each 
development area of a PD district shall be as established in 
the master plan, and shall be consistent with County plans. 

 

2. Dwelling units within a PD may be concentrated or evenly 
distributed throughout the development, provided the 
maximum allowable density for the development as a whole 
is not exceeded. 

 

Dimensional Standards:   The dimensional standards 
applicable in each development area of a PD district shall be as 
established in the master plan.  The master plan shall include at 
least the following types of dimensional standards: 

 

1. Minimum lot area;  
2. Minimum lot width;  
3. Minimum and maximum setbacks;  
4. Maximum lot coverage;  
5. Maximum building height;  
6. Maximum individual building size;  
7. Floor area ratio; and  
8. Minimum setbacks  and/or buffers from adjoining 

residential development or residential zoning districts. 
 

 
  

5.E.b

Packet Pg. 138

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

am
d

en
 C

o
u

n
ty

 U
D

O
 A

d
m

in
 M

an
u

al
  (

23
11

 :
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 2
01

9-
03

-0
2 

A
d

o
p

ti
n

g
 U

D
O

 A
d

m
in

is
tr

at
iv

e 
M

an
u

al
)



County of Camden, North Carolina  Administrative Manual 

70 

 
This Page Left Intentionally Blank  

5.E.b

Packet Pg. 139

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

am
d

en
 C

o
u

n
ty

 U
D

O
 A

d
m

in
 M

an
u

al
  (

23
11

 :
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 2
01

9-
03

-0
2 

A
d

o
p

ti
n

g
 U

D
O

 A
d

m
in

is
tr

at
iv

e 
M

an
u

al
)



County of Camden, North Carolina  Administrative Manual 

71 

 

APPENDIX A:  Camden County Planning Department Fee Schedule 
 

 

CAMDEN COUNTY 
Inspections & Planning 

Fee Schedule 

 

BUILDING PERMIT FEES 

 

RESIDENTIAL, MODULAR, & COMMERCIAL CONSTRUCTION (UP TO 20,000 SQ. FEET) 

Minimal Required New Construction Permit Fees:  (1) State Fee (Residential Only) 10.00; (2) Base 

Building Fee 0.25 cents per square foot; (3) Electrical Fee 0.15 cents per square foot; (4) Plumbing Fee 

75.00; (5) Mechanical Fee 100.00; (6) Insulation Fee 75.00.    Optional Fees:  Temporary Power Pole 

75.00.  Commercial buildings are subject to other fees listed here after. 

 

Base Fee Up to 20,000 Sq. Ft. $0.25/Sq. Ft. Each Sq. Foot Over 20,000 $0.15/Sq. Ft. 

Minimum Fee $100.00 State Fee $10.00 

 

ELECTRICAL 

Residential Over 500 SQFT $0.15/Sq. Ft. Service Repair $75.00 

Minimum Fee $75.00 Service Change $75.00 

Temporary Service $75.00 Mfg. Home Service $75.00 

 

PLUMBING 

Plumbing (New Installs) $75.00 Plumbing (Repairs) $75.00 

 

MECHANICAL 

Minimum Fee $100.00 Additional Units $25.00 

Repair / Service Change $75.00 Same Size Change Out $0.00 

 

INSULATION 

Minimum Fee $75.00 

 

NATURAL GAS HOOKUP (RESIDENTIAL & COMMERCIAL STRUCTURES) 

Fee Per Structure $50.00 

 

MANUFACTURED HOMES 

Singlewide:    $250.00            Doublewide:    $350.00            Triplewide:    $400.00 

 

ADDITIONS - Includes Service Systems 

Up to 400 Square Feet $150.00 Over 400 Square Feet $0.37 / Sq. Ft. 

 

 
 

 

 

 

Inspections & Planning Dept. Fee Schedule 

Revised June 5th, 2017 

Page 1 of 5  

5.E.b

Packet Pg. 140

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

am
d

en
 C

o
u

n
ty

 U
D

O
 A

d
m

in
 M

an
u

al
  (

23
11

 :
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 2
01

9-
03

-0
2 

A
d

o
p

ti
n

g
 U

D
O

 A
d

m
in

is
tr

at
iv

e 
M

an
u

al
)



County of Camden, North Carolina  Administrative Manual 

72 

 

SWIMMING POOLS & SPAS 

In-Ground $150.00 Above Ground $50.00 

 

DETACHED GARAGES, STORAGE, AND UTILITY BUILDINGS 

Minimum Fee/Under 400 Sq. Ft. $75.00 Over 400 Sq. Ft. $0.18/Sq. Ft. 

 

CARPORT / POLE BARN / POLE SHED 

Minimum Fee $75.00 Over 834 Sq. Ft. $0.09/Sq. Ft. 

 

SINGLE UTILITY INSPECTION 

Trade Permit Minimum Fee $50.00 

 

SIGNS 

16 Square Feet or Less $0.00 17-32 Sq. Ft. $50.00 

Over 32 Sq. Ft. $100.00 Electrical on/for/around Sign $50.00 

 

DEMOLITION Fire, Safety, & EPA Regs 

Pre-inspection required for safety and hazardous materials and referral to proper $75.00 

channels if found. 

 

ALTERATIONS / REPAIRS / IMPROVEMENTS 

Up to $5000 Gross Retail Price   $75.00 

Over $5000 Gross Retail   50% Additions Fees 

 

Alterations include work within existing structures and upgrading existing services and do NOT include 

Additions, New Construction, Providing Power to structures not previously having power or New 

Service to existing buildings. 

 

Farm Buildings are exempt UNLESS: 

 Any electrical installation is performed 

 Any portion of building is used for sleeping quarters 

 Building is used for business rather than personal use of farmer and immediate family 

 

MOVING OF ANY BUILDING WITHIN OR INTO THE COUNTY 

Minimum New Construction Fees 

 

WIND ENERGY SYSTEMS 

Turbines $2,000 Each 

Reinspections $100.00 Each 

 

SOLAR FARMS 

Panels $0.50 per Panel (minimum $250.00) 
 

 

 

 

 

Inspections & Planning Dept. Fee Schedule 

Revised June 5th, 2017 

Page 2 of 5  

5.E.b

Packet Pg. 141

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

am
d

en
 C

o
u

n
ty

 U
D

O
 A

d
m

in
 M

an
u

al
  (

23
11

 :
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 2
01

9-
03

-0
2 

A
d

o
p

ti
n

g
 U

D
O

 A
d

m
in

is
tr

at
iv

e 
M

an
u

al
)



County of Camden, North Carolina  Administrative Manual 

73 

 
COMMERCIAL PERMIT PRICES (extras) 

 

MECHANICAL:  PLUMBING: 

Walk-in Cooler $40.00 ea. Minimum Permit Fee $75.00 

Commercial Cooking Hood $40.00 ea. Per fixture, trap, or similar devices $5.00 

HVAC Fire damper/smoke damper $5.00 ea. Per Sprinkler Head $5.00 

 

ELECTRICAL: 

Electric Duct Heater   $10.00 ea. 

Temporary Service w/ Trailer   $100.00 ea. 

0-100 Each Receptacle / Switch / Fixture  $75.00 

Each Additional Opening   $0.10 ea. 

Subpanel, Transformer, Generator   $20.00 ea. 

Fuel dispensers, "freestanding" parking lot light poles, manufactured home pedestals    $5.00 ea. 

Exhaust fans / water heater / RAC / Spa / Motors and machinery not specified $5.00 ea. 

 

GAS 

Minimum Permit Fee $50.00 

Per outlet $5.00 

 

NEGLIGENCE FEES 

Inspection Negligence Fee (Applies To):  $100.00 

 Inspections called for but not ready 

 Skipping any applicable mandatory inspection 

 Re-Inspections called for without first correcting discrepancies noted by inspector 

 Wrong sub-contractor other than on Trade Affidavit 

 

No Permit Negligence Fee (Applies To):  $Varies 

 Building or Trade Related Activities performed without first obtaining and paying 

for a building permit.  Shall result in overall doubling of permit fee. 

 

BUILDING PERMIT FEES DUE AT TIME OF ISSUANCE 

All Building Permit fees must be paid in full at time of permit issuance. 

 Applicants will be notified within 3-5 days after building permit application has been processed, 

reviewed, and approved.  At that time, permit fees are due. 

 No building permit will be issued without payment of permit fees due. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

Inspections & Planning Dept. Fee Schedule 

Revised June 5th, 2017 

Page 3 of 5  

5.E.b

Packet Pg. 142

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

am
d

en
 C

o
u

n
ty

 U
D

O
 A

d
m

in
 M

an
u

al
  (

23
11

 :
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 2
01

9-
03

-0
2 

A
d

o
p

ti
n

g
 U

D
O

 A
d

m
in

is
tr

at
iv

e 
M

an
u

al
)



County of Camden, North Carolina  Administrative Manual 

74 

 

LAND USE DEVELOPMENT FEES 

 

LAND USE DEVELOPMENT FEES DUE AT TIME OF APPLICATION 

 All fees for Land Use / Development MUST be paid in full at time of APPLICATION. 

 

Zoning Permit $25.00 Temporary Use Permit $250.00 

Conditional Use Permit $400.00 Variance $500.00 

Special Use Permit $400.00 Ordinance Amendment Request $500.00 

 

Rezoning Fee 

Up to 10 Acres $650.00 

Over 10 Acres $650.00 Plus $10 Per Acre 

 

Interpretation Challenge / Appeal $250.00 * 

 

Subdivision Fee 

Major Subdivision 

Sketch Plan Level $150.00 Per Lot 

Preliminary Plan Level $200.00 Per Lot 

Final Plan Level $50.00 Per Lot ** 

Minor Subdivision $200.00 Per Lot ** 

Private Access Subdivision $200.00 Per Lot ** 

 

Planned Unit Development 

 

Concept Plan See Rezoning 

Master Plan and Amendments $1,000.00 (Includes Conditional Use Permit Fee) 

Preliminary Plat Level $200.00 Per Lot 

Final Plat Level $50.00 Per Lot 

 

Commercial Site Plan Review $25.00 

 

Stormwater Review Fees / Deposit 

 

Major Subdivision $6,000.00 

     (more than 5 acres) 

Minor Commercial Site Plan Review $3,700.00 

     (3 acres or less) 

Major Commercial Site Plan Review *** $5,400.00 

     (more than 3 acres) 

 

LAND DISTURBING ACTIVITY 

 

Fill Permit $50.00 
 

 

Inspections & Planning Dept. Fee Schedule 

Revised June 5th, 2017 

Page 4 of 5  

5.E.b

Packet Pg. 143

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

am
d

en
 C

o
u

n
ty

 U
D

O
 A

d
m

in
 M

an
u

al
  (

23
11

 :
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 2
01

9-
03

-0
2 

A
d

o
p

ti
n

g
 U

D
O

 A
d

m
in

is
tr

at
iv

e 
M

an
u

al
)



County of Camden, North Carolina  Administrative Manual 

75 

 
NOTES: 
 

* Subject to refund in the case of a successful appeal if so ordered by the Board of Adjustment 
 

** The County stormwater review deposit / fee will be set up as an escrow wherein the applicant recovers 

any deposits in excess of actual costs incurred, or replenishes the escrow if costs drop below $1000 prior 

to project approval. 
 

 

A refund of Land Use Development fees will be given if an application is withdrawn prior to commencement of 

the approval process (staff review for Zoning Permits; Board
†
 agenda for all other items).  No refund shall be 

given after any portion of the approval process has begun (e.g., zoning permit issued or item placed on Board 

agenda.) 
 

 

† - Board of Adjustments, Planning Board, or Board of Commissioners 
 

 

CAMDEN COUNTY 

GIS 

Fee Schedule for Sale of GIS Related Data 
 

Xerox Copy 
 

Size Black & White Price Color Price 

8½ x 11 $0.50 $1.00 

8½ x 14 $0.75 $1.50 

11 x 17 $1.00 $5.00 
 

Plotter 
 

Size Black & White Price Color Price 

Up to 36 x 48 $5.00 $10.00 
 

Electronic Media 
 

Data Layers 
 

Price: $5.00 per CD 

 $25.00 for first layer (shape file) 

 $10.00 for each additional layer (shape file) 
 

MrSid Compressed Digital Orthophotography 
 

The entire set of digital orthophotography for the County:  $10.00 
 

Customized GIS Work 
 

Any customized GIS projects will be charged a per hour fee of:  $60.00 / hr. 
 

Camden County Street Maps:  $3.00 

 

 

 

Inspections & Planning Dept. Fee Schedule 

Revised June 5th, 2017 

Page 5 of 5 

5.E.b

Packet Pg. 144

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

am
d

en
 C

o
u

n
ty

 U
D

O
 A

d
m

in
 M

an
u

al
  (

23
11

 :
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 2
01

9-
03

-0
2 

A
d

o
p

ti
n

g
 U

D
O

 A
d

m
in

is
tr

at
iv

e 
M

an
u

al
)



County of Camden, North Carolina  Administrative Manual 

76 

 

This page left intentionally blank.  

5.E.b

Packet Pg. 145

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

am
d

en
 C

o
u

n
ty

 U
D

O
 A

d
m

in
 M

an
u

al
  (

23
11

 :
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 2
01

9-
03

-0
2 

A
d

o
p

ti
n

g
 U

D
O

 A
d

m
in

is
tr

at
iv

e 
M

an
u

al
)



County of Camden, North Carolina  Administrative Manual 

77 

 

Appendix B:  Table of Interpretations (will be filled in as interpretations are made). 
 

 
Interpretation # Date Article # Subject 
    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

  

5.E.b

Packet Pg. 146

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

am
d

en
 C

o
u

n
ty

 U
D

O
 A

d
m

in
 M

an
u

al
  (

23
11

 :
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 2
01

9-
03

-0
2 

A
d

o
p

ti
n

g
 U

D
O

 A
d

m
in

is
tr

at
iv

e 
M

an
u

al
)



County of Camden, North Carolina  Administrative Manual 

78 

 
 
 
Interpretation # Date Article # Subject 
    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

 

5.E.b

Packet Pg. 147

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

am
d

en
 C

o
u

n
ty

 U
D

O
 A

d
m

in
 M

an
u

al
  (

23
11

 :
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 2
01

9-
03

-0
2 

A
d

o
p

ti
n

g
 U

D
O

 A
d

m
in

is
tr

at
iv

e 
M

an
u

al
)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Consent Agenda 

 

Item Number: 6.1 

Meeting Date:   March 04, 2019 

 

Submitted By: Karen Davis, Clerk to the Board 

 Administration 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   BOC Meeting Minutes - December 3, 2018 

 

Attachments: bocminutes_120318 (DOCX) 

 

Summary: 

Corrected minutes from December 3, 2018 meeting. 

Recommendation: 

Approve. 

6.1

Packet Pg. 148



 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

December 3, 2018 

 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 
December 3, 2018 

Organizational & Regular Meeting – 8:30 AM 

Joint Meeting with Board of Education – 3:00 PM 

Historic Courtroom, Courthouse Complex 

Camden, North Carolina 

 

MINUTES 

The 2018 Organizational and December Regular Meeting of the Camden County Board of 

Commissioners was held on December 3, 2018 in the Historic Courtroom, Camden, North 

Carolina.  

 

CALL TO ORDER  

The meeting was called to order by Chairman Clayton Riggs at 8:30 AM.  Also Present: Vice 

Chairman Tom White, Commissioners Ross Munro and Randy Krainiak.  Commissioner Garry 

Meiggs was absent.  Also present were Manager Ken Bowman, Clerk to the Board Karen Davis 

and County Attorney John Morrison. 

 

Invocation and Pledge of Allegiance 

Pastor Marc O’Neal gave the invocation and led in the Pledge of Allegiance. 

 

ITEM I. Consideration of the Agenda 

 

The Consent Agenda was amended as follows: 

 Amendment to Item 3 – Budget Amendments 

 Add Item 10: Amendment to Audit Contract 

 

Motion to approve the agenda as amended. 

RESULT: PASSED [UNANIMOUS] 

MOVER: Tom White, Vice Chairman 

AYES: White, Krainiak, Riggs, Munro 

ABSENT: Meiggs 

  

ITEM II. Tax Administrator Appointment 

 

Motion to reappoint Lisa Anderson as the Tax Administrator for an additional four-year 

term. 

 

RESULT: PASSED [UNANIMOUS] 

MOVER: Tom White, Vice Chairman 

AYES: White, Krainiak, Riggs, Munro 

ABSENT: Meiggs 

  

ITEM III. Approval of Bonds 

 

 Board of Commissioners 

 Finance Officer 

 South Camden Water & Sewer District 

 Courthouse/Shiloh Fire Commission 

 South Mills Fire Commission 

 Joyce Creek Watershed 

6.1.a

Packet Pg. 149

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

12
03

18
  (

23
07

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
D

ec
em

b
er

 3
, 2

01
8)



 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

December 3, 2018 

 

 Tourism Development Authority 

 Tax Assessor & Collector 

 Register of Deeds 

 Sheriff 

 

Motion to approve the bonds as presented. 

RESULT: PASSED [UNANIMOUS] 

MOVER: Randy Krainiak, Commissioner 

AYES: White, Krainiak, Riggs, Munro 

ABSENT: Meiggs 

  

ITEM IV. Swearing-In Ceremony 

 

The following public officials were sworn in by the Honorable Judge Eula E. Reid of the First 

Judicial District Court: 

 

Commissioner ........................................ Clayton D. Riggs 

Commissioner ........................................ Tom White 

Sheriff .................................................... Kevin Jones 

Tax Administrator .................................. Lisa Anderson 

Clerk of Superior Court .......................... Paula J. Harrison 

Assistant Clerk of Superior Court .......... Jennifer L. Gray 

Assistant Clerk of Superior Court .......... Elaine S. Pritchard 

Deputy Clerk of Superior Court ............. Karla E. Brooks 

Deputy Clerk of Superior Court ............. Angela J. Wood 

Deputy Clerk of Superior Court ............. Amber H. Jennings 

Board of Education ................................ Sissy Aydlett 

Board of Education ................................ Jason A. Banks 

Board of Education ................................ Chris Purcell 

Soil & Water Conservation .................... George Tarkington 

District Supervisor  

ITEM V. Presentations  

 

1. Broadband Grant 

 

The Board of Commissioners of Camden County, N.C., along with Eastern Shore 

Communications, is pleased to announce a significant United States Department of 

Agriculture grant award under the purview of the Community Connect Initiative. Eastern 

Shore Communications, a privately held regional Internet Service Provider, was recently 

notified that it will receive $1.8M in order to provide internet infrastructure 

improvements serving Camden County. The funding is exclusively for investment in 

Camden County and is intended to offer a faster and more reliable internet user 

experience for the unserved and underserved residents and businesses in the community.  

 

The Task Force on Agriculture and Rural Prosperity, a Federal Interagency initiative, was 

implemented to identify legislative, regulatory, and policy changes to promote 

agriculture, economic development, job growth, infrastructure improvements, 

technological innovation, energy security, and quality of life in rural America. Of the 

many recommendations made to the President of The United States by the Task Force, 

was the importance of improving e-Connectivity for Rural America. The Task Force also 

cited   e-Connectivity as fundamental for economic development, workforce readiness 

and, importantly, for education. The Camden County focused award was substantiated, in 

large measure, given the need to improve student internet access throughout the 

community. Camden County Schools played a major role in gathering supporting data for 

improved internet access on behalf of its students. A County wide Internet Feasibility 

Study recently conducted also revealed specific areas of the Camden community that are 

underserved or unserved as defined by the USDA Rural Utilities Service.             

  

6.1.a

Packet Pg. 150

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

12
03

18
  (

23
07

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
D

ec
em

b
er

 3
, 2

01
8)



 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

December 3, 2018 

 

The County’s efforts were also supported by the N.C. Broadband Infrastructure Office 

and The Albemarle Commission. Of particular note, was the role of U.S. Senators 

Richard Burr & Thom Tillis, as well as that of U.S. Congressman Walter Jones, in 

garnering the necessary Federal level support for USDA grant awards to several North 

Carolina communities, Camden being one.   

 

2. Currituck Chamber of Commerce 

 

Josh Bass presented the 2018 President’s Award to Camden County for its continued 

support of the Currituck Chamber of Commerce and commitment to regionalism. 

 

ITEM VI. Election of Chairman to the Board 

 County Attorney John Morrison opened the floor for nominations of Chairman to the Board 

of Commissioners. 

Motion to nominate Tom White as Chairman to the Board of Commissioners. 

RESULT: PASSED [UNANIMOUS] 

MOVER: Ross Munro, Commissioner 

AYES: White, Krainiak, Riggs, Munro 

ABSENT: Meiggs 

  

ITEM VII. Election of Vice Chairman to the Board 

 

County Attorney John Morrison opened the floor for nominations of Vice Chairman to the Board 

of Commissioners. 

 

Motion to nominate Clayton Riggs as Vice Chairman to the Board of Commissioners. 

RESULT: PASSED [UNANIMOUS] 

MOVER: Randy Krainiak, Commissioner 

AYES: White, Krainiak, Riggs, Munro 

ABSENT: Meiggs 

  

ITEM VIII. 2019 Meeting Calendar 

 

6.1.a

Packet Pg. 151

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

12
03

18
  (

23
07

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
D

ec
em

b
er

 3
, 2

01
8)



 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

December 3, 2018 

 

Motion to approve the 2019 Meeting Calendar of the Board of Commissioners as 

presented. 

RESULT: PASSED [UNANIMOUS] 

MOVER: Randy Krainiak, Commissioner 

AYES: White, Krainiak, Riggs, Munro 

ABSENT: Meiggs 

  

ITEM IX. 2019 State Holiday Schedule 

 

 
 

Motion to approve the 2019 State Holiday Schedule. 

RESULT: PASSED [UNANIMOUS] 

MOVER: Ross Munro, Commissioner 

AYES: White, Krainiak, Riggs, Munro 

ABSENT: Meiggs 

  

ITEM X. Public Comments – None. 

 

ITEM XI. Old Business 

 

1. McClees Consulting, Inc. – Contract 

 

Chairman Tom White spoke in opposition to renewing the contract with McClees Consulting.  

He believes the county can utilize the resources offered by the NCACC in its place. 

 

Vice Chairman Clayton Riggs spoke in support of renewing the contract with McClees 

Consulting.  He is of the opinion that the lobbyists are more effective in representing the smaller 

counties in Northeastern North Carolina such as Camden County. 

 

6.1.a

Packet Pg. 152

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

12
03

18
  (

23
07

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
D

ec
em

b
er

 3
, 2

01
8)



 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

December 3, 2018 

 

Commissioner Randy Krainiak spoke in opposition to renewing the contract.  He believes the 

voice of the lobbyists are no stronger than the voices of our elected officials. 

 

Commissioner Ross Munro spoke in opposition to renewing the contract.  He is of the opinion 

that the county manager can contact our representatives when the need arises to represent the 

best interests of Camden. 

 

Motion to not renew the contract with McClees Consulting, Inc. 

RESULT: PASSED [3-1] 

MOVER: Randy Krainiak, Commissioner 

AYES: White, Krainiak, Munro 

NOES: Riggs 

ABSENT: Meiggs 

  

ITEM XII. New Business 

 

1. Proclamation Renaming Senior Center 

 

 
 

Motion to approve Proclamation Renaming the Camden County Senior Center. 

RESULT: PASSED [UNANIMOUS] 

MOVER: Clayton Riggs, Vice Chairman 

AYES: White, Krainiak, Riggs, Munro 

ABSENT: Meiggs 

  

6.1.a

Packet Pg. 153

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

12
03

18
  (

23
07

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
D

ec
em

b
er

 3
, 2

01
8)



 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

December 3, 2018 

 

ITEM XIII. Board Appointments 

 

1. Commissioner Advisory Board Appointments 

 

The following Commissioner Board Assignments are due for reappointment: 

 

 Clayton Riggs 

Albemarle Commission Board of Delegates - Exp. 1/1/2019 

Albemarle District Jail - Exp. 1/1/2019 

 Tom White 

ARPO - Exp. 12/31/2018 

Pasquotank-Camden EMS Board - Exp. 12/31/2018 

Parks & Recreation Board - Exp. 12/31/2018 

 Randy Krainiak 

Home & Community Block Grant - Exp. 1/1/2019 

 Ross Munro 

911 Advisory Board - Exp. 1/1/2019 

Public Safety Board - Exp. 1/1/2019 

 

Motion to reappoint Commissioner Board Assignments for an additional term. 

RESULT: PASSED [UNANIMOUS] 

MOVER: Clayton Riggs, Vice Chairman 

AYES: White, Krainiak, Riggs, Munro 

ABSENT: Meiggs 

  

ITEM XIV. Consent Agenda 

 

1. BOC/CEDC Joint Meeting Minutes – October 9, 2018 

 

2. BOC Minutes – November 5, 2018 

 

3. Budget Amendments 

 

 

6.1.a

Packet Pg. 154

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

12
03

18
  (

23
07

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
D

ec
em

b
er

 3
, 2

01
8)



 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

December 3, 2018 

 

 
 

 

6.1.a

Packet Pg. 155

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

12
03

18
  (

23
07

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
D

ec
em

b
er

 3
, 2

01
8)



 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

December 3, 2018 

 

 
 

 

4. Pickups, Releases & Refunds 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

6.1.a

Packet Pg. 156

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

12
03

18
  (

23
07

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
D

ec
em

b
er

 3
, 2

01
8)



 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

December 3, 2018 

 

5. Tax Collection Report 

 
6. DMV Monthly Report 

 
 

6.1.a

Packet Pg. 157

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

12
03

18
  (

23
07

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
D

ec
em

b
er

 3
, 2

01
8)



 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

December 3, 2018 

 

7. Vehicle Refunds Over $100 

 
 

8. Refunds Over $100 

 

 
 

 

9. Surplus Property – Senior Center 

 
ITEM METHOD REASON 

Recumbent Exercise Bike 

(broken) 

Trash Replacing with commercial  

grade product 

Nordic Track CS 990 

 

GovDeals Replacing with commercial  

grade product 

Upright Exercise Bike (broken) Trash Replacing with commercial  

grade product 

Bowflex Treadmill 

 

GovDeals Replacing with commercial  

grade product 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

6.1.a

Packet Pg. 158

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

12
03

18
  (

23
07

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
D

ec
em

b
er

 3
, 2

01
8)



 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

December 3, 2018 

 

 

 

10. Amendment to Audit Contract 

 

 
 

 

6.1.a

Packet Pg. 159

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

12
03

18
  (

23
07

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
D

ec
em

b
er

 3
, 2

01
8)



 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

December 3, 2018 

 

 
 

Motion to approve the Consent Agenda as amended. 

RESULT: PASSED [UNANIMOUS] 

MOVER: Clayton Riggs, Vice Chairman 

AYES: White, Krainiak, Riggs, Munro 

ABSENT: Meiggs 

  

 

ITEM XV. Information, Reports & Minutes from Other Agencies 

 

The following was provided to the commissioners for information purposes: 

 

1. FY 18-19 Year-to-Date Finance Report 

2. Register of Deeds Reports 

3. Library Report – October 2018 

4. ABC Funds Report for FY 17-18 

 

 

ITEM XVI. County Manager’s Report 

 

County Manager Ken Bowman’s report included the following: 

 

 Special Meeting to discuss UDO – December 12, 2018 at 12:00 PM 

 Fire engine temporary building to be delivered - December 5, 2018 

 Tree Lighting Ceremony – December 7, 2018 at 5:30 PM 

 Success Academy Ribbon Cutting – December 12, 2018 at 10:00 AM 

6.1.a

Packet Pg. 160

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

12
03

18
  (

23
07

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
D

ec
em

b
er

 3
, 2

01
8)



 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

December 3, 2018 

 

 County Offices Closed – December 24-26, 2018; January 1, 2019 

 Next Board of Commissioners Meeting – January 7, 2019 

 Merry Christmas and Happy New Year 

 

 

ITEM XVII. Commissioners’ Reports – None. 

 

 

South Camden Water & Sewer District Board of Directors 

 

Chairman White recessed the Camden County Board of Commissioners and called to order the 

South Camden Water & Sewer District Board of Directors. 

 

 
 

 

Motion to approve the agenda as presented. 

RESULT: PASSED [UNANIMOUS] 

MOVER: Clayton Riggs, Vice Chairman 

AYES: White, Krainiak, Riggs, Munro 

ABSENT: Meiggs 

 

  

Public Comments  

None. 

 

Presentations  

The presentation on the Wastewater Lagoon Liner Replacement was postponed to a later date. 

 

Consent Agenda 

A. Monthly Report – October 2018 

 

6.1.a

Packet Pg. 161

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

12
03

18
  (

23
07

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
D

ec
em

b
er

 3
, 2

01
8)



 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

December 3, 2018 

 

Motion to approve the Consent Agenda as presented. 

RESULT: PASSED [UNANIMOUS] 

MOVER: Randy Krainiak, Commissioner 

AYES: White, Krainiak, Riggs, Munro 

ABSENT: Meiggs 

 

Motion to adjourn the South Camden Water & Sewer District Board of Directors meeting. 

RESULT: PASSED [UNANIMOUS] 

MOVER: Randy Krainiak, Commissioner 

AYES: White, Krainiak, Riggs, Munro 

ABSENT: Meiggs 

 

Chairman White adjourned the South Camden Water & Sewer District Board of Directors 

meeting and reconvened the Camden County Board of Commissioners. 

 

Motion to go into Closed Session to discuss personnel. 

RESULT: PASSED [UNANIMOUS] 

MOVER: Clayton Riggs, Vice Chairman 

AYES: White, Krainiak, Riggs, Munro 

ABSENT: Meiggs 

 

Motion to come out of Closed Session. 

RESULT: PASSED [UNANIMOUS] 

MOVER: Clayton Riggs, Vice Chairman 

AYES: White, Krainiak, Riggs, Munro 

ABSENT: Meiggs 

 

Motion to increase the salary of the Clerk to the Board to $40,087 annually. 

RESULT: PASSED [UNANIMOUS] 

MOVER: Clayton Riggs, Vice Chairman 

AYES: White, Krainiak, Riggs, Munro 

ABSENT: Meiggs 

 

Motion to increase the salary of the County Manager to $108,000 annually. 

RESULT: PASSED [UNANIMOUS] 

MOVER: Clayton Riggs, Vice Chairman 

AYES: White, Krainiak, Riggs, Munro 

ABSENT: Meiggs 

 

At 10:25 AM Chairman White recessed the Board of Commissioners until 12:15 PM at which 

time the Board will reconvene for a joint meeting with the Board of Education in the Camden 

County Public Library Community Room. 

 

Joint Meeting of the Camden County Board of Commissioners and  

Camden County Board of Education 

 

At 12:15 PM Chairman White reconvened the meeting of the Board of Commissioners at the 

Camden County Public Library. 

 

Chairman Christian Overton reconvened the meeting of the Camden County Board of Education. 

 

6.1.a

Packet Pg. 162

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

12
03

18
  (

23
07

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
D

ec
em

b
er

 3
, 2

01
8)



 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

December 3, 2018 

 

Dr. Joe Ferrell, Superintendent, gave the invocation and led in the Pledge of Allegiance. 

 

Consideration of the Agenda 

 

Motion to approve the agenda as presented. 

RESULT: PASSED [UNANIMOUS] 

MOVER: Randy Krainiak, Commissioner 

AYES: White, Krainiak, Riggs, Munro 

ABSENT: Meiggs 

 

Presentations 

 

1. Ken Bowman – County Manager 

 

Mr. Bowman included updates on the following in his report: 

 Appreciation to Dr. Joe Ferrell, Board of Education and Board of Commissioners 

 Budget Preparation and Adoption for FY18-19 

 Wastewater Treatment Plant 

 Active Shooter Drill 

 Purchase of Former NCDC Building and Trillium Medical Building Lagoon Liner 

Replacement  

 Unified Development Ordinance 

 Station 12 Fire 

 Broadband – Eastern Shore Communications 

 Sheriff’s Office Firing Range 

 Rural Ready Sites Grant Award 

 Camden Plantation 

 Camden Commerce Park 

 Marketing Private Property 

 Milltown Road Boat Ramp Replacement 

 BOC and SMWA Joint Meetings 

 Enforcement of Local Ordinances 

 Citizens Newsletter 

 Business Advisory Council 

 

2. Dr. Joe Ferrell – Superintendent 

 

Dr. Ferrell included updates on the following in his report: 

 Appreciation to Board of Education and County Manager Ken Bowman  

 Listening & Learning Tour 

 February 2018 Board Retreat 

 Organizational Structure 

 Strategic Plan 2019-2022 

 New Councils / Events 

 Teacher Advisory Council Revived 

 Classified Advisory Council 

 Allotment Process 

 Shout Outs! 

 Student Lunches 

 Coffee with the Superintendent 

 Convocation 

 Professional Development / MTSS Teams 

 Profile of a Graduate 

 Additions to Staff 

 Chief Academic Officer 

 School Social Worker 

 CTE Director 

6.1.a

Packet Pg. 163

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

12
03

18
  (

23
07

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
D

ec
em

b
er

 3
, 2

01
8)



 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

December 3, 2018 

 

 SRO (and one new vehicle) 

 Grants  

 Lottery Funds Projects 

 Student Service Projects 

 Awards and Recognitions 

 Focus for 2019 

 Safety & Security in Schools 

 Strategic Plan 

 Replacement High School Project 

 Central Office Renovations 

 Professional Development 

 Exceptional Children’s Services 

 Fiscal Responsibility 

 Support to Schools 

 Recruiting, Hiring and Retaining High-Quality Staff 

 Increased Academic Support 

 Communication & Transparency 

 All Schools Met or Exceeded Expected Growth 

 

Way Forward 

Following some questions concerning the potential new high school project, it was decided that a 

joint meeting of both boards will be held on January 24, 2019 at 6:00 PM for an in-depth 

discussion in regard to this issue. 

 

There being no further matters for discussion Chairman Overton called for a motion to adjourn 

the Board of Education.  Sissy Aydlett offered a motion to adjourn and a second was offered by 

Jason Banks.  The motion passed with a unanimous vote. 

 

Commissioner Ross Munro offered a motion to adjourn the Board of Commissioners.  The 

motion passed with a unanimous vote. 

 

The joint meeting of the Board of Commissioners and Board of Education was adjourned at 2:00 

PM.   

 

 

            

     Tom White, Chairman 

 

ATTEST: 

 

      

Karen M. Davis 

Clerk to the Board 

 

6.1.a

Packet Pg. 164

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

12
03

18
  (

23
07

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
D

ec
em

b
er

 3
, 2

01
8)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Consent Agenda 

 

Item Number: 6.2 

Meeting Date:   March 04, 2019 

 

Submitted By: Karen Davis, Clerk to the Board 

 Administration 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   BOC/BOE Joint Meeting Minutes - January 24, 2019 

 

Attachments: bocboeminutes_012419 (DOCX) 

 

6.2

Packet Pg. 165



1 
 

 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

Camden County Board of Education 

January 24, 2019 

 

Joint Meeting 

Camden County Board of Commissioners  

Camden County Board of Education 

  January 24, 2019; 6:00 PM 

Camden County Public Library 

 

Call to Order 

A joint meeting of the Camden County Board of Commissioners and Camden County Board of 

Education was called to order by the respective Chairmen on January 24, 2019 at 6:00 PM at the 

Camden County Public Library.  The primary purpose of the meeting was to discuss the proposal 

of a new high school in Camden County. 

 

Board Members Present 

Board of Commissioners: Chairman Tom White, Vice Chairman Clayton Riggs, Commissioners 

Garry Meiggs, Randy Krainiak, Ross Munro. 

 

Camden County Board of Education: Chairman Christian Overton, Vice Chairman Jason Banks, 

Board Members Kevin Heath, Sissy Aydlett, Chris Purcell. 

 

Dr. Joe Ferrell, School Superintendent 

After a round of introductions, Dr. Ferrell addressed the questions posed by the Board of 

Commissioners which included the following: 

 What are the plans for the existing high school? 

 Open for discussion 

 Possibilities include: county complex, potential middle school, regional trade 

school 

 What are the grade levels for the proposed high school / how many students? 

 Grades 9-12, Early College included 

 600 students today; 900-1,000 future growth 

 What are the plans for the new high school / cost? 

 No floor plan as of today.  Process will include community-wide strategy to 

include stakeholders. 

 $40-45 million 

 What is the pass level at current high school for the past ten years? 

 Meeting/Exceeding state expectation  

6.2.a

Packet Pg. 166

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cb

o
em

in
u

te
s_

01
24

19
  (

23
06

 :
 B

O
C

/B
O

E
 J

o
in

t 
M

ee
ti

n
g

 M
in

u
te

s 
- 

Ja
n

u
ar

y 
24

, 2
01

9)



2 
 

 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

Camden County Board of Education 

January 24, 2019 

 

 
 

 What is the projected student population in 5-10-20 years? 

(The following taken from NCDPI data) 

 
 

6.2.a

Packet Pg. 167

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cb

o
em

in
u

te
s_

01
24

19
  (

23
06

 :
 B

O
C

/B
O

E
 J

o
in

t 
M

ee
ti

n
g

 M
in

u
te

s 
- 

Ja
n

u
ar

y 
24

, 2
01

9)



3 
 

 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

Camden County Board of Education 

January 24, 2019 

 

(The following data provided by Board of Education) 

 

 
 

 Is this project a need or a want? 

 What is in the best interest of our students is what is wanted, which in turn many 

times leads to needs. 

 What is the current high school not providing to students that would be provided by the 

new high school? ( see handout provided)  Dr. Ferrell stressed the importance of having 

space for additional programming. 
 

 

6.2.a

Packet Pg. 168

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cb

o
em

in
u

te
s_

01
24

19
  (

23
06

 :
 B

O
C

/B
O

E
 J

o
in

t 
M

ee
ti

n
g

 M
in

u
te

s 
- 

Ja
n

u
ar

y 
24

, 2
01

9)



4 
 

 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

Camden County Board of Education 

January 24, 2019 

 

 What is the estimate for the early college building? 

 Proposed 11,000 square feet - $1.5 million  

 How many students in each grade level 1-12? 

 Reference NCDPI data chart in previous question. 

 What are the current repairs / upgrades needed or identified for current buildings? 

 High School – General Maintenance 

 Early College – Consideration is being given to close in the breezeways at an 

estimated cost of $22,000; roof work needed, door replacement needed; lack of 

restrooms; a/c unit replacement needed. 

 How many charter schools have affected growth? 

 Total of 28 students in charter schools, which is less than 1% of the students in 

Camden. 

Ken Bowman, County Manager 

Mr. Bowman’s presentation included the following information: 

 Current Subdivisions – Date of Approval by Planning Department 

 Wharf’s Landing 11/30/02 

 Sanders Crossing 1/29/02 

 Bartlett’s Landing 6/6/95 

 Danson’s Grant 12/19/95 

 

 2010 Census – 9880  (7.3% increase since 2006; about 1.8% per year) 

 2019 State Projection – 10805 (8.2% since 2010) 

Dr. Ferrell provided the following to show how the subdivisions impacted growth in Camden 

County Schools: 

 

6.2.a

Packet Pg. 169

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cb

o
em

in
u

te
s_

01
24

19
  (

23
06

 :
 B

O
C

/B
O

E
 J

o
in

t 
M

ee
ti

n
g

 M
in

u
te

s 
- 

Ja
n

u
ar

y 
24

, 2
01

9)



5 
 

 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

Camden County Board of Education 

January 24, 2019 

 

 

Mr. Bowman continued his presentation with the following: 

 Camden Plantation  - Projected growth for 1800 new homes, estimated buildout being 

2035 

 Planning Department official student generation rate per household: 

 Grandy Primary  522 

 Intermediate School  324 

 Middle School   126 

 High School   234 

Total           1206 

 Estimated Financing for New High School 

 Term Debt for a new high school will require a bond referendum due to bond 

financing requirement 

 Estimated on $45m school 

 Without the grant: tax impact is .29 ($200,000 home = $580 annually) 

 With the grant: tax impact is .19 ($200,000 home = $380 annually) 

 Wait 10 years: tax impact is .13 ($200,000 home = 260 annually) 

 Camden Intermediate School Debt Terms 

 $10 million over 40 years 

 Payoff in 2046 

 Payment of $520,000 annually (was not refinanced/modified) 

 Current balance due - $8,701,827 

 Camden High & Middle School Debt Terms: 

 $14 million under the special Qualified Zone Academy Bonds (QZABs) financing 

(no longer available/partial forgiveness) 

 Remaining $2m loan payoff in 2024 

 Payment is $58,000 annually (was not refinanced/modified) 

6.2.a

Packet Pg. 170

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cb

o
em

in
u

te
s_

01
24

19
  (

23
06

 :
 B

O
C

/B
O

E
 J

o
in

t 
M

ee
ti

n
g

 M
in

u
te

s 
- 

Ja
n

u
ar

y 
24

, 2
01

9)



6 
 

 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

Camden County Board of Education 

January 24, 2019 

 

 Current balance due - $260,751 

Discussion then focused on the following questions: 

 Why was it decided to purchase the Noblitt tract 10 or more years ago if there wasn’t a 

need looking forward that a new school was going to be required? 

 Commissioner Riggs explained that the school superintendent at the time had 

convinced three of the commissioners that a school was going to be needed.  

During negotiations with the owner there were changes in board members and at 

the time of the vote the price of the property included financing and an expanded 

payment plan.   

 What are the plans for the property if it is decided to not build a new school? 

 Chairman White stated that there are no other plans for the property.  The plans 

are for it to be used for a school. 

 Are we prepared to forgo the possible $15 million in needs-based grants available now 

knowing that when the need is desperately obvious the full costs will then have to be 

financed?  Would we rather have the assistance of the needs-based grant funds now or 

pay a larger balance later? 

 Chairman White stated that he is not of the opinion that anyone is against building 

a school.  He wants to make sure that a commitment is not made prematurely; that 

it is the right thing at the right time.   

 Dr. Ferrell reminded the group that if the school applies and is granted the $15 

million in August, there is a $5 million local match requirement.   

 Finance Officer Stephanie Humphries stated that in actuality there is a $30 million 

match because $15 million won’t build a school; there will need to be a bond 

referendum. 

Commissioner Randy Krainiak made a motion that we apply for the grant as presented.   

Commissioner Meiggs commented that the county cannot apply for the grant.  The county can 

support the schools in applying for the grant.   

Dr. Ferrell stated that by supporting it there also has to be a commitment for the match.   

Commissioner Krainiak rescinded his motion. 

Commissioner Ross Munro suggested that a referendum be placed on ballot in 2020.  

Dr. Ferrell stated that this is the last year the grant is open to the counties in our tier.  Next year it 

will be open to the entire state.   

6.2.a

Packet Pg. 171

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cb

o
em

in
u

te
s_

01
24

19
  (

23
06

 :
 B

O
C

/B
O

E
 J

o
in

t 
M

ee
ti

n
g

 M
in

u
te

s 
- 

Ja
n

u
ar

y 
24

, 2
01

9)



7 
 

 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

Camden County Board of Education 

January 24, 2019 

 

The Board of Commissioners agreed by consensus to place this as an item for discussion on the 

February 15, 2019 retreat agenda.  

It was decided to hold another joint meeting on March 28, 2019 at 6:00 PM with a meal at 5:30 

PM in the Library Community Room. 

There being no further matters for discussion, Board of Education member Kevin Heath offered 

a motion to adjourn; seconded by Sissy Aydlett.  The motion passed unanimously.  Chairman 

Christian Overton adjourned the meeting of the Board of Education at 7:40 PM. 

Commissioner Randy Krainiak offered a motion to adjourn the Board of Commissioners.  The 

motion passed unanimously.  Chairman Tom White adjourned the meeting of the Board of 

Commissioners at 7:50 PM. 

             

      Tom White, Chairman 

      Camden County Board of Commissioners 

ATTEST: 

      

Karen M. Davis 

Clerk to the Board 

 

        

 

 

 

 

 

 

6.2.a

Packet Pg. 172

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cb

o
em

in
u

te
s_

01
24

19
  (

23
06

 :
 B

O
C

/B
O

E
 J

o
in

t 
M

ee
ti

n
g

 M
in

u
te

s 
- 

Ja
n

u
ar

y 
24

, 2
01

9)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Consent Agenda 

 

Item Number: 6.3 

Meeting Date:   March 04, 2019 

 

Submitted By: Karen Davis, Clerk to the Board 

 Administration 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   BOC Minutes - February 4, 2019 

 

Attachments: bocminutes_020419 (DOCX) 

 

6.3

Packet Pg. 173



 

1 

 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 
February 4, 2019 

Closed Session – 6:30 PM 

Regular Meeting – 7:00 PM 

Historic Courtroom, Courthouse Complex 

Camden, North Carolina 

 

MINUTES 

The regular meeting of the Camden County Board of Commissioners was held on February 4, 

2019 in the Historic Courtroom, Camden, North Carolina.  

 

CALL TO ORDER  

The meeting was called to order by Chairman Tom White at 6:30 PM.  Also Present: Vice 

Chairman Clayton Riggs, Commissioners Garry Meiggs, Ross Munro and Randy Krainiak.   

 

Staff Present: County Manager Ken Bowman, County Attorney John Morrison, Clerk to the 

Board Karen Davis. 

 

Motion to go into Closed Session to discuss personnel. 

RESULT: PASSED [UNANIMOUS] 

MOVER: Garry Meiggs, Commissioner 

AYES: White, Krainiak, Meiggs, Riggs, Munro 

  

Motion to come out of Closed Session. 

RESULT: PASSED [UNANIMOUS] 

MOVER: Clayton Riggs, Vice Chairman 

AYES: White, Krainiak, Meiggs, Riggs, Munro 

  

At 6:50 PM Chairman Tom White recessed the meeting of the Board of Commissioners until 

7:00 PM. 

 

At 7:00 PM Chairman White reconvened the meeting of the Board of Commissioners and 

welcomed those in attendance.  Additional staff present for the regular meeting: Tax 

Administrator Lisa Anderson, Public Works Director David Credle, Planning Director Dan 

Porter, Permit & Zoning Office Dave Parks, Economic Development Director Charlie Bauman. 

 

Invocation and Pledge of Allegiance 

Rev. Kevin Lighty gave the invocation and led in the Pledge of Allegiance. 

 

6.3.a

Packet Pg. 174

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

02
04

19
  (

23
09

 :
 B

O
C

 M
in

u
te

s 
- 

F
eb

ru
ar

y 
4,

 2
01

9)



 

2 

 

ITEM 1. PUBLIC COMMENTS        

 

 Ms. Becky Phelps addressed the Board and spoke in support of Jasmine Wilson, Director 

of Camden Center for Active Adults, the hiring of a center assistant and senior trips. 

 

 Mrs. Brenda Bowman addressed the Board concerning 2019 Spring Litter Sweep as 

declared by Governor Roy Cooper for April 13-27, 2019.  This event will be held in 

conjunction with NCDOT’s Statewide Roadside Litter Removal Initiative.  The goal is to 

have civic clubs, school clubs, groups, scouts, churches, neighborhoods, individuals, etc. 

to have teams pick a day during that timeframe and commit to pick up trash on a road(s), 

or in a neighborhood.  The Board of Commissioners will be presented for its approval a 

proclamation proclaiming April 13-27, 2019 as Camden County Spring Litter Sweep.   

 

 Mark Gregory addressed the Board.  He congratulated the county on moving forward 

with the Unified Development Ordinance.  He also requested that the Board consider 

making adjustments to the Water & Sewer assessments for future development as they 

are excessive in his opinion. 

 

ITEM 2. CONFLICT OF INTEREST DISCLOSURE STATEMENT   

 

Clerk to the Board Karen Davis read the Conflict of Interest Disclosure Statement. 

 

ITEM 3. CONSIDERATION OF AGENDA       

 

Motion to approve the agenda as presented. 

RESULT: PASSED [UNANIMOUS] 

MOVER: Clayton Riggs, Vice Chairman 

AYES: White, Krainiak, Meiggs, Riggs, Munro 

  

ITEM 4. PRESENTATIONS         

 

1. Ella Fields-Bunch from Juvenile Crime Prevention Council referenced a Resolution 

included on the meeting agenda in support of JCPC allocation and expansion. 

2. Dismal Swamp Welcome Center Director Donna Stewart presented a proclamation by 

Governor Roy Cooper in recognition of the 350th Anniversary of the Original Precincts of 

North Carolina. 

 

South Camden Water & Sewer District Board of Directors 

 

Chairman White recessed the meeting of the Board of Commissioners and called to order the 

South Camden Water & Sewer District Board of Directors Meeting. 

 

6.3.a

Packet Pg. 175

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

02
04

19
  (

23
09

 :
 B

O
C

 M
in

u
te

s 
- 

F
eb

ru
ar

y 
4,

 2
01

9)



 

3 

 

Public Comments – None 

 
 

Consideration of the Agenda 

 

Motion to approve the agenda as presented. 

RESULT: PASSED [UNANIMOUS] 

MOVER: Garry Meiggs, Commissioner 

AYES: White, Krainiak, Meiggs, Riggs, Munro 

  

New Business 

 

A. Monthly Report 

 

Public Works Director David Credle presented the monthly report for December 2018 and the 

12-month report. 

 

 
 

6.3.a

Packet Pg. 176

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

02
04

19
  (

23
09

 :
 B

O
C

 M
in

u
te

s 
- 

F
eb

ru
ar

y 
4,

 2
01

9)



 

4 

 

 
 

Motion to approve the monthly report as presented. 

RESULT: PASSED [UNANIMOUS] 

MOVER: Clayton Riggs, Vice Chairman 

AYES: White, Krainiak, Meiggs, Riggs, Munro 

  

Motion to adjourn the meeting of the South Camden Water & Sewer Board of Directors. 

RESULT: PASSED [UNANIMOUS] 

MOVER: Randy Krainiak, Commissioner 

AYES: White, Krainiak, Meiggs, Riggs, Munro 

  

Chairman White adjourned the South Camden Water & Sewer District Board of Directors and 

reconvened the Camden County Board of Commissioners. 

 

ITEM 5. PUBLIC HEARINGS         

 

A. Small Business Incentive Grant 

 

Motion to go into Public Hearing to receive public input regarding an economic 

development small business grant. 

6.3.a

Packet Pg. 177

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

02
04

19
  (

23
09

 :
 B

O
C

 M
in

u
te

s 
- 

F
eb

ru
ar

y 
4,

 2
01

9)



 

5 

 

RESULT: PASSED [UNANIMOUS] 

MOVER: Clayton Riggs, Vice Chairman 

AYES: White, Krainiak, Meiggs, Riggs, Munro 

  

Economic Development Director Charlie Bauman referred to the following information in which 

the Board of Commissioners had discussed in its January meeting.  Chesapeake Regional 

Medical Group has plans to open a primary care clinic in Camden County in the Camden Towne 

Center development.  Chesapeake Regional Medical Group will invest more than $360,000 in 

the project.  The building’s owner is offering six months rent-free to the clinic and is also 

contributing $50,000 toward the cost of renovations.  To help recover some of the costs, 

Chesapeake Regional Medical Group has applied for a business incentive grant from the county.  

The incentive, totaling $13,460.00, will be in the form of cash and dispersed to Chesapeake 

Regional Medical Group Primary Care Camden in equivalent sums over a five-year period.   

 

Chairman White opened the floor for public input.  There were no comments offered from the 

public in regard to the incentive grant. 

 

Motion to close the public hearing. 

RESULT: PASSED [UNANIMOUS] 

MOVER: Clayton Riggs, Vice Chairman 

AYES: White, Krainiak, Meiggs, Riggs, Munro 

  

Motion to add the Business Incentive Grant to New Business as Item 7.E.   

RESULT: PASSED [UNANIMOUS] 

MOVER: Garry Meiggs, Commissioner 

AYES: White, Krainiak, Meiggs, Riggs, Munro 

  

B. Rezoning Application – Ordinance 2019-01-01 

 

Motion to go into Public Hearing to receive public input regarding Ordinance 2019-01-01 

Rezoning Application. 

RESULT: PASSED [UNANIMOUS] 

MOVER: Garry Meiggs, Commissioner 

AYES: White, Krainiak, Meiggs, Riggs, Munro 

  

Permit & Zoning Officer Dave Parks presented the following staff report to the Board: 

 

 

 

6.3.a

Packet Pg. 178

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

02
04

19
  (

23
09

 :
 B

O
C

 M
in

u
te

s 
- 

F
eb

ru
ar

y 
4,

 2
01

9)



 

6 

 

 

 
 

6.3.a

Packet Pg. 179

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

02
04

19
  (

23
09

 :
 B

O
C

 M
in

u
te

s 
- 

F
eb

ru
ar

y 
4,

 2
01

9)



 

7 

 

 
 

 

6.3.a

Packet Pg. 180

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

02
04

19
  (

23
09

 :
 B

O
C

 M
in

u
te

s 
- 

F
eb

ru
ar

y 
4,

 2
01

9)



 

8 

 

 
 

 

6.3.a

Packet Pg. 181

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

02
04

19
  (

23
09

 :
 B

O
C

 M
in

u
te

s 
- 

F
eb

ru
ar

y 
4,

 2
01

9)



 

9 

 

 
 

 

6.3.a

Packet Pg. 182

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

02
04

19
  (

23
09

 :
 B

O
C

 M
in

u
te

s 
- 

F
eb

ru
ar

y 
4,

 2
01

9)



 

10 

 

 
 

 

6.3.a

Packet Pg. 183

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

02
04

19
  (

23
09

 :
 B

O
C

 M
in

u
te

s 
- 

F
eb

ru
ar

y 
4,

 2
01

9)



 

11 

 

 
 

 

6.3.a

Packet Pg. 184

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

02
04

19
  (

23
09

 :
 B

O
C

 M
in

u
te

s 
- 

F
eb

ru
ar

y 
4,

 2
01

9)



 

12 

 

 
 

 

6.3.a

Packet Pg. 185

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

02
04

19
  (

23
09

 :
 B

O
C

 M
in

u
te

s 
- 

F
eb

ru
ar

y 
4,

 2
01

9)



 

13 

 

 
 

 

6.3.a

Packet Pg. 186

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

02
04

19
  (

23
09

 :
 B

O
C

 M
in

u
te

s 
- 

F
eb

ru
ar

y 
4,

 2
01

9)



 

14 

 

 
 

 

6.3.a

Packet Pg. 187

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

02
04

19
  (

23
09

 :
 B

O
C

 M
in

u
te

s 
- 

F
eb

ru
ar

y 
4,

 2
01

9)



 

15 

 

 
 

 

6.3.a

Packet Pg. 188

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

02
04

19
  (

23
09

 :
 B

O
C

 M
in

u
te

s 
- 

F
eb

ru
ar

y 
4,

 2
01

9)



 

16 

 

 
 

 

6.3.a

Packet Pg. 189

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

02
04

19
  (

23
09

 :
 B

O
C

 M
in

u
te

s 
- 

F
eb

ru
ar

y 
4,

 2
01

9)



 

17 

 

 
 

 

6.3.a

Packet Pg. 190

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

02
04

19
  (

23
09

 :
 B

O
C

 M
in

u
te

s 
- 

F
eb

ru
ar

y 
4,

 2
01

9)



 

18 

 

 
 

 

6.3.a

Packet Pg. 191

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

02
04

19
  (

23
09

 :
 B

O
C

 M
in

u
te

s 
- 

F
eb

ru
ar

y 
4,

 2
01

9)



 

19 

 

 
 

 

6.3.a

Packet Pg. 192

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

02
04

19
  (

23
09

 :
 B

O
C

 M
in

u
te

s 
- 

F
eb

ru
ar

y 
4,

 2
01

9)



 

20 

 

 
 

 

6.3.a

Packet Pg. 193

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

02
04

19
  (

23
09

 :
 B

O
C

 M
in

u
te

s 
- 

F
eb

ru
ar

y 
4,

 2
01

9)



 

21 

 

 
 

 

6.3.a

Packet Pg. 194

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

02
04

19
  (

23
09

 :
 B

O
C

 M
in

u
te

s 
- 

F
eb

ru
ar

y 
4,

 2
01

9)



 

22 

 

 
 

 

6.3.a

Packet Pg. 195

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

02
04

19
  (

23
09

 :
 B

O
C

 M
in

u
te

s 
- 

F
eb

ru
ar

y 
4,

 2
01

9)



 

23 

 

 
 

 

6.3.a

Packet Pg. 196

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

02
04

19
  (

23
09

 :
 B

O
C

 M
in

u
te

s 
- 

F
eb

ru
ar

y 
4,

 2
01

9)



 

24 

 

 
 

 

6.3.a

Packet Pg. 197

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

02
04

19
  (

23
09

 :
 B

O
C

 M
in

u
te

s 
- 

F
eb

ru
ar

y 
4,

 2
01

9)



 

25 

 

 
 

 

6.3.a

Packet Pg. 198

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

02
04

19
  (

23
09

 :
 B

O
C

 M
in

u
te

s 
- 

F
eb

ru
ar

y 
4,

 2
01

9)



 

26 

 

Attorney Herbert Mullen was present and made himself available to answer any questions that 

they Board may have. 

 

Chairman White opened the floor for public comment. 

 

Mr. Alvin Hess addressed the Board.  He stated that the situation came out of a mistake created 

by the attorney who drew up the deed and requested that the Board approve the rezoning 

application so that the taxes on the property can be paid and everyone involved can move 

forward. 

 

There were no further comments from the public. 

 

Motion to close the public hearing. 

RESULT: PASSED [UNANIMOUS] 

MOVER: Garry Meiggs, Commissioner 

AYES: White, Krainiak, Meiggs, Riggs, Munro 

  

Motion to add Rezoning application – Ordinance 2019-01-01 to New Business as Item 7.F. 

RESULT: PASSED [UNANIMOUS] 

MOVER: Clayton Riggs, Vice Chairman 

AYES: White, Krainiak, Meiggs, Riggs, Munro 

  

ITEM 6. OLD BUSINESS          

 

A. Unified Development Ordinance 2018-09-01  

 

Planning Director Dan Porter presented the following: 

 

 

6.3.a

Packet Pg. 199

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

02
04

19
  (

23
09

 :
 B

O
C

 M
in

u
te

s 
- 

F
eb

ru
ar

y 
4,

 2
01

9)



 

27 

 

 
 

 

6.3.a

Packet Pg. 200

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

02
04

19
  (

23
09

 :
 B

O
C

 M
in

u
te

s 
- 

F
eb

ru
ar

y 
4,

 2
01

9)



 

28 

 

It was requested by Mr. Porter that the ordinance be effective upon its adoption. 

 

Motion to approve Ordinance 2018-09-01, adopting the January 15, 2019 adoption draft of 

the Unified Development Ordinance with the changes as noted on the errata sheet with an 

effective date of February 4, 2019 as recommended by the Planning Department. 

RESULT: PASSED [UNANIMOUS] 

MOVER: Garry Meiggs, Commissioner 

AYES: White, Krainiak, Meiggs, Riggs, Munro 

 

 

6.3.a

Packet Pg. 201

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

02
04

19
  (

23
09

 :
 B

O
C

 M
in

u
te

s 
- 

F
eb

ru
ar

y 
4,

 2
01

9)



 

29 

 

 
 

 

ITEM 7. NEW BUSINESS          

 

A. Tax Report  

 

Tax Administrator Lisa Anderson presented the tax report for December 2018. 

 

 

 

 

6.3.a

Packet Pg. 202

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

02
04

19
  (

23
09

 :
 B

O
C

 M
in

u
te

s 
- 

F
eb

ru
ar

y 
4,

 2
01

9)



 

30 

 

 
 

 
 

 

6.3.a

Packet Pg. 203

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

02
04

19
  (

23
09

 :
 B

O
C

 M
in

u
te

s 
- 

F
eb

ru
ar

y 
4,

 2
01

9)



 

31 

 

 
 

30 Largest Unpaid – Real  

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

6.3.a

Packet Pg. 204

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

02
04

19
  (

23
09

 :
 B

O
C

 M
in

u
te

s 
- 

F
eb

ru
ar

y 
4,

 2
01

9)



 

32 

 

30 Oldest Unpaid – Real 

 
30 Largest Unpaid – Personal 

 
 

30 Oldest Unpaid – Personal 

 
 

 

6.3.a

Packet Pg. 205

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

02
04

19
  (

23
09

 :
 B

O
C

 M
in

u
te

s 
- 

F
eb

ru
ar

y 
4,

 2
01

9)



 

33 

 

In addition to her report, Mrs. Anderson read a letter addressed to two employees, Kim Minton 

and Jessica Gallop.  The letter was written by County Manager Ken Bowman congratulating the 

two on a phone called he had received from a citizen who had expressed appreciation for the 

customer service she had experienced in the Tax Office. 

 

Motion to approve the tax report as presented. 

RESULT: PASSED [UNANIMOUS] 

MOVER: Randy Krainiak, Commissioner 

AYES: White, Krainiak, Meiggs, Riggs, Munro 

 

B. Resolution 2019-02-01 Naming Interim Finance Officer 

 

County Manager Ken Bowman recommended that the Board adopt Resolution 2019-02-01.  The 

resolution presented will name Sally Norfleet as Interim Finance Officer.  As Interim, Mrs. 

Norfleet’s salary will increase to the minimum range for the position at Grade 74 which is 

$64,629.   

 

Motion to adopt Resolution 2019-02-01 Naming Sally Norfleet as Interim Finance Officer 

with the salary increase as presented the minimum range at Grade 74; $64,629. 

RESULT: PASSED [UNANIMOUS] 

MOVER: Ross Munro, Commissioner 

AYES: White, Krainiak, Meiggs, Riggs, Munro 

 

 

 

6.3.a

Packet Pg. 206

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

02
04

19
  (

23
09

 :
 B

O
C

 M
in

u
te

s 
- 

F
eb

ru
ar

y 
4,

 2
01

9)



 

34 

 

C. Addendum to Contract with South Mills Water Association 

 

County Manager Ken Bowman presented the following for the Board’s consideration: 

 

 
 

 

6.3.a

Packet Pg. 207

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

02
04

19
  (

23
09

 :
 B

O
C

 M
in

u
te

s 
- 

F
eb

ru
ar

y 
4,

 2
01

9)



 

35 

 

Motion to approve addendum to the original agreement with South Mills Water 

Association as entered into on May 12, 2011. 

RESULT: PASSED [UNANIMOUS] 

MOVER: Clayton Riggs, Vice Chairman 

AYES: White, Krainiak, Meiggs, Riggs, Munro 

 

D. Resolution 2019-02-02 in Support of JCPC Allocation Expansion 

 

Motion to adopt Resolution 2019-02-02 in Support of JCPC Allocation Expansion. 

RESULT: PASSED [UNANIMOUS] 

MOVER: Garry Meiggs, Commissioner 

AYES: White, Krainiak, Meiggs, Riggs, Munro 

 

 

6.3.a

Packet Pg. 208

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

02
04

19
  (

23
09

 :
 B

O
C

 M
in

u
te

s 
- 

F
eb

ru
ar

y 
4,

 2
01

9)



 

36 

 

 

E. Business Incentive Grant 

 

Motion to approve the appropriation of a business incentive grant in the amount of $13,460 

to Chesapeake Regional Medical Group Primary Care Camden, subject to execution of an 

agreement between the two parties that meets the approval of the county attorney. 

RESULT: PASSED [UNANIMOUS] 

MOVER: Clayton Riggs, Vice Chairman 

AYES: White, Krainiak, Meiggs, Riggs, Munro 

 

F. Rezoning Application – Ordinance 2019-01-01 

 

Motion that the requested zoning change is inconsistent with Camden County’s CAMA 

Land Use Plan and Comprehensive Plan as it designates property as Rural Preservation. 

RESULT: PASSED [UNANIMOUS] 

MOVER: Garry Meiggs, Commissioner 

AYES: White, Krainiak, Meiggs, Riggs, Munro 

 

Motion to approve Ordinance 2019-01-01 Zoning Application as though the request is 

inconsistent with adopted plans, it is in the best interest of the county and general public to 

correct the illegal subdivision and conform the existing condition and the law. 

RESULT: PASSED [UNANIMOUS] 

MOVER: Randy Krainiak, Commissioner 

AYES: White, Krainiak, Meiggs, Riggs, Munro 

 

6.3.a

Packet Pg. 209

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

02
04

19
  (

23
09

 :
 B

O
C

 M
in

u
te

s 
- 

F
eb

ru
ar

y 
4,

 2
01

9)



 

37 

 

 
 

 

6.3.a

Packet Pg. 210

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

02
04

19
  (

23
09

 :
 B

O
C

 M
in

u
te

s 
- 

F
eb

ru
ar

y 
4,

 2
01

9)



 

38 

 

 

 

 

ITEM 8. BOARD APPOINTMENTS         

 

1. Board of Adjustment – Don Keaton & Frank Eason (reappointments) 

2. Library Board – Anna Smith (reappointment) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

6.3.a

Packet Pg. 211

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

02
04

19
  (

23
09

 :
 B

O
C

 M
in

u
te

s 
- 

F
eb

ru
ar

y 
4,

 2
01

9)



 

39 

 

Motion to approve the board reappointments as presented. 

RESULT: PASSED [UNANIMOUS] 

MOVER: Garry Meiggs, Commissioner 

AYES: White, Krainiak, Meiggs, Riggs, Munro 

 

ITEM 9.  CONSENT AGENDA         

 

A. BOC Minutes – January 7, 2019 

B. School Budget Amendments 

 

 
 

6.3.a

Packet Pg. 212

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

02
04

19
  (

23
09

 :
 B

O
C

 M
in

u
te

s 
- 

F
eb

ru
ar

y 
4,

 2
01

9)



 

40 

 

 

 
 

6.3.a

Packet Pg. 213

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

02
04

19
  (

23
09

 :
 B

O
C

 M
in

u
te

s 
- 

F
eb

ru
ar

y 
4,

 2
01

9)



 

41 

 

 

 
 

6.3.a

Packet Pg. 214

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

02
04

19
  (

23
09

 :
 B

O
C

 M
in

u
te

s 
- 

F
eb

ru
ar

y 
4,

 2
01

9)



 

42 

 

 

 
 

6.3.a

Packet Pg. 215

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

02
04

19
  (

23
09

 :
 B

O
C

 M
in

u
te

s 
- 

F
eb

ru
ar

y 
4,

 2
01

9)



 

43 

 

 

 
 

6.3.a

Packet Pg. 216

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

02
04

19
  (

23
09

 :
 B

O
C

 M
in

u
te

s 
- 

F
eb

ru
ar

y 
4,

 2
01

9)



 

44 

 

 

 
 

6.3.a

Packet Pg. 217

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

02
04

19
  (

23
09

 :
 B

O
C

 M
in

u
te

s 
- 

F
eb

ru
ar

y 
4,

 2
01

9)



 

45 

 

 

 
 

6.3.a

Packet Pg. 218

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

02
04

19
  (

23
09

 :
 B

O
C

 M
in

u
te

s 
- 

F
eb

ru
ar

y 
4,

 2
01

9)



 

46 

 

 

 
 

6.3.a

Packet Pg. 219

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

02
04

19
  (

23
09

 :
 B

O
C

 M
in

u
te

s 
- 

F
eb

ru
ar

y 
4,

 2
01

9)



 

47 

 

 

 
 

6.3.a

Packet Pg. 220

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

02
04

19
  (

23
09

 :
 B

O
C

 M
in

u
te

s 
- 

F
eb

ru
ar

y 
4,

 2
01

9)



 

48 

 

 

 
 

6.3.a

Packet Pg. 221

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

02
04

19
  (

23
09

 :
 B

O
C

 M
in

u
te

s 
- 

F
eb

ru
ar

y 
4,

 2
01

9)



 

49 

 

 

 
 

6.3.a

Packet Pg. 222

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

02
04

19
  (

23
09

 :
 B

O
C

 M
in

u
te

s 
- 

F
eb

ru
ar

y 
4,

 2
01

9)



 

50 

 

 

 
 

6.3.a

Packet Pg. 223

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

02
04

19
  (

23
09

 :
 B

O
C

 M
in

u
te

s 
- 

F
eb

ru
ar

y 
4,

 2
01

9)



 

51 

 

C. FY 19-20 Annual Budget & CIP Calendar 

 

 

6.3.a

Packet Pg. 224

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

02
04

19
  (

23
09

 :
 B

O
C

 M
in

u
te

s 
- 

F
eb

ru
ar

y 
4,

 2
01

9)



 

52 

 

 
 

 

6.3.a

Packet Pg. 225

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

02
04

19
  (

23
09

 :
 B

O
C

 M
in

u
te

s 
- 

F
eb

ru
ar

y 
4,

 2
01

9)



 

53 

 

D. Tax Collection Report 

 
 

 

 

6.3.a

Packet Pg. 226

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

02
04

19
  (

23
09

 :
 B

O
C

 M
in

u
te

s 
- 

F
eb

ru
ar

y 
4,

 2
01

9)



 

54 

 

E. DMV Monthly Report 

 
 

6.3.a

Packet Pg. 227

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

02
04

19
  (

23
09

 :
 B

O
C

 M
in

u
te

s 
- 

F
eb

ru
ar

y 
4,

 2
01

9)



 

55 

 

F. Pickups, Releases & Refunds 

 
 

6.3.a

Packet Pg. 228

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

02
04

19
  (

23
09

 :
 B

O
C

 M
in

u
te

s 
- 

F
eb

ru
ar

y 
4,

 2
01

9)



 

56 

 

G. HMGP Designation of Applicant’s Agent 

 
Motion to approve the Consent Agenda as presented. 

RESULT: PASSED [UNANIMOUS] 

MOVER: Clayton Riggs, Vice Chairman 

AYES: White, Krainiak, Meiggs, Riggs, Munro 

  

 

6.3.a

Packet Pg. 229

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

02
04

19
  (

23
09

 :
 B

O
C

 M
in

u
te

s 
- 

F
eb

ru
ar

y 
4,

 2
01

9)



 

57 

 

 

ITEM 10. COUNTY MANAGER’S REPORT       

 

Mr. Bowman included the following in his report: 

 Inner Banks Interiors Community Welcome Event – February 8, 2019; 11:00 AM 

 Board of Commissioners Retreat – February 15, 2019; 8:30 AM 

 

ITEM 11. COMMISSIONERS’ REPORTS        

 

 Commissioner Riggs reported that the Board of Education’s Finance Officer will be 

receiving the Lewis Thompson Distinguished Service Award at the Board of Education 

Meeting on March 14, 2019.  The award also includes a $1,000 scholarship to the Early 

College.   

 Commissioner Krainiak and Chairman White expressed appreciation to all those in 

attendance. 

 

ITEM 12. INFORMATION, REPORTS & MINUTES FROM OTHER AGENCIES  

The following was provided for information purposes: 

A. Library Report – December 2018 

 

There being no further matters for discussion Chairman White entertained a motion to adjourn. 

 

Motion to adjourn. 

RESULT: PASSED [UNANIMOUS] 

MOVER: Garry Meiggs, Commissioner 

AYES: White, Krainiak, Meiggs, Riggs, Munro 

  

Chairman White adjourned the February 4, 2019 meeting of the Board of Commissioners at 7:55 

PM. 

 

             

      Tom White, Chairman 

      Camden County Board of Commissioners 

ATTEST: 

 

     

Karen M. Davis 

Clerk to the Board 

6.3.a

Packet Pg. 230

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

02
04

19
  (

23
09

 :
 B

O
C

 M
in

u
te

s 
- 

F
eb

ru
ar

y 
4,

 2
01

9)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Consent Agenda 

 

Item Number: 6.4 

Meeting Date:   March 04, 2019 

 

Submitted By: Sally Norfleet, 

 Finance 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   Budget Amendments 

 

Attachments: Budget Amendments (PDF) 

 

6.4

Packet Pg. 231



6.4.a

Packet Pg. 232

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
  (

23
16

 :
 B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
)



6.4.a

Packet Pg. 233

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
  (

23
16

 :
 B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
)



6.4.a

Packet Pg. 234

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
  (

23
16

 :
 B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
)



6.4.a

Packet Pg. 235

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
  (

23
16

 :
 B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Consent Agenda 

 

Item Number: 6.5 

Meeting Date:   March 04, 2019 

 

Submitted By: Lisa Anderson, Tax Administrator 

 Taxes 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   Tax Collection Report 

 

Attachments: Tax Collection Report (PDF) 

 

6.5

Packet Pg. 236



6.5.a

Packet Pg. 237

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 T

ax
 C

o
lle

ct
io

n
 R

ep
o

rt
  (

22
98

 :
 T

ax
 C

o
lle

ct
io

n
 R

ep
o

rt
)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Consent Agenda 

 

Item Number: 6.6 

Meeting Date:   March 04, 2019 

 

Submitted By: Teri Smith, 

 Taxes 

 Prepared by: Teri Smith 

 
Item Title   DMV Monthly Report 

 

Attachments: 20190206163224945.pdf (PDF) 

 

Summary:   DMV Monthly Report April, 2019 Renewals Due 5/15/19 

 

Recommendation:   Review and Approve 

6.6

Packet Pg. 238



6.6.a

Packet Pg. 239

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

01
90

20
61

63
22

49
45

.p
d

f 
 (

23
00

 :
 D

M
V

 M
o

n
th

ly
 R

ep
o

rt
)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Consent Agenda 

 

Item Number: 6.7 

Meeting Date:   March 04, 2019 

 

Submitted By: Teri Smith, 

 Taxes 

 Prepared by: Teri Smith 

 
Item Title   Refunds Over $100.00 

 

Attachments: 20190206163302369.pdf (PDF) 

 

Summary:   Refunds Over $100.00 

 

Recommendation:   Review and Approve 

6.7

Packet Pg. 240



6.7.a

Packet Pg. 241

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

01
90

20
61

63
30

23
69

.p
d

f 
 (

23
02

 :
 R

ef
u

n
d

s 
O

ve
r 

$1
00

.0
0)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Consent Agenda 

 

Item Number: 6.8 

Meeting Date:   March 04, 2019 

 

Submitted By: Teri Smith, 

 Taxes 

 Prepared by: Teri Smith 

 
Item Title   Vehicle Refunds Over $100.00 

 

Attachments: 20190206163248217.pdf (PDF) 

 

Summary:   Vehicle Refunds Over $100.00 for January, 2019 

 

Recommendation:   Review and Approve 

6.8

Packet Pg. 242



6.8.a

Packet Pg. 243

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

01
90

20
61

63
24

82
17

.p
d

f 
 (

23
01

 :
 V

eh
ic

le
 R

ef
u

n
d

s 
O

ve
r 

$1
00

.0
0)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Consent Agenda 

 

Item Number: 6.9 

Meeting Date:   March 04, 2019 

 

Submitted By: Lisa Anderson, Tax Administrator 

 Taxes 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   Pickups, Releases & Refunds 

 

Attachments: Pickups, Releases, Refunds (PDF) 

 

6.9

Packet Pg. 244



6.9.a

Packet Pg. 245

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

ic
ku

p
s,

 R
el

ea
se

s,
 R

ef
u

n
d

s 
 (

23
19

 :
 P

ic
ku

p
s,

 R
el

ea
se

s 
&

 R
ef

u
n

d
s)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Consent Agenda 

 

Item Number: 6.10 

Meeting Date:   March 04, 2019 

 

Submitted By: Sally Norfleet, 

 Finance 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   Home & Community Care Block Grant 

 

Attachments: Home & Community Care Block Grant (PDF) 

HCCBG Revised Contracts (PDF) 

 

Summary: 

See attachment. 

6.10

Packet Pg. 246



6.10.a

Packet Pg. 247

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 H

o
m

e 
&

 C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y 

C
ar

e 
B

lo
ck

 G
ra

n
t 

 (
23

18
 :

 H
o

m
e 

&
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y 
C

ar
e 

B
lo

ck
 G

ra
n

t)



6.10.b

Packet Pg. 248

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 H

C
C

B
G

 R
ev

is
ed

 C
o

n
tr

ac
ts

  (
23

18
 :

 H
o

m
e 

&
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y 
C

ar
e 

B
lo

ck
 G

ra
n

t)



6.10.b

Packet Pg. 249

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 H

C
C

B
G

 R
ev

is
ed

 C
o

n
tr

ac
ts

  (
23

18
 :

 H
o

m
e 

&
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y 
C

ar
e 

B
lo

ck
 G

ra
n

t)



6.10.b

Packet Pg. 250

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 H

C
C

B
G

 R
ev

is
ed

 C
o

n
tr

ac
ts

  (
23

18
 :

 H
o

m
e 

&
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y 
C

ar
e 

B
lo

ck
 G

ra
n

t)



6.10.b

Packet Pg. 251

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 H

C
C

B
G

 R
ev

is
ed

 C
o

n
tr

ac
ts

  (
23

18
 :

 H
o

m
e 

&
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y 
C

ar
e 

B
lo

ck
 G

ra
n

t)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Information, Reports & Minutes From Other Agencies 

 

Item Number: 9.A 

Meeting Date:   March 04, 2019 

 

Submitted By: Sally Norfleet, 

 Finance 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   FY 18-19 YTD Finance Report 

 

Attachments: Sales Tax Collections FY 18-19 (PDF) 

FY 18-19 YTD Revenues (PDF) 

FY 18-19 YTD Expenditures (PDF) 

 

Sales & Use Tax Report 

2018-2019 Revenues 

2018-2019 Expenditures 

9.A

Packet Pg. 252



9.A.a

Packet Pg. 253

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

al
es

 T
ax

 C
o

lle
ct

io
n

s 
F

Y
 1

8-
19

  (
23

17
 :

 F
Y

 1
8-

19
 Y

T
D

 F
in

an
ce

 R
ep

o
rt

)



9.A.b

Packet Pg. 254

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 F

Y
 1

8-
19

 Y
T

D
 R

ev
en

u
es

  (
23

17
 :

 F
Y

 1
8-

19
 Y

T
D

 F
in

an
ce

 R
ep

o
rt

)



9.A.b

Packet Pg. 255

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 F

Y
 1

8-
19

 Y
T

D
 R

ev
en

u
es

  (
23

17
 :

 F
Y

 1
8-

19
 Y

T
D

 F
in

an
ce

 R
ep

o
rt

)



9.A.b

Packet Pg. 256

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 F

Y
 1

8-
19

 Y
T

D
 R

ev
en

u
es

  (
23

17
 :

 F
Y

 1
8-

19
 Y

T
D

 F
in

an
ce

 R
ep

o
rt

)



9.A.b

Packet Pg. 257

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 F

Y
 1

8-
19

 Y
T

D
 R

ev
en

u
es

  (
23

17
 :

 F
Y

 1
8-

19
 Y

T
D

 F
in

an
ce

 R
ep

o
rt

)



9.A.b

Packet Pg. 258

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 F

Y
 1

8-
19

 Y
T

D
 R

ev
en

u
es

  (
23

17
 :

 F
Y

 1
8-

19
 Y

T
D

 F
in

an
ce

 R
ep

o
rt

)



9.A.b

Packet Pg. 259

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 F

Y
 1

8-
19

 Y
T

D
 R

ev
en

u
es

  (
23

17
 :

 F
Y

 1
8-

19
 Y

T
D

 F
in

an
ce

 R
ep

o
rt

)



9.A.c

Packet Pg. 260

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 F

Y
 1

8-
19

 Y
T

D
 E

xp
en

d
it

u
re

s 
 (

23
17

 :
 F

Y
 1

8-
19

 Y
T

D
 F

in
an

ce
 R

ep
o

rt
)



9.A.c

Packet Pg. 261

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 F

Y
 1

8-
19

 Y
T

D
 E

xp
en

d
it

u
re

s 
 (

23
17

 :
 F

Y
 1

8-
19

 Y
T

D
 F

in
an

ce
 R

ep
o

rt
)



9.A.c

Packet Pg. 262

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 F

Y
 1

8-
19

 Y
T

D
 E

xp
en

d
it

u
re

s 
 (

23
17

 :
 F

Y
 1

8-
19

 Y
T

D
 F

in
an

ce
 R

ep
o

rt
)



9.A.c

Packet Pg. 263

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 F

Y
 1

8-
19

 Y
T

D
 E

xp
en

d
it

u
re

s 
 (

23
17

 :
 F

Y
 1

8-
19

 Y
T

D
 F

in
an

ce
 R

ep
o

rt
)



9.A.c

Packet Pg. 264

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 F

Y
 1

8-
19

 Y
T

D
 E

xp
en

d
it

u
re

s 
 (

23
17

 :
 F

Y
 1

8-
19

 Y
T

D
 F

in
an

ce
 R

ep
o

rt
)



9.A.c

Packet Pg. 265

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 F

Y
 1

8-
19

 Y
T

D
 E

xp
en

d
it

u
re

s 
 (

23
17

 :
 F

Y
 1

8-
19

 Y
T

D
 F

in
an

ce
 R

ep
o

rt
)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Information, Reports & Minutes From Other Agencies 

 

Item Number: 9.B 

Meeting Date:   March 04, 2019 

 

Submitted By: Kim Perry, 

 Library 

 Prepared by: Kim Perry 

 
Item Title   Library Report 

 

Attachments: 19_01 (DOCX) 

 

9.B

Packet Pg. 266



Camden County Public Library 

January 2019 Statistics 

 
 

Visitor Count 2,024 

Materials Check Outs & Renewals 3,568 

Computer/ Wireless Use 770/467 

Questions Answered 311 

Juvenile Programs/Attendance 17/329 

Teen/Tween Programs/Attendance 0/0 

Adult Programs/Attendance 3/18 

Meeting Room Usage/Attendance 13/151 

Days/Hours Open 28/243 

# Items in Collection 17,641 

Library Card Holders 3,486 

 
 

 

Comparison by Year 

2017-2019 

    

           
 

3,884

3,298

3,568

2,000

2,500

3,000

3,500

4,000

Jan 2017 Jan 2018 Jan 2019

Circulation

1,695 1,727

2,024

1,500

1,600

1,700

1,800

1,900

2,000

2,100

Jan 2017 Jan 2018 Jan 2019

Attendance

9.B.a

Packet Pg. 267

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 1

9_
01

  (
23

04
 :

 L
ib

ra
ry

 R
ep

o
rt

)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Information, Reports & Minutes From Other Agencies 

 

Item Number: 9.C 

Meeting Date:   March 04, 2019 

 

Submitted By: Tammie Krauss, Register of Deeds 

 Register of Deeds 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   Register of Deeds 

 

Attachments: Register of Deeds Weekly Report (XLS) 

Register of Deeds Monthly Report (PDF) 

 

9.C

Packet Pg. 268



Camden County Register of Deeds: Tammie Krauss
January 2019Daily Deposit

DATE NC CHILDRENSNC DOM. STATE COUNTY RETIREMENTAUTO FUND STATE ROD TOTAL
TRUST VIO. FUND REV. STAMPS REV. STAMPS TREASURYGENERAL

$17.72 $33.00 $2.33

01/02/19 -$          -$          0.94$        4.96$        12.40$      44.70$      63.00$             
01/03/19 -$          -$          0.73$        4.22$        6.20$        37.85$      49.00$             
01/04/19 -$          -$          61.74$          64.26$      3.26$        18.22$      37.20$      158.72$    343.40$           
01/07/19 -$          264.60$        275.40$    2.81$        17.06$      18.60$      148.13$    726.60$           

01/08/19 5.00$        30.00$      -$              -$          1.29$        4.35$        6.20$        39.16$      86.00$             

01/09/19 -$          -$          117.60$        122.40$    3.78$        22.79$      31.00$      194.63$    492.20$           
01/10/19 5.00$        30.00$      42.14$          43.86$      4.46$        23.73$      31.00$      203.21$    383.40$           
01/11/19 1.89$        11.07$      18.60$      94.44$      126.00$           
01/14/19 2.37$        14.98$      6.20$        134.25$    157.80$           
01/15/19 285.18$        296.82$    1.74$        10.08$      18.60$      85.58$      698.00$           
01/16/19 348.39$        362.61$    5.69$        33.30$      55.80$      284.21$    1,090.00$        
01/17/19 79.87$          83.13$      2.04$        12.06$      18.60$      103.30$    299.00$           
01/18/19 1,217.65$     1,267.35$ 6.56$        38.95$      62.00$      329.89$    2,922.40$        
01/22/19 0.29$        1.88$        16.83$      19.00$             
01/23/19 -$          -$          176.40$        183.60$    4.79$        29.77$      37.20$      247.24$    679.00$           
01/24/19 2,780.26$     2,893.74$ 6.22$        38.52$      49.60$      320.86$    6,089.20$        
01/25/19 -$          -$          53.90$          56.10$      2.35$        14.12$      18.60$      121.93$    267.00$           
01/28/19 103.39$        107.61$    1.47$        7.80$        18.60$      70.13$      309.00$           
01/29/19 39.20$          40.80$      3.52$        19.28$      43.40$      168.40$    314.60$           
01/30/19 56.84$          59.16$      3.32$        19.70$      31.00$      166.98$    337.00$           
01/31/19 612.99$        638.01$    7.43$        44.15$      62.00$      381.42$    1,746.00$        

0.00
0.00

-$                 
TOTAL 10.00$      60.00$      6,240.15$     6,494.85$ 66.95$      390.99$    582.80$    3,351.86$ 17,197.60$      

9.C.a

Packet Pg. 269

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

eg
is

te
r 

o
f 

D
ee

d
s 

W
ee

kl
y 

R
ep

o
rt

  (
22

99
 :

 R
eg

is
te

r 
o

f 
D

ee
d

s)



9.C.b

Packet Pg. 270

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

eg
is

te
r 

o
f 

D
ee

d
s 

M
o

n
th

ly
 R

ep
o

rt
  (

22
99

 :
 R

eg
is

te
r 

o
f 

D
ee

d
s)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Information, Reports & Minutes From Other Agencies 

 

Item Number: 9.D 

Meeting Date:   March 04, 2019 

 

Submitted By: Karen Davis, Clerk to the Board 

 Administration 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   Community Advisory Committee Report 

 

Attachments: Community Advisory Committee Report (PDF) 

 

9.D

Packet Pg. 271



9.D.a

Packet Pg. 272

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y 
A

d
vi

so
ry

 C
o

m
m

it
te

e 
R

ep
o

rt
  (

23
08

 :
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y 
A

d
vi

so
ry

 C
o

m
m

it
te

e 
R

ep
o

rt
)


	Agenda Packet
	Welcome & Call to Order
	Invocation & Pledge of Allegiance
	Pastor Bill Blake - McBride United Methodist Church

	1. Public Comments
	2. Conflict of Interest Disclosure Statement
	3. Consideration of Agenda
	4. Presentations
	1. 2314 : Donna Stewart - Albemarle 350Th Anniversary Passport Contest
	Printout: 2314 : Donna Stewart - Albemarle 350Th Anniversary Passport Contest

	2. 2305 : Trillium Health Resources Annual Report - Bland Baker
	Printout: 2305 : Trillium Health Resources Annual Report - Bland Baker
	a. Camden County Annual Report 2018

	3. 2303 : Tim White - Parks & Recreation Department Update
	Printout: 2303 : Tim White - Parks & Recreation Department Update
	a. 2018 Camden County Parks  Recreation Report

	4. 2313 : Deputy Austin Browder - Sheriff's Office
	Printout: 2313 : Deputy Austin Browder - Sheriff's Office

	5. 2323 : Broadband Update
	Printout: 2323 : Broadband Update


	Recess to South Camden Water & Sewer District Board of Directors Meeting
	Reconvene Board of Commissioners
	5. New Business
	A. 2320 : Tax Report
	Printout: 2320 : Tax Report
	a. 20190226100603779.pdf

	B. 2315 : Memorandum of Agreement with Camden County 4-H Foundation
	Printout: 2315 : Memorandum of Agreement with Camden County 4-H Foundation
	a. Memorandum of Agreement_Treasure Point

	C. 2312 : Roadway Extension for Camden Commerce Park - Recommendation of Award
	Printout: 2312 : Roadway Extension for Camden Commerce Park - Recommendation of Award
	a. Roadway Extension Camden Commerce Park - Recommendation of Award

	D. 2310 : Resolution 2019-03-01 - Albemarle Commission
	Printout: 2310 : Resolution 2019-03-01 - Albemarle Commission
	a. Resolution Adopted by Board of Delegates Requesting First Amendment to 1997 Charter
	b. Resolution 2019-03-01 Albemarle Commission

	E. 2311 : Resolution 2019-03-02 Adopting UDO Administrative Manual
	Printout: 2311 : Resolution 2019-03-02 Adopting UDO Administrative Manual
	a. Resolution 2019-03-02 UDO Admin Manual
	b. Camden County UDO Admin Manual


	6. Consent Agenda
	1. 2307 : BOC Meeting Minutes - December 3, 2018
	Printout: 2307 : BOC Meeting Minutes - December 3, 2018
	a. bocminutes_120318

	2. 2306 : BOC/BOE Joint Meeting Minutes - January 24, 2019
	Printout: 2306 : BOC/BOE Joint Meeting Minutes - January 24, 2019
	a. bocboeminutes_012419

	3. 2309 : BOC Minutes - February 4, 2019
	Printout: 2309 : BOC Minutes - February 4, 2019
	a. bocminutes_020419

	4. 2316 : Budget Amendments
	Printout: 2316 : Budget Amendments
	a. Budget Amendments

	5. 2298 : Tax Collection Report
	Printout: 2298 : Tax Collection Report
	a. Tax Collection Report

	6. 2300 : DMV Monthly Report
	Printout: 2300 : DMV Monthly Report
	a. 20190206163224945.pdf

	7. 2302 : Refunds Over $100.00
	Printout: 2302 : Refunds Over $100.00
	a. 20190206163302369.pdf

	8. 2301 : Vehicle Refunds Over $100.00
	Printout: 2301 : Vehicle Refunds Over $100.00
	a. 20190206163248217.pdf

	9. 2319 : Pickups, Releases & Refunds
	Printout: 2319 : Pickups, Releases & Refunds
	a. Pickups, Releases, Refunds

	10. 2318 : Home & Community Care Block Grant
	Printout: 2318 : Home & Community Care Block Grant
	a. Home & Community Care Block Grant
	b. HCCBG Revised Contracts


	7. County Manager's Report
	8. Commissioners' Reports
	9. Information, Reports & Minutes From Other Agencies
	A. 2317 : FY 18-19 YTD Finance Report
	Printout: 2317 : FY 18-19 YTD Finance Report
	a. Sales Tax Collections FY 18-19
	b. FY 18-19 YTD Revenues
	c. FY 18-19 YTD Expenditures

	B. 2304 : Library Report
	Printout: 2304 : Library Report
	a. 19_01

	C. 2299 : Register of Deeds
	Printout: 2299 : Register of Deeds
	a. Register of Deeds Weekly Report
	b. Register of Deeds Monthly Report

	D. 2308 : Community Advisory Committee Report
	Printout: 2308 : Community Advisory Committee Report
	a. Community Advisory Committee Report


	10. Adjourn

	Appendix
	4.1 · 2314 : Donna Stewart - Albemarle 350Th Anniversary Passport Contest
	4.2 · 2305 : Trillium Health Resources Annual Report - Bland Baker
	4.2.a · Camden County Annual Report 2018

	4.3 · 2303 : Tim White - Parks & Recreation Department Update
	4.3.a · 2018 Camden County Parks  Recreation Report

	4.4 · 2313 : Deputy Austin Browder - Sheriff's Office
	4.5 · 2323 : Broadband Update
	5.A · 2320 : Tax Report
	5.A.a · 20190226100603779.pdf

	5.B · 2315 : Memorandum of Agreement with Camden County 4-H Foundation
	5.B.a · Memorandum of Agreement_Treasure Point

	5.C · 2312 : Roadway Extension for Camden Commerce Park - Recommendation of Award
	5.C.a · Roadway Extension Camden Commerce Park - Recommendation of Award

	5.D · 2310 : Resolution 2019-03-01 - Albemarle Commission
	5.D.a · Resolution Adopted by Board of Delegates Requesting First Amendment to 1997 Charter
	5.D.b · Resolution 2019-03-01 Albemarle Commission

	5.E · 2311 : Resolution 2019-03-02 Adopting UDO Administrative Manual
	5.E.a · Resolution 2019-03-02 UDO Admin Manual
	5.E.b · Camden County UDO Admin Manual

	6.1 · 2307 : BOC Meeting Minutes - December 3, 2018
	6.1.a · bocminutes_120318

	6.2 · 2306 : BOC/BOE Joint Meeting Minutes - January 24, 2019
	6.2.a · bocboeminutes_012419

	6.3 · 2309 : BOC Minutes - February 4, 2019
	6.3.a · bocminutes_020419

	6.4 · 2316 : Budget Amendments
	6.4.a · Budget Amendments

	6.5 · 2298 : Tax Collection Report
	6.5.a · Tax Collection Report

	6.6 · 2300 : DMV Monthly Report
	6.6.a · 20190206163224945.pdf

	6.7 · 2302 : Refunds Over $100.00
	6.7.a · 20190206163302369.pdf

	6.8 · 2301 : Vehicle Refunds Over $100.00
	6.8.a · 20190206163248217.pdf

	6.9 · 2319 : Pickups, Releases & Refunds
	6.9.a · Pickups, Releases, Refunds

	6.10 · 2318 : Home & Community Care Block Grant
	6.10.a · Home & Community Care Block Grant
	6.10.b · HCCBG Revised Contracts

	9.A · 2317 : FY 18-19 YTD Finance Report
	9.A.a · Sales Tax Collections FY 18-19
	9.A.b · FY 18-19 YTD Revenues
	9.A.c · FY 18-19 YTD Expenditures

	9.B · 2304 : Library Report
	9.B.a · 19_01

	9.C · 2299 : Register of Deeds
	9.C.a · Register of Deeds Weekly Report
	9.C.b · Register of Deeds Monthly Report

	9.D · 2308 : Community Advisory Committee Report
	9.D.a · Community Advisory Committee Report



